City Council Report
915 I Street, 1st Floor
Sacramento, CA 95814
www.cityofsacramento.org

File ID: 2019-00678

May 28, 2019

Consent Item 10

Title: Agreement: Professional Auditing Services [Published for 10-Day Review
05/16/2019]
Location: Citywide
Recommendation: Pass a Motion: 1) authorizing the City Manager or the City Manager’s
designee to execute a professional services agreement for auditing services with Macias, Gini,
& O’Connell (MGO), LLP, for one year with four one-year renewal options to conduct the City’s
required independent financial and compliance audits beginning with the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2019, in a total amount not to exceed $1.348 million; and 2) authorizing the City
Manager or the City Manager’s designee to execute the agreement provided that sufficient
funds are available in the adopted budget of the applicable fiscal year.
Contact: Osvaldo Lopez, Accounting Manager, (916) 808-4740; Dawn Holm, Finance Director,
(916) 808-5574, Department of Finance
Presenter: None
Attachments:
1-Description/Analysis
2-Agreement

Susana Alcala Wood, City Attorney

Mindy Cuppy, City Clerk
Howard Chan, City Manager

John Colville, City Treasurer
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Description/Analysis
Issue Detail: On March 8, 2019, the Department of Finance in accordance with City Code
Chapter 3.64, issued Request for Proposals (RFP) No. P19061311001 for professional
auditing services. The City received four responses to the RFP. Proposals were evaluated
based on technical qualifications, including expertise and experience, price, and mandatory
RFP elements. After evaluation by a selection committee, which included City staff and County
of Sacramento staff, the selection committee concluded that the proposal submitted by MGO,
LLP, was the most responsive.
Audit services were solicited for the following reporting entities, which include City and related
agencies and programs:
•
•
•
•
•
•

City of Sacramento - Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
City of Sacramento - single audit reports
Sacramento City Employees’ Retirement System (SCERS) - financial statements
Sacramento Convention and Visitors Bureau (SCVB) - financial statements
Child Development Program - financial statements with state required supplemental
information
City of Sacramento – performance audit of City’s Measure U Sales Tax Funds

Policy Considerations: This action is consistent with City Charter Section 117, which requires
an annual independent audit of the City’s financial records. Independent audits are also
required by the Federal Single Audit Act, grant agreements, and bond covenants. The
recommendations in this report are also in accordance with provisions of City Code Chapter
3.64 regarding contracts for professional services.
The Sacramento City Code Section 4.04.020 and Council Rules of Procedure (Chapter 7,
Section E.2.d) mandate that unless waived by a 2/3 vote of the City Council, all labor
agreements and all agreements greater than $1,000,000 shall be made available to the public
at least ten (10) days prior to council action.
Economic Impacts: None.
Environmental Considerations:
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA): No environmental review is
necessary because the recommendations in this report involve contracting for
professional services and are not considered to be a project in accordance with Section
15378(b)(2) of the CEQA Guidelines.
City of Sacramento
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Sustainability: Not applicable.
Commission/Committee Action: Not applicable.
Rationale for Recommendation: It is in the best interest of the City to authorize the
City Manager to execute a professional services agreement with MGO, LLP, the firm whose
proposal was the highest ranked and most responsive.
Financial Considerations: In determining the recommended spending authority, staff
adjusted the proposed amounts in consideration of future needs. The recommended not-toexceed amount of $1.348 million includes an $18,000 contingency in each year to allow for
additional audit service requests. The Finance Department operating budget includes funding
for all services except for the child development program audit which will be charged to the 4th
R Fund and the SCVB audits which will be paid for by the SCVB.
Sufficient funding is available in the FY2018/19 budget for the required audit services. Services
for future fiscal years are subject to funding availability in the adopted budget for the applicable
fiscal year.
Local Business Enterprise (LBE): MGO, LLP, is a local business enterprise.

City of Sacramento

May 28, 2019
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PROJECT NAME: Professional Auditing Services
AGREEMENT TERM:
AUTHORIZED RENEWALS: 4
DEPARTMENT: Finance
DIVISION: Accounting
CITY OF SACRAMENTO
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made at Sacramento, California, as of _______________, by and between
the CITY OF SACRAMENTO, a municipal corporation (“CITY”), and
Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP (MGO)
3000 S Street, Suite 300, Sacramento, CA, 95816
(916)‐928‐7048 / kstarkey@mgocpa.com
(“CONTRACTOR”), who agree as follows:
1.

Services. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall
provide to CITY the services described in Exhibit A. CONTRACTOR shall provide the services at
the time, place, and in the manner specified in Exhibit A. CONTRACTOR shall not be compensated
for services outside the scope of Exhibit A unless prior to the commencement of the services: (a)
CONTRACTOR notifies CITY and CITY agrees that the services are outside the scope of Exhibit A;
(b) CONTRACTOR estimates the additional compensation required for these additional services;
and (c) CITY, after notice, approves in writing a Supplemental Agreement specifying the
additional services and amount of compensation therefor. CITY shall have no obligations
whatsoever under this Agreement or any Supplemental Agreement, unless and until this
Agreement or any Supplemental Agreement is approved by the Sacramento City Manager or the
City Manager’s authorized designee, or by the Sacramento City Council, as required by the
Sacramento City Code.

2.

Payment. CITY shall pay CONTRACTOR for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement at the
times and in the manner set forth in Exhibit B. The payments specified in Exhibit B shall be the
only payments to be made to CONTRACTOR for the services rendered pursuant to this Agreement
unless pursuant to Section 1, above, CITY approves additional compensation for additional
services. CONTRACTOR shall submit all billings for services to CITY in the manner specified in
Exhibit B, or, if not specified in Exhibit B, according to the usual and customary procedures and
practices that CONTRACTOR uses for billing clients similar to CITY.

3.

Facilities and Equipment. Except as set forth in Exhibit C, CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and
expense, furnish all facilities and equipment that may be required for CONTRACTOR to perform
services pursuant to this Agreement. CITY shall furnish to CONTRACTOR only the facilities and
equipment listed in Exhibit C according to any terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit C.



This form to be used for all professional services, except services performed by architects, landscape
architects, professional engineers, or professional land surveyors, or related to a construction project.
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4.

General Provisions. The General Provisions set forth in Exhibit D, which include indemnity and
insurance requirements, are part of this Agreement. In the event of any conflict between the
General Provisions and any terms or conditions of any document prepared or provided by
CONTRACTOR and made a part of this Agreement, including without limitation any document
relating to the scope of services or payment therefor, the General Provisions shall control over
those terms or conditions.

5.

Non‐Discrimination in Employee Benefits. This Agreement may be subject to the requirements
of Sacramento City Code Chapter 3.54, Non‐Discrimination in Employee Benefits by City
Contractors. A summary of the requirements of Sacramento City Code Chapter 3.54, entitled
“Requirements of the Non‐Discrimination in Employee Benefits Code,” can be viewed at:
http://www.cityofsacramento.org/Finance/Procurement/Standard‐Agreements. By signing
this Agreement, CONTRACTOR acknowledges and represents that CONTRACTOR has read and
understands these requirements and agrees to fully comply with all applicable requirements of
Sacramento City Code Chapter 3.54. If requested by CITY, CONTRACTOR agrees to promptly
provide such documents and information as may be required by CITY to verify CONTRACTOR’s
compliance. Any violation by CONTRACTOR of Sacramento City Code Chapter 3.54 constitutes a
material breach of this Agreement, for which the CITY may terminate the Agreement and pursue
all available legal and equitable remedies.

6.

Considering Criminal Conviction Information in the Employment Application Process. This
Agreement may be subject to the requirements of Sacramento City Code Chapter 3.62,
Procedures for Considering Criminal Conviction Information in the Employment Application
Process. A summary of the requirements of Sacramento City Code Chapter 3.62, entitled
“Ban‐The‐Box Requirements,” can be viewed at:
http://www.cityofsacramento.org/Finance/Procurement/Standard‐Agreements. By signing
this Agreement, CONTRACTOR acknowledges and represents that CONTRACTOR has read and
understands these requirements and agrees to fully comply with all applicable requirements of
Sacramento City Code Chapter 3.62. If requested by CITY, CONTRACTOR agrees to promptly
provide such documents and information as may be required by CITY to verify CONTRACTOR’s
compliance. Any violation by CONTRACTOR of Sacramento City Code Chapter 3.62 constitutes a
material breach of this Agreement, for which the CITY may terminate the Agreement and pursue
all available legal and equitable remedies. CONTRACTOR agrees to require its subcontractors to
fully comply with all applicable requirements of Sacramento City Code Chapter 3.62, and include
these requirements in all subcontracts covered by Sacramento City Code Chapter 3.62.

7.

Additional Requirements for Surveying, Material Testing, and Inspection Services. If this
Agreement includes any land surveying, material testing, or inspection services provided for a
City construction project, during the design, pre‐construction, construction, or post‐construction
phases of the project, the Contractor and any subcontractor or subconsultant performing any
such services shall comply with the provisions specified in Exhibit E.

8.

Authority. The person signing this Agreement for CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that
he or she is fully authorized to sign this Agreement on behalf of CONTRACTOR and to bind
CONTRACTOR to the performance of its obligations hereunder.
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EXHIBIT A
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
SCOPE OF SERVICES
1.

Representatives.
The CITY Representative for this Agreement is:
Osvaldo Lopez, Accounting Manager
915 I Street, 4th Floor, Sacramento, CA, 95814
(916) 808‐4740 / OLopez@cityofsacramento.org

All CONTRACTOR questions pertaining to this Agreement shall be referred to the CITY
Representative or the Representative’s designee.
The CONTRACTOR Representative for this Agreement is:
Kevin Starkey, Partner
3000 S Street, Suite 300, Sacramento, CA, 95816
(916) 928‐7048 / kstarkey@mgocpa.com

All CITY questions pertaining to this Agreement shall be referred to the CONTRACTOR
Representative. All correspondence to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed to the address or e‐mail
address set forth on page one of this Agreement. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement,
all correspondence to the CITY shall be addressed to the CITY Representative.
2.

Insurance. Insurance requirements are specified in Exhibit D, Section 11.

3.

Conflict of Interest Requirements.
A.

Generally. Under the California Political Reform Act, Government Code §§ 81000 et seq.,
designated employees of the CITY are required to comply with the CITY’s Conflict of
Interest Code. The term “designated employees” is a term of art and includes individuals
who are working for contractors who are providing services or performing work for the
CITY and who are considered to be “consultants” under the Political Reform Act. The term
“consultant” generally includes individuals who make, or participate in making,
governmental decisions or who serve in a staff capacity. Individuals who perform work
that is solely clerical, ministerial, manual or secretarial are not “consultants.”
The CITY’s Conflict of Interest Code requires designated employees, including individuals
who qualify as “consultants”, to file the following statements of economic interests:
(1)

An “assuming office” statement of economic interests to be filed within 30 days
after execution of the agreement between the City and the contractor;
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(2)

Annual statements of economic interests while the agreement remains in effect,
to be filed not later than April 30 of each year; and

(3)

A “leaving office” statement of economic interests to be filed within 30 days of
completion of the contract.

The above statements of economic interests are public records subject to public
disclosure under the California Public Records Act.
The CITY’s Conflict of Interest Code also requires individuals who qualify as “consultants”
under the Political Reform Act to comply with the conflict of interest provisions of the
Political Reform Act, which generally prohibit individuals from making or participating in
the making of decisions that will have a material financial effect on their economic
interests.
B.

Conflict of Interest Statements. The individual(s) who will provide services or perform
work pursuant to this Agreement are “consultants” within the meaning of the Political
Reform Act and the CITY’s Conflict of Interest Code: ____ yes
__X__ no [check one]
If “yes” is checked above, CONTRACTOR shall cause the following to occur within 30 days
after execution of this Agreement:
(1)

Identify the individuals who will provide services or perform work under this
Agreement as “consultants”;

(2)

Cause these individuals to file with the CITY Representative the “assuming office”
statements of economic interests required by the CITY’s Conflict of Interest Code.

Thereafter, throughout the term of the Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall cause these
individuals to file with the CITY Representative annual statements of economic interests,
and “leaving office” statements of economic interests, as required by the CITY’s Conflict
of Interest Code. The CITY may withhold all or a portion of any payment due under this
Agreement until all required statements are filed.
4.

Scope of Services.

The services provided shall be as set forth in Attachment 1 to Exhibit A, attached hereto and
incorporated herein. The City may add services relating to subsequent fiscal years, upon its
exercising the options to extend this Agreement in accordance with paragraph 5, below.
5.

Time of Performance. The services described herein shall be provided during the period, or in
accordance with the schedule, set forth in the Scope of Services. The City shall have four options
to extend this Agreement for one year each, up to a total of five years including the initial term
and all extensions.
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EXHIBIT B
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
FEE SCHEDULE/MANNER OF PAYMENT
1.

CONTRACTOR’s Compensation. The total of all fees paid to the CONTRACTOR for the
performance of all services set forth in Exhibit A, including normal revisions (hereafter the
“Services”), and for all authorized Reimbursable Expenses, shall not exceed the total sum of
$___245,000_____.

2.

Billable Rates. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the performance of Services on an hourly rate,
daily rate, flat fee, lump sum or other basis, as set forth in Attachment 1 to Exhibit B, attached
hereto and incorporated herein. Attachment 2 to Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated
herein, sets forth the hourly rate, daily rate, flat fee, lump sum or other basis, upon which the
CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the performance of Services during the respective terms for which
the City exercises its options pursuant to paragraph 5 of Exhibit A, if any.

3.

CONTRACTOR’s Reimbursable Expenses. Reimbursable Expenses shall be limited to actual
expenditures of CONTRACTOR for expenses that are necessary for the proper completion of the
Services and shall only be payable if specifically authorized in advance by CITY.

4.

Payments to CONTRACTOR.
A.

Payments to CONTRACTOR shall be made within a reasonable time after receipt of
CONTRACTOR’s invoice, in proportion to services performed or as otherwise specified in
Attachment 1 to Exhibit B. CONTRACTOR may request payment on a monthly basis.
CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the cost of supplying all documentation necessary
to verify the monthly billings to the satisfaction of CITY.

B.

All invoices submitted by CONTRACTOR shall contain the following information:
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)

C.

Job/Project Name
CITY’s current Purchase Order Number
CONTRACTOR’s Invoice Number
Date of Invoice Issuance
Work Order Number (if applicable)
CITY representative identified on the Purchase Order
CONTRACTOR’s remit address for payment
Description of services billed under Invoice
Amount of Invoice (itemize all authorized Reimbursable Expenses)
Total Billed to Date under Agreement

Items shall be separated into Services and Reimbursable Expenses. Billings that do not
conform to the format outlined above shall be returned to CONTRACTOR for correction.
CITY shall not be responsible for delays in payment to CONTRACTOR resulting from
CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with the invoice format described above.
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D.

Submitting Invoices:
(1)

Email. Submit email invoices and any attachments to:
apinvoices@cityofsacramento.org

(2)

Postal mail. If emailing invoices and attachments is not an option, mail to:
A/P PROCESSING CENTER
CITY OF SACRAMENTO
915 I ST FL 4
SACRAMENTO CA 95814‐2608

5.

Additional Services. Additional Services are those services related to the scope of services of
CONTRACTOR set forth in Exhibit A but not anticipated at the time of execution of this
Agreement. Additional Services shall be provided only when a Supplemental Agreement
authorizing the Additional Services is approved by CITY in accordance with CITY’s Supplemental
Agreement procedures. CITY reserves the right to perform any Additional Services with its own
staff or to retain other contractors to perform the Additional Services.

6.

Accounting Records of CONTRACTOR. During performance of this Agreement and for a period
of three (3) years after completing all Services and Additional Services hereunder, CONTRACTOR
shall maintain all accounting and financial records related to this Agreement, including, but not
limited to, records of CONTRACTOR’s costs for all Services and Additional Services performed
under this Agreement and records of CONTRACTOR’s Reimbursable Expenses, in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices, and shall keep and make the records available for
inspection and audit by representatives of the CITY upon reasonable written notice.

7.

Taxes. CONTRACTOR shall pay, when and as due, any and all taxes incurred as a result of
CONTRACTOR’s compensation hereunder, including estimated taxes, and shall provide CITY with
proof of the payment upon request. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to indemnify CITY for any
claims, losses, costs, fees, liabilities, damages or injuries suffered by CITY arising out of
CONTRACTOR’s breach of this Section 7.
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EXHIBIT C
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT TO BE PROVIDED BY CITY

CITY shall [check one]

Not furnish any facilities or equipment for this
Agreement;
or
X

Furnish the following facilities or equipment for
the Agreement [list, if applicable]:

Workspace, including desks or tables, and chairs
Access to telephones, photocopying machine, and fax machine
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EXHIBIT D
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1.

Independent Contractor.
A.

It is understood and agreed that CONTRACTOR (including CONTRACTOR’s employees) is
an independent contractor and that no relationship of employer‐employee exists
between the parties hereto for any purpose whatsoever. Neither CONTRACTOR nor
CONTRACTOR’s assigned personnel shall be entitled to any benefits payable to employees
of CITY. CITY is not required to make any deductions or withholdings from the
compensation payable to CONTRACTOR under the provisions of this Agreement, and
CONTRACTOR shall be issued a Form 1099 for its services hereunder. As an independent
contractor, CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to indemnify and hold CITY harmless from any
and all claims that may be made against CITY based upon any contention by any of
CONTRACTOR’s employees or by any third party, including but not limited to any state or
federal agency, that an employer‐employee relationship or a substitute therefor exists for
any purpose whatsoever by reason of this Agreement or by reason of the nature and/or
performance of any Services under this Agreement. (As used in this Exhibit D, the term
“Services” shall include both Services and Additional Services as such terms are defined
elsewhere in this Agreement.)

B.

It is further understood and agreed by the parties hereto that CONTRACTOR, in the
performance of its obligations hereunder, is subject to the control and direction of CITY
as to the designation of tasks to be performed and the results to be accomplished under
this Agreement, but not as to the means, methods, or sequence used by CONTRACTOR
for accomplishing such results. To the extent that CONTRACTOR obtains permission to,
and does, use CITY facilities, space, equipment or support services in the performance of
this Agreement, this use shall be at the CONTRACTOR’s sole discretion based on the
CONTRACTOR’s determination that such use will promote CONTRACTOR’s efficiency and
effectiveness. Except as may be specifically provided elsewhere in this Agreement, the
CITY does not require that CONTRACTOR use CITY facilities, equipment or support services
or work in CITY locations in the performance of this Agreement.

C.

If, in the performance of this Agreement, any third persons are employed by
CONTRACTOR, such persons shall be entirely and exclusively under the direction,
supervision, and control of CONTRACTOR. Except as may be specifically provided
elsewhere in this Agreement, all terms of employment, including hours, wages, working
conditions, discipline, hiring, and discharging, or any other terms of employment or
requirements of law, shall be determined by CONTRACTOR. It is further understood and
agreed that CONTRACTOR shall issue W‐2 or 1099 Forms for income and employment tax
purposes, for all of CONTRACTOR’s assigned personnel and subcontractors.

D.

The provisions of this Section 1 shall survive any expiration or termination of this
Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create an exclusive
relationship between CITY and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR may represent, perform
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services for, or be employed by such additional persons or companies as CONTRACTOR
sees fit provided that CONTRACTOR does not violate the provisions of Section 5, below.
2.

Licenses; Permits, Etc. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that CONTRACTOR has all
licenses, permits, City Business Operations Tax Certificate, qualifications, and approvals of
whatsoever nature that are legally required for CONTRACTOR to practice its profession or provide
any services under the Agreement. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that CONTRACTOR
shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect or obtain at all times during the term of this
Agreement any licenses, permits, and approvals that are legally required for CONTRACTOR to
practice its profession or provide such Services. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing,
if CONTRACTOR is an out‐of‐state corporation, CONTRACTOR warrants and represents that it
possesses a valid certificate of qualification to transact business in the State of California issued
by the California Secretary of State pursuant to Section 2105 of the California Corporations Code.

3.

Time. CONTRACTOR shall devote such time and effort to the performance of Services pursuant
to this Agreement as is necessary for the satisfactory and timely performance of CONTRACTOR’s
obligations under this Agreement. Neither party shall be considered in default of this Agreement,
to the extent that party’s performance is prevented or delayed by any cause, present or future,
that is beyond the reasonable control of that party.

4.

CONTRACTOR Not Agent. Except as CITY may specify in writing, CONTRACTOR and
CONTRACTOR’s personnel shall have no authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of CITY in
any capacity whatsoever as an agent. CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR’s personnel shall have no
authority, express or implied, to bind CITY to any obligations whatsoever.

5.

Conflicts of Interest. CONTRACTOR covenants that neither it, nor any officer or principal of its
firm, has or shall acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, that would conflict in any manner
with the interests of CITY or that would in any way hinder CONTRACTOR’s performance of
Services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR further covenants that in the performance of this
Agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed by it as an officer, employee,
agent or subcontractor, without the written consent of CITY. CONTRACTOR agrees to avoid
conflicts of interest or the appearance of any conflicts of interest with the interests of CITY at all
times during the performance of this Agreement. If CONTRACTOR is or employs a former officer
or employee of the CITY, CONTRACTOR and any such employee(s) shall comply with the
provisions of Sacramento City Code Section 2.16.090 pertaining to appearances before the City
Council or any CITY department, board, commission or committee.

6.

Confidentiality of CITY Information. During performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR may
gain access to and use CITY information regarding inventions, machinery, products, prices,
apparatus, costs, discounts, future plans, business affairs, governmental affairs, processes, trade
secrets, technical matters, systems, facilities, customer lists, product design, copyright, data, and
other vital information (hereafter collectively referred to as “City Information”) that are valuable,
special and unique assets of the CITY. CONTRACTOR agrees to protect all City Information and
treat it as strictly confidential, and further agrees that CONTRACTOR shall not at any time, either
directly or indirectly, divulge, disclose or communicate in any manner any City Information to any
third party without the prior written consent of CITY. In addition, CONTRACTOR shall comply
with all CITY policies governing the use of the CITY network and technology systems, as set forth
in applicable provisions of the City of Sacramento Administrative Policy Instructions # 30. A
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violation by CONTRACTOR of this Section 6 shall be a material violation of this Agreement and
shall justify legal and/or equitable relief.
7.

CONTRACTOR Information.
A.

CITY shall have full ownership and control, including ownership of any copyrights, of all
information prepared, produced, or provided by CONTRACTOR pursuant to this
Agreement. In this Agreement, the term “information” shall be construed to mean and
include: any and all work product, submittals, reports, plans, specifications, and other
deliverables consisting of documents, writings, handwritings, typewriting, printing,
photostatting, photographing, computer models, and any other computerized data and
every other means of recording any form of information, communications, or
representation, including letters, works, pictures, drawings, sounds, or symbols, or any
combination thereof. CONTRACTOR shall not be responsible for any unauthorized
modification or use of such information for other than its intended purpose by CITY.

B.

CONTRACTOR shall fully defend, indemnify and hold harmless CITY, its officers and
employees, and each and every one of them, from and against any and all claims, actions,
lawsuits or other proceedings alleging that all or any part of the information prepared,
produced, or provided by CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement infringes upon any
third party’s trademark, trade name, copyright, patent or other intellectual property
rights. CITY shall make reasonable efforts to notify CONTRACTOR not later than ten (10)
days after CITY is served with any such claim, action, lawsuit or other proceeding,
provided that CITY’s failure to provide such notice within such time period shall not relieve
CONTRACTOR of its obligations hereunder, which shall survive any termination or
expiration of this Agreement.

C.

All proprietary and other information received from CONTRACTOR by CITY, whether
received in connection with CONTRACTOR’s proposal to CITY or in connection with any
Services performed by CONTRACTOR, will be disclosed upon receipt of a request for
disclosure, pursuant to the California Public Records Act; provided, however, that, if any
information is set apart and clearly marked “trade secret” when it is provided to CITY,
CITY shall give notice to CONTRACTOR of any request for the disclosure of such
information. The CONTRACTOR shall then have five (5) days from the date it receives
such notice to enter into an agreement with the CITY, satisfactory to the City Attorney,
providing for the defense of, and complete indemnification and reimbursement for all
costs (including plaintiff’s attorney fees) incurred by CITY in any legal action to compel the
disclosure of such information under the California Public Records Act. The CONTRACTOR
shall have sole responsibility for defense of the actual “trade secret” designation of such
information.

D.

The parties understand and agree that any failure by CONTRACTOR to respond to the
notice provided by CITY and/or to enter into an agreement with CITY, in accordance with
the provisions of subsection C, above, shall constitute a complete waiver by CONTRACTOR
of any rights regarding the information designated “trade secret” by CONTRACTOR, and
such information shall be disclosed by CITY pursuant to applicable procedures required
by the Public Records Act.
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8.

Standard of Performance. CONTRACTOR shall perform all Services required pursuant to this
Agreement in the manner and according to the standards currently observed by a competent
practitioner of CONTRACTOR’s profession in California. All products of whatsoever nature that
CONTRACTOR delivers to CITY pursuant to this Agreement shall be prepared in a professional
manner and conform to the standards of quality normally observed by a person currently
practicing in CONTRACTOR’s profession, and shall be provided in accordance with any schedule
of performance specified in Exhibit A. CONTRACTOR shall assign only competent personnel to
perform Services pursuant to this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall notify CITY in writing of any
changes in CONTRACTOR’s staff assigned to perform the Services required under this Agreement,
prior to any such performance. In the event that CITY, at any time during the term of this
Agreement, desires the removal of any person assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform Services
pursuant to this Agreement, because CITY, in its sole discretion, determines that such person is
not performing in accordance with the standards required herein, CONTRACTOR shall remove
such person immediately upon receiving notice from CITY of the desire of CITY for the removal
of such person.

9.

Term; Suspension; Termination.
A.

This Agreement shall become effective on the date that it is approved by both parties,
set forth on the first page of the Agreement, and shall continue in effect until both parties
have fully performed their respective obligations under this Agreement, unless sooner
terminated as provided herein.

B.

CITY shall have the right at any time to temporarily suspend CONTRACTOR’s performance
hereunder, in whole or in part, by giving a written notice of suspension to CONTRACTOR.
If CITY gives such notice of suspension, CONTRACTOR shall immediately suspend its
activities under this Agreement, as specified in such notice.

C.

CITY shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time by giving a written notice
of termination to CONTRACTOR. If CITY gives such notice of termination, CONTRACTOR
shall immediately cease rendering Services pursuant to this Agreement. If CITY
terminates this Agreement:
(1)

CONTRACTOR shall, not later than five days after such notice of termination,
deliver to CITY copies of all information prepared pursuant to this Agreement.

(2)

CITY shall pay CONTRACTOR the reasonable value of Services rendered by
CONTRACTOR prior to termination; provided, however, CITY shall not in any
manner be liable for lost profits that might have been made by CONTRACTOR had
the Agreement not been terminated or had CONTRACTOR completed the Services
required by this Agreement. In this regard, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to CITY
such financial information as in the judgment of the CITY is necessary for CITY to
determine the reasonable value of the Services rendered by CONTRACTOR. The
foregoing is cumulative and does not affect any right or remedy that CITY may
have in law or equity.
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10.

11.

Indemnity.
A.

Indemnity: CONTRACTOR shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify CITY, its officers and
employees, and each and every one of them, from and against any and all actions,
damages, costs, liabilities, claims, demands, losses, judgments, penalties, costs and
expenses of every type and description, including, but not limited to, any fees and/or
costs reasonably incurred by CITY’s staff attorneys or outside attorneys and any fees and
expenses incurred in enforcing this provision (hereafter collectively referred to as
“Liabilities”), including but not limited to Liabilities arising from personal injury or death,
damage to personal, real or intellectual property or the environment, contractual or other
economic damages, or regulatory penalties, arising out of or in any way connected with
performance of or failure to perform this Agreement by CONTRACTOR, any sub‐
consultant, subcontractor or agent, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them
or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, whether or not (i) such Liabilities are
caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder or (ii) such Liabilities are litigated, settled
or reduced to judgment; provided that the foregoing indemnity does not apply to liability
for any damage or expense for death or bodily injury to persons or damage to property
to the extent arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct of CITY, its agents,
servants, or independent contractors who are directly responsible to CITY, except when
such agents, servants, or independent contractors are under the direct supervision and
control of CONTRACTOR.

B.

Insurance Policies; Intellectual Property Claims: The existence or acceptance by CITY of
any of the insurance policies or coverages described in this Agreement shall not affect or
limit any of CITY’s rights under this Section 10, nor shall the limits of such insurance limit
the liability of CONTRACTOR hereunder. This Section 10 shall not apply to any intellectual
property claims, actions, lawsuits or other proceedings subject to the provisions of
Section 7.B., above. The provisions of this Section 10 shall survive any expiration or
termination of this Agreement.

Insurance Requirements. During the entire term of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall maintain
the insurance coverage described in this Section 11.
Full compensation for all premiums that CONTRACTOR is required to pay for the insurance
coverage described herein shall be included in the compensation specified for the Services
provided by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. No additional compensation will be provided
for CONTRACTOR’s insurance premiums. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the
specified minimum limits and coverages shall be available to the CITY.
It is understood and agreed by the CONTRACTOR that its liability to the CITY shall not in any way
be limited to or affected by the amount of insurance coverage required or carried by the
CONTRACTOR in connection with this Agreement.
A.

Minimum Scope & Limits of Insurance Coverage
(1)

Commercial General Liability Insurance providing coverage at least as broad as ISO
CGL Form 00 01 on an occurrence basis for bodily injury, including death, of one
or more persons, property damage, and personal injury, arising out of activities
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performed by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, its sub‐consultants, and
subcontractors, products and completed operations of CONTRACTOR, its sub‐
consultants, and subcontractors, and premises owned, leased, or used by
CONTRACTOR, its sub‐consultants, and subcontractors, with limits of not less than
one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence. The policy shall provide
contractual liability and products and completed operations coverage for the term
of the policy.
(2)

Automobile Liability Insurance providing coverage at least as broad as ISO Form
CA 00 01 for bodily injury, including death, of one or more persons, property
damage, and personal injury, with limits of not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000) per accident. The policy shall provide coverage for owned, non‐
owned, and/or hired autos as appropriate to the operations of the CONTRACTOR.
No automobile liability insurance shall be required if CONTRACTOR completes the
following certification:
“I certify that a motor vehicle will not be used in the performance of any
work or services under this agreement.” ________ (CONTRACTOR initials)

(3)

Excess Insurance: The minimum limits of insurance required above may be
satisfied by a combination of primary and umbrella or excess insurance coverage;
provided that any umbrella or excess insurance shall contain, or be endorsed to
contain, a provision that it shall apply on a primary basis for the benefit of the
CITY, and any insurance or self‐insurance maintained by CITY, its officials,
employees, or volunteers shall be in excess of such umbrella or excess coverage
and shall not contribute with it.

(4)

Workers’ Compensation Insurance with statutory limits, and Employers’ Liability
Insurance with limits of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000). The
Workers’ Compensation policy shall include a waiver of subrogation in favor of the
CITY. If no work or services will be performed on or at CITY facilities or CITY
Property, the CITY Representative may waive this requirement by selecting the
option below:
Workers’ Compensation waiver of subrogation in favor of the CITY is not
required. _______ (CITY Representative initials)
No Workers’ Compensation insurance shall be required if CONTRACTOR
completes the following certification:
“I certify that my business has no employees, and that I do not employ
anyone. I am exempt from the legal requirements to provide Workers'
Compensation insurance.” _________ (CONTRACTOR initials)

(5)

Professional Liability Insurance providing coverage on a claims made basis for
errors, omissions, or malpractice with limits of not less than one million
($1,000,000) dollars. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) insurance:
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Is ___X___

Is not ______ [check one] required for this Agreement.

If required, such coverage must be continued for at least __3___ year(s) following
the completion of all Services and Additional Services under this Agreement. The
retroactive date must be prior to the date this Agreement is approved or any
Services are performed.
B.

C.

Additional Insured Coverage
(1)

Commercial General Liability Insurance: The CITY, its officials, employees, and
volunteers shall be covered by policy terms or endorsement as additional insureds
as respects general liability arising out of: activities performed by or on behalf of
CONTRACTOR, its sub‐consultants, and subcontractors; products and completed
operations of CONTRACTOR, its sub‐consultants, and subcontractors; and
premises owned, leased, or used by CONTRACTOR, its sub‐consultants, and
subcontractors.

(2)

Automobile Liability Insurance: The CITY, its officials, employees, and volunteers
shall be covered by policy terms or endorsement as additional insureds as respects
auto liability.

Other Insurance Provisions
The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

D.

(1)

Except for professional liability, CONTRACTOR’s insurance coverage, including
excess insurance, shall be primary insurance as respects CITY, its officials,
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self‐insurance maintained by CITY,
its officials, employees, or volunteers shall be in excess of CONTRACTOR’s
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

(2)

Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect
coverage provided to CITY, its officials, employees, or volunteers.

(3)

Coverage shall state that CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to each
insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the
limits of the insurer’s liability.

(4)

CITY will be provided with thirty (30) days written notice of cancellation or
material change in the policy language or terms.

Acceptability of Insurance
Insurance shall be placed with insurers with a Bests’ rating of not less than A:VI. Self‐
insured retentions, policy terms or other variations that do not comply with the
requirements of this Section 11 must be declared to and approved by the CITY in writing
prior to execution of this Agreement.
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E.

Verification of Coverage
(1)

CONTRACTOR shall furnish CITY with certificates and required endorsements
evidencing the insurance required. The certificates and endorsements shall be
forwarded to the CITY representative named in Exhibit A. Copies of policies shall
be delivered to the CITY on demand. Certificates of insurance shall be signed by
an authorized representative of the insurance carrier.

(2)

For all insurance policy renewals during the term of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR
shall send insurance certificates reflecting the policy renewals directly to:
City of Sacramento
c/o EXIGIS LLC
P.O. Box 4668 ECM‐ #35050
New York, NY 10168‐4668
Insurance certificates also may be faxed to (888) 355‐3599, or e‐mailed to:
certificates‐sacramento@riskworks.com

(3)

F.

The CITY may withdraw its offer of contract or cancel this Agreement if the
certificates of insurance and endorsements required have not been provided prior
to execution of this Agreement. The CITY may withhold payments to
CONTRACTOR or cancel the Agreement if the insurance is canceled or
CONTRACTOR otherwise ceases to be insured as required herein.

Subcontractors
CONTRACTOR shall require and verify that all sub‐consultants and subcontractors
maintain insurance coverage that meets the minimum scope and limits of insurance
coverage specified in subsection A, above.

12.

Equal Employment Opportunity. During the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR, for
itself, its assignees and successors in interest, agrees as follows:
A.

Compliance With Regulations: CONTRACTOR shall comply with the Executive Order 11246
entitled “Equal Opportunity in Federal Employment”, as amended by Executive Order
11375 and 12086, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR
Chapter 60), hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Regulations”.

B.

Nondiscrimination: CONTRACTOR, with regards to the work performed by it after award
and prior to completion of the work pursuant to this Agreement, shall not discriminate
on the ground of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, marital status, physical
handicap or sexual orientation in selection and retention of subcontractors, including
procurement of materials and leases of equipment. CONTRACTOR shall not participate
either directly or indirectly in discrimination prohibited by the Regulations.

C.

Solicitations for Subcontractors, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment: In
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all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiations made by CONTRACTOR for
work to be performed under any subcontract, including all procurement of materials or
equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by CONTRACTOR of
CONTRACTOR’s obligation under this Agreement and the Regulations relative to
nondiscrimination on the ground of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, marital
status, physical handicap or sexual orientation.
D.

Information and Reports: CONTRACTOR shall provide all information and reports required
by the Regulations, or by any orders or instructions issued pursuant thereto, and shall
permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information and its
facilities as may be determined by the CITY to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with
such Regulations, orders and instructions. Where any information required of
CONTRACTOR is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this
information, CONTRACTOR shall so certify to the CITY, and shall set forth what efforts it
has made to obtain the information.

E.

Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of noncompliance by CONTRACTOR with the
nondiscrimination provisions of this Agreement, the CITY shall impose such sanctions as
it may determine to be appropriate including, but not limited to:

F.

(1)

Withholding of payments to CONTRACTOR under this Agreement until
CONTRACTOR complies;

(2)

Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement, in whole or in part.

Incorporation of Provisions: CONTRACTOR shall include the provisions of subsections A
through E, above, in every subcontract, including procurement of materials and leases of
equipment, unless exempted by the Regulations, or by any order or instructions issued
pursuant thereto. CONTRACTOR shall take such action with respect to any subcontract
or procurement as the CITY may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including
sanctions for noncompliance; provided, however, that in the event CONTRACTOR
becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as
a result of such direction, CONTRACTOR may request CITY to enter such litigation to
protect the interests of CITY.

13.

Entire Agreement. This document, including all Exhibits, contains the entire agreement between
the parties and supersedes whatever oral or written understanding they may have had prior to
the execution of this Agreement. No alteration to the terms of this Agreement shall be valid
unless approved in writing by CONTRACTOR, and by CITY, in accordance with applicable
provisions of the Sacramento City Code.

14.

Severability. If any portion of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance shall be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not
be affected thereby and shall be enforced to the greatest extent permitted by law.

15.

Waiver. Neither CITY acceptance of, or payment for, any Service or Additional Service performed
by CONTRACTOR, nor any waiver by either party of any default, breach or condition precedent,
shall be construed as a waiver of any provision of this Agreement, nor as a waiver of any other
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default, breach or condition precedent or any other right hereunder.
16.

Enforcement of Agreement. This Agreement shall be governed, construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of California. Venue of any litigation arising out of or
connected with this Agreement shall lie exclusively in the state trial court or Federal District Court
located in Sacramento County in the State of California, and the parties consent to jurisdiction
over their persons and over the subject matter of any such litigation in such courts, and consent
to service of process issued by such courts.

17.

Assignment Prohibited. The expertise and experience of CONTRACTOR are material
considerations for this Agreement. CITY has a strong interest in the qualifications and capability
of the persons and entities that will fulfill the obligations imposed on CONTRACTOR under this
Agreement. In recognition of this interest, CONTRACTOR shall not assign any right or obligation
pursuant to this Agreement without the written consent of the CITY. Any attempted or purported
assignment without CITY’s written consent shall be void and of no effect.

18.

Binding Effect. This Agreement shall be binding on the heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns of the parties, subject to the provisions of Section 17, above.

19.

Use Tax Requirements. During the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR, for itself, its
assignees and successors in interest, agrees as follows:
A.

Use Tax Direct Payment Permit: For all leases and purchases of materials, equipment,
supplies, or other tangible personal property used to perform the Agreement and shipped
from outside California, the Contractor and any subcontractors leasing or purchasing such
materials, equipment, supplies or other tangible personal property shall obtain a Use Tax
Direct Payment Permit from the California State Board of Equalization (“SBE”) in
accordance with the applicable SBE criteria and requirements.

B.

Sellers Permit: For any construction contract and any construction subcontract in the
amount of $5,000,000 or more, Contractor and the subcontractor(s) shall obtain sellers
permits from the SBE and shall register the jobsite as the place of business for the purpose
of allocating local sales and use tax to the City. Contractor and its subcontractors shall
remit the self‐accrued use tax to the SBE, and shall provide a copy of each remittance to
the City.

C.

The above provisions shall apply in all instances unless prohibited by the funding source
for the Agreement.

20. Local Business Enterprise Participation Requirements. If the Request for Qualifications or Request
for Proposals issued for this Agreement included Local Business Enterprise Participation
Requirements (the “LBE Requirements”), CONTRACTOR shall comply with the LBE Requirements,
which are by this reference incorporated as if set forth fully herein. The LBE Requirements also
can be viewed at:
http://www.cityofsacramento.org/Finance/Procurement/Standard‐Agreements
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EXHIBIT E
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SURVEYING, MATERIAL TESTING, AND INSPECTION SERVICES
Land surveying, material testing, and inspection services provided for a City construction project
during the design, pre‐construction, construction, or post‐construction phases of the project
constitute “public works” under California Labor Code section 1720 et seq., and are subject to the
requirements of Chapter 1 of Part 7 of Division 2 of the Labor Code and its implementing regulations
set forth in Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations. If this Agreement includes any of these
services (hereafter collectively referred to as “Public Work”), the Contractor and any subcontractor
or subconsultant performing any Public Work shall comply with all applicable requirements of the
California Labor Code and the Sacramento City Code, including the following requirements:
1.

Workers’ Compensation Certification. If this Agreement is for the performance of any
Public Work, in accordance with California Labor Code section 1861 the Contractor shall sign
the following certification:
I am aware of the provisions of section 3700 of the California Labor Code which
require every employer to be insured against liability for workers’ compensation or
to undertake self‐insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this
contract.

Contractor Signature
2.

DIR Registration. California Labor Code section 1725.5 requires the Contractor and any
subcontractor or subconsultant performing any Public Work under this Agreement to be
currently registered with the California Department of Industrial Relations (DIR), as specified
in Labor Code section 1725.5. Labor Code section 1771.1 provides that a contractor or
subcontractor/subconsultant shall not be qualified to engage in the performance of any
contract for public work, unless currently registered and qualified to perform public work
pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5.
To be completed by the City Representative if this Agreement is for the performance of any
Public Work:
Contractor DIR registration #: _________________________________________
Prior to the performance of Public Work by any subcontractor or subconsultant under this
Agreement, Contractor shall furnish City the subcontractor or subconsultant’s current DIR
registration number.
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3.

Payment of Prevailing Wages. If this Agreement is for the performance of any Public Work,
and the amount of the Agreement is more than $25,000, Contractor and any subcontractor
or subconsultant performing any Public Work shall comply with the provisions of
Sacramento City Code section 3.60.180 and applicable provisions of California Labor Code
section 1770 et seq., which require, among other things, that the Contractor and
subcontractor(s)/subconsultant(s) pay not less than the prevailing rate of wages for Public
Work, as determined by the Director of the California DIR pursuant to Labor Code section
1773. For any Public Work performed under this Agreement, Contractor and every
subcontractor or subconsultant shall maintain payroll records and submit certified payroll
records and other labor compliance documentation electronically to City staff when and as
required by City. In addition, Labor Code section 1771.4 requires the Contractor and any
subcontractor or subconsultant performing any Public Work to furnish electronic payroll
records directly to the Labor Commissioner.
This Agreement is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement by the California
Department of Industrial Relations, as specified in Labor Code section 1771.4. The
Contractor and any subcontractor or subconsultant performing Public Work will be subject
to withholding and penalties for violation of prevailing wage requirements in accordance
with applicable law, including Labor Code sections 1726, 1741, 1771.5, and 1775, and City
Code section 3.60.180. Questions regarding the City’s Labor Compliance Program should be
directed to the contracts staff for the City Department issuing this Agreement.

4.

Apprentices. If this Agreement is for the performance of any Public Work, and the amount
of the Agreement is $30,000 or more, the Contractor and any subcontractor or
subconsultant performing any Public Work under this Agreement shall comply with
Sacramento City Code section 3.60.190, section 1777.5 et seq. of the California Labor Code,
and implementing regulations set forth in Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations,
governing the employment of apprentices. The Contractor and any subcontractor or
subconsultant performing Public Work will be subject to penalties for apprenticeship
violations in accordance with Labor Code section 1777.7.

5.

Working Hours. If this Agreement is for the performance of any Public Work, Contractor
and any subcontractor or subconsultant performing any Public Work shall comply with, and
be subject to enforcement under, the provisions of Sacramento City Code section 3.60.180
and California Labor Code section 1810 et seq., governing the working hours of employees
performing Public Work.

6.

Subcontractors. The Contractor shall include these provisions in every subcontract or
subagreement for every lower‐tier subcontractor or subconsultant performing Public Work
under this Agreement.
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Attachment 1 To Exhibit A
SCOPE OF SERVICES
I.

This Attachment 1 to Exhibit A (“Attachment 1A”) supplements and incorporates by this
reference the professional services agreement between the City of Sacramento (“CITY”
or “City”) and Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP (“CONTRACTOR” or “MGO”) for the CITY’s
Professional Auditing Services, (the “Project”), (the “Agreement”). The Attachment 1A
describes the Scope of Services that will be provided by CONTRACTOR under this
Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this Attachment 1A and
the Agreement, the provisions of the Attachment 1A shall prevail. The words or phrases
defined in the Agreement and the City’s Civil Service Board Rules shall have the same
meaning herein unless otherwise defined in this Attachment 1A.

II.

Generally, CONTRACTOR shall provide professional auditing services to the CITY’s
Department of Finance (the “Department”) as requested by the Department for the
duration of the Agreement.

III.

Time of Performance
CONTRACTOR shall perform the services described herein during the term of the
Agreement. The initial term of the Agreement shall begin on the date identified on the
first page of the Agreement and expire on December 31, 2024, unless terminated earlier
or extended in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the
aforementioned, the CITY may, before the Agreement expires, extend this Agreement
for an additional year by executing a written supplemental agreement in accordance
with Sacramento City Code chapter 3.64. The CITY may extend the Agreement up to four
times.

A.

General
CONTRACTOR will perform audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, the standards set forth for financial audits in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller of the United States, the provisions of the federal
Single Audit Act, and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A‐133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non‐Profit Organizations.
Audit reports and standards for the various reporting entities are summarized as
follows:
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Reporting Entity

B.

Accounting
Standards

Yellow
Book

Single
Audit

Other

City of Sacramento - Compreshensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR)

GASB

Y

--

--

City of Sacramento - Single Audit

GASB

Y

Y

--

Sacramento City Employees' Retirement System Financial Statements

GASB

Y

--

--

Sacramento Convention and Visitors Bureau Financial Statements

FASB

--

--

--

Child Development Program - Financial Statements
with State Required Supplemental Information

GASB

Y

--

--

City of Sacramento - Performance Audit of the
City's Measure U Sales Tax Fund

GASB

Y

--

--

Reporting Entities Included in Scope of Work to be Performed
CONTRACTOR will perform audit services as solicited for the following “reporting
entities,” which include the CITY and related agencies and programs:







C.

City of Sacramento Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”)
City of Sacramento ‐ Single Audit
Sacramento City Employees’ Retirement System
Sacramento Convention and Visitors Bureau
Child Development Program
City of Sacramento Measure U Fund

Description of the Reporting Entities
The following information provides an overview of each reporting entity and its
significant financial transactions. This information is not intended to be comprehensive
or to limit audit scope from future transactions or activities that these entities may
engage in over the term of the.
City of Sacramento – Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”)
The CITY is a charter city established under a council ‐ manager form of government.
The General Fund budget is approximately $478 million per year. Cash and investments,
including amounts held by component units, the pension trust fund, and agency funds,
totaled $1,547 million at June 30, 2018. The CITY’s outstanding long‐term debt is
approximately $2,654 million. General Fund total fund balance, at June 30, 2018,
exceeded 33% of General Fund revenue and transfers in.
The CITY’s Basic Financial Statements are included along with combining statements in
the CITY’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The CITY has consistently been
awarded the Government Finance Officers Association (“GFOA”) Certificate of
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Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting and intends to continue to apply for
this certificate during the fiscal years covered by this proposal. CONTRACTOR is not
required to provide special assistance to the CITY to meet the requirements of that
program.
The CITY reports to the Sacramento City Financing Authority and the Sacramento Public
Financing Authority as blended component units. The CITY reports to the Sacramento
City Employees’ Retirement System and Successor Agency to the Redevelopment
Agency of the CITY as fiduciary‐type component unites.
City of Sacramento ‐ Single Audit
The CITY expended $21.4 million of federal awards during the 2017‐18 fiscal year,
including five major programs. These programs were the Capitalization Grants for
Drinking Water State Revolving Funds, Highway Planning and Construction, and
Homeland Security Grant. Information about several state grants is presented as
footnote disclosures in the CITY’s Single Audit report.
Sacramento City Employees’ Retirement System (“SCERS”) – Financial Statements
SCERS is a single employer pension plan sponsored and administered by the CITY. SCERS
is reported as a pension trust fund in the CITY’s CAFR. The system has been closed to
new employees since 1977. As of June 30, 2018, there were 11 active employees and
1,029 total plan members. An independent actuarial evaluation is obtained annually to
measure the system’s pension benefit obligation. As of June 30, 2018, the SCERS funding
ratio was 88% and investments of $282 million were invested through pools managed
by the CITY’s Treasurer’s Office.
Sacramento Convention and Visitors Bureau (“Visit Sacramento”) – Financial Statements
Visit Sacramento is a non‐profit organization whose membership is comprised of local
businesses and interested parties. The CITY and County of Sacramento have ex‐officio
members.
Annual revenues include approximately $11.6 million in contributions, program income,
and assessments collected within the Sacramento Tourism Marketing District (“STMD”).
Activities include promotion and tourist services. Assets of $3.5 million, as of June 30,
2018, were primarily cash, STMD receivables, and an office building. There is a bank loan
on the office building.
Visit Sacramento’s cash is pooled in the CITY’s treasury. Financial transactions are
processed through the CITY’s PeopleSoft financial system, except for payroll which is
processed by a third‐party service provider. However, since the Visit Sacramento is not a
component unit of the CITY, inclusion of Visit Sacramento’s activities in the CITY’s CAFR
is limited to the investment trust fund.
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Child Development Program ‐ Financial Statements and State Required Supplemental
Information
The CITY operates the 4th R childcare program funded by participant fees and subsidies
from the State Department of Education. Although this program is reported in the CITY’s
CAFR as an enterprise fund, a program audit is required to meet Department of
Education requirements.
City of Sacramento – Performance Audit of City’s Measure U Sales Tax Fund
Measure U is a general tax, and the revenue it produces goes in the City’s General Fund
and can be used for any municipal purpose. Measure U funds could be used to build and
bolster an inclusive economy, grow jobs and provide housing that is affordable to all.
Although Measure U fund is reported in the City’s CAFR as major governmental fund, a
performance audit is recommended to confirm that the City used Measure U sales tax
proceeds in conformance with the provisions listed in the Measure U ballot language.
D.

Communication with Management
CONTRACTOR shall communicate with the reporting entities’ management and those
charged with governance in accordance with applicable auditing standards. The
CONTRACTOR shall be available for presentations to the reporting entities’
management, council, and other governing boards as requested.
CONTRACTOR shall present an immediate, written report of all irregularities and illegal
acts, or indications of illegal acts of which they become aware, to the CITY’s Finance
Director and City Manager.

E.

Working Paper Retention and Access to Working Papers
CONTRACTOR must retain all working papers and reports made by CONTRACTOR
pursuant to this Agreement, at the CONTRACTORS’ expense, for a minimum of three (3)
years after the expiration of the Agreement unless CITY extends this retention period by
providing written notification of the extension to the CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall
make the working papers and reports available to the following party or their
designee’s, upon the party or their designee’s request:



City of Sacramento
Auditors of entities for which the CITY is a sub‐recipient of grant funds

In addition, the CONTRACTOR shall respond to the reasonable inquiries of successor
auditors and allow successor auditors to review the working papers and reports relating
to the subject matter herein.
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F.

Additional Indemnity
In addition to the provisions of section 10 of Exhibit D of the Agreement, “Liabilities”
shall include cyber‐related liabilities, including theft, loss or misuse of data, release of
private information and responsibility for any associated costs, fines, and penalties that
CITY may incur.

G.

Cyber Liability Insurance
CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain during the duration of the Agreement cyber
liability insurance providing coverage with limits not less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence or claim. Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and
obligations as is undertaken by Contractor under this Agreement and shall include, but
not be limited to, claims involving infringement of intellectual property, including but
not limited to infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy
violations, information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic information,
release of private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and
network security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as
regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits sufficient
to respond to these obligations. The City shall be named as an additional insured under
the policy.

H.

Crime Insurance
CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain during the duration of the Agreement crime
insurance providing a Third‐Party Crime Coverage Policy to insure against loss of money,
securities, or other property referred to hereunder which may result from employee
dishonesty, forgery or alteration, theft, disappearance and destruction, computer fraud,
and burglary and robbery with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence. The
policy shall endorse the City of Sacramento as loss payee. Furthermore, policy shall
include or be endorsed to include Client Property Coverage.

Page 29 of 130

COPY

Attachment 2 to Exhibit A
City of Sacramento - Request for Proposals for Auditing Services

ATTACHMENT 1
PROPOSAL COVER SHEET
FOR:
PROFESSIONAL AUDITING SERVICES
RFP No. P19061311001

CITY OF SACRAMENTO
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
Information Must Be Received Prior To 5:00 P.M. on Friday, March 29, 2019.

Submit Proposals To: City of Sacramento, Finance Department
Attn: Osvaldo Lopez
RFP No. P19061311001
915 I STREET, 4th Floor
Sacramento, CA 95814
NAME AND ADDRESS OF VENDOR SUBMITTING THIS INFORMATION:
Name of Vendor:
Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP (MGO)
____________________________________________________________________
Contact Person:
Kevin Starkey , Partner
____________________________________________________________________
Address:
____________________________________________________________________
3000 S Street, Suite 300, Sacramento 95816
Phone Number:
____________________________________________________________________
916.928.7048
Email:
kstarkey@mgocpa.com
____________________________________________________________________
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COPY

Innovation.
Experience.
Expertise.

MARCH 29, 2019
PREPARED FOR YOU BY:
Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP
Kevin Starkey, CPA/PARTNER
Richard Green, CPA/PARTNER
3000 S Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95816
916.642.7048

PROPOSAL FOR AUDITING SERVICES

Page 32 of 130

Page 33 of 130

CITY OF SACRAMENTO

Table of Contents
SECTION A

Transmittal Letter.............................................................. i
SECTION B

Technical Qualifications ................................................... 1
SECTION C

Specific Audit Approach................................................... 9
SECTION D

Attachments ................................................................... 21
Attachment 2 - Professional External Audit Services Client
References......................................................................................... 21
Attachment 3 - Proposal Signature Form...................................... 26
Attachment 4 - Insurance................................................................. 27
Attachment 5 - Peer Review............................................................ 36
Attachment 6 - Local Business Enterprise..................................... 38
Attachment 7 - License..................................................................... 42
Attachment 8 - Resumes ................................................................. 43
Attachment 9 - Approach to GASB Standards............................... 55
Attachment 10
Addendum #1........................................................................... 58
Addendum #2........................................................................... 59

Page 34 of 130

Page 35 of 130

SECTION A

Transmittal Letter

Page 36 of 130

Page 37 of 130

SECTION A | Transmittal Letter

March 29, 2019
City of Sacramento
Osvaldo Lopez, Financial Service Manager
915 I Street, 4th Floor
Sacramento, CA 95814
olopez@cityofsacramento.org
Dear Mr. Lopez:
On behalf of Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP (MGO), I am pleased to present our proposal to provide
financial statement audit services to the City of Sacramento (City) for the year ending June 30, 2019,
with the option of auditing its financial statements for each of the four subsequent fiscal years, to
be exercised at the sole discretion of the City, as described in the Request for Proposal.
Below is an overview of why we believe MGO is best qualified to serve the City of Sacramento.

Innovative Audit Approach
MGO is at the forefront of incorporating transformational audit techniques supported by stateof the-art technologies into its audit methodology. The use of data mining software forms the
foundation of our data driven audit approach that incorporates analytical procedures that allows
us to analyze both structured and unstructured data and, where applicable, analyze entire
populations of data significantly increasing the effectiveness and efficiency of our testing. As a
result of our years of commitment to the development of intelligent and efficient audit approaches,
MGO is one of the prominent firms to join the AICPA and Caseware International in developing
the Dynamic Audit Solution Methodology Tool. While striving to reach the ultimate goal of fully
implementing data science, the current state of our innovative approach to auditing ensures the
highest degree of quality and efficiency while delivering responsive and timely service to our
clients.

Experience
MGO’s State and Local Governmental practice is one of the largest in the United States. Our firm
has served as the independent auditor to eight of the top ten largest California cities including the
City of Los Angeles, the second largest city in the United States (U.S.). In addition to our California
cities, we have served the top ten largest California counties including the County of Los Angeles,
the largest county in the U.S. As part of our governmental practice, our depth of experience
extends into performing federal compliance audits under the Uniform Guidance requirements. In
2017, MGO audited approximately $108 billion dollars in federal expenditures made by California
governments. This includes MGO performing the Statewide Federal Compliance Audit for the State
of California, the largest federal compliance audit in the U.S. Also, as the preferred service provider
to the largest governments in California, MGO has gained extensive experience in auditing financial
statements produced by complex financial reporting systems.

Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP
3000 S Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95816
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Expertise
The City requires a firm with a deep bench of trained governmental auditors/advisors with subject
matter expertise that can proactively identify complex issues, provide solutions and best practices
to enhance internal control and operating effectiveness. MGO is uniquely qualified to meet this
requirement with over 125 full-time professionals dedicated to serving the largest and most
complex governments in California.
Our Firm expertise is nationally recognized through our active involvement with the national
accounting and auditing standard setters. MGO representatives have seats on the AICPA’s State
and Local Government Expert Panel, the Executive Committee for the AICPA Governmental Audit
Quality Center, AICPA Government Performance and Accountability Committee (GPAC) and various
GASB Advisory Committees and Task Forces. Our active involvement with the national standard
setters results in the City having a “voice” in the standard setting process on emerging issues that
impact the financial reporting and audit process.

Commitment to Client Service
In addition to fulfilling our responsibilities as an “independent auditor”, MGO is committed
to uncompromising client service and views its clients as true business partners. As such, we
establish a collaborative relationship that result in MGO developing clear expectations, effective
management of workflow, flexibility and meeting agreed-upon deadlines - no excuses, no last
minute requests. In addition, MGO will draw upon our public sector experience and participation
on the AICPA State and Local Government Expert Panel to provide technical guidance necessary
to navigate through emerging issues associated with the implementation of new accounting and
financial reporting standards.
We confirm our understanding of the scope of services we are to provide for the City and are
committed to performing the services as requested within the prescribed time period. MGO is
committed to providing all staff and any other resources required to perform all services and
deliverables as described in the Request for Proposal for Auditing Services. Also, I acknowledge
receipt of all addendums to the P19061311001. This proposal is firm and irrevocable for a period
of not less than ninety (90) days from date of submission. If you have any questions, or if I can of
assistance, I can be reached at 916.642.7048 or kstarkey@mgocpa.com.

Kevin Starkey							
Partner								
3000 S Street, Suite 300					
Sacramento, CA 95816						
Fax:916.928.2755						
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Independence

MGO is independent of the City and all of its component units and meets the independence standards, due
professional care, and quality control requirements of the AICPA and Government Auditing Standards, 2011
revision, published by the U.S. Government Accountability Office (GAO).
Should you appoint us to be your independent auditors, we will discuss in advance with you any professional
relationships being contemplated during the period of our engagement, which may present a potential conflict of
interest. In the event we believe such relationship presents a conflict of interest, we will not enter into it.
In the event MGO engages in any professional relationship involving the City or any of its component units or
related agencies during the period of this agreement, the City will receive written notice immediately.
MGO was previously contracted by the City to perform the audit of its financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2013. All contracted work and reports related to MGO’s previous professional relationship with the City
have been completed and issued and does not constitute a conflict of interest relative to performing the proposed
audit.

Licensed to Practice in California

MGO and all key professional staff assigned to the engagement are properly licensed by the State of California to
practice as Certified Public Accountants. MGO meets all requirements imposed by federal, state and local laws,
rules, and regulation. Please refer to Attachment 7 on page 42 for a copy of our license.

Firm Qualifications and Experience

FAST FACTS

Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP (MGO), a California limited liability partnership,
is a Certified Public Accounting firm. We have a staff of approximately
350 professionals, including 125 governmental audit and advisory staff,
with offices located throughout California and New York. MGO has been
providing auditing, advisory, and financial management-related services
since its inception in 1987. Drawing from our years of experience, MGO
has a thorough understanding of public agencies and their need for
transparency and accountability to their constituents.

MGO HAS THE LARGEST TEAM OF

Firm History

DEPTH OF LOCAL RESOURCES

GOVERNMENT AUDIT EXPERTS IN
CALIFORNIA—BAR NONE.
MGO WAS FOUNDED IN

SACRAMENTO

YOUR MGO TEAM LIVES
AND WORKS RIGHT HERE.

MGO is consistently ranked among the fastest growing CPA firms in the
nation and our State and Local Government Practice (SLG) is one of the
largest in the country, offering unmatched resources in serving this highly
complex sector. As the professional service provider for numerous public
agencies throughout California, MGO has established an excellent working
relationship with our clients and delivers quality products in a timely
manner with an insightful perspective on ways to improve service delivery.
We take our commitment to “good government” seriously. Our experience
encompasses working with counties, cities, state agencies, special districts,
private firms, and the world’s largest public pension system
The City of Sacramento will be considered a premiere client of MGO and our
Sacramento office which will result in being served by our most experience
professionals dedicated to quality work and excellent service.
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Staffing Locally

The proposed audit team members are all full-time members of our firm. The audit team will be staffed from our
Sacramento office and include the following: 4 Partners, 3 Managers, 2 IT Consultants, and 3 Senior Associates. All
management members of the engagement team serving the City are licensed Certified Public Accountants in the
State of California.
Services to the City will be provided by professional staff primarily from the following office:
Sacramento Office
3000 S Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95816
916.928.4600

Quality Control Review

MGO’s commitment to performing quality assurance work has been recognized by our clients and the national
standards setters. Under AICPA standards and Government Auditing Standards, public accounting firms are
required to engage another firm to conduct a Peer Review of their accounting and auditing practice every three
years. MGO is a member of the AICPA Peer Review Program, which has rigorous qualification requirements for
Peer Review firms. In order to ensure the quality of Peer Reviews, the AICPA requires the Peer Review firm to
submit all of its workpapers to the AICPA for technical review and approval. The quality of our State and Local
Government Industry practice is evident by the results of the most recent Peer Review of our system of quality
control for the firm’s accounting and auditing practice. Engagements selected for review included engagements
performed under Government Auditing Standards, including compliance audits under the Single Audit Act. The
Peer Review report, which is included as an attachment to our proposal, concluded that the firm’s system of
quality control for the accounting and auditing practice in effect for the year ended March 31, 2018, has been
suitably designed and complied with to provide the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in
conformity with applicable professional standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass
with deficiency(ies) or fail. MGO received the highest level rating of pass. The results of this and prior Peer Reviews
provide independent validation of our commitment to providing quality assurance services. Please refer to our
2018 Peer Review Report on page 36.

Results of Federal and State Quality Control Field Reviews and Desk Reviews

During the past three (3) years, federal and state quality control field reviews and desk reviews of our audits were
conducted and the results are summarized below:
• During 2016, the Office of Inspector General of the United States Department of Health and Human Services
conducted a Quality Control Review (QCR) of the State of California single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2015. Our QCR report received a “Pass” rating, which means that the audit documentation contains no quality
deficiencies or only minor quality deficiencies that do not require corrective action for the audit under review
or future audits. The Council of Inspectors General on Integrity and Efficiency’s Guide for QCRs of single audits
provides a methodology for conducting and rating auditors’ work. The guide provides three possible ratings:
pass; pass with deficiencies; and fail.
• During July 2018, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) conducted a QCR of three
financial and single audits of entities that receive HUD grants. The QCR reports concluded that the firm’s audits
were in compliance with applicable generally accepted auditing standards in the United States of America and
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the firm correctly
applied the Uniform Guidance in identifying major programs for the single audit, and the firm documented and
performed adequate procedures to address the audit objectives in the OMB Compliance Supplement.
• During March 2018, the U.S. Department of Transportation, Office of Inspector General, conducted a QCR of a
single audit of a transportation agency that receives DOT grants. The QCR report concluded that the firm’s audit
work complied with the requirements of the Single Audit Act, the Uniform Guidance and DOT’s major program
requirements and the firm was assigned an overall rating of “Pass”.
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• During 2016-2018, the State Controller’s Office of the State of California conducted desk reviews of single audit
reports submitted to it in its role as the pass-through grantor agency of federal awards to local governments.
Most of the firm’s reports are accepted without further action. A minor number of the firm’s reports require
further clarification of matters noted in the reports or resubmission to correct minor items identified as a
result of the reviews, but none of the matters noted required any additional audit procedures or resulted in an
ultimate rejection of the audit reports.

Disciplinary Action

There have been no disciplinary actions taken or pending against the firm during the past three (3) years with
federal or state regulatory bodies or professional organizations.

Partner, Supervisory and Staff Qualifications and
Experience

We have assembled a group of key professionals that possess a firm grasp auditing state and local governmental
entities, as well as having the maturity, experience and confidence required for this engagement. All key members
of the engagement leadership team assigned to the City's audits are employed on a full-time basis by MGO. The
engagement team represents the strong, balanced blend of talent, professional skills and industry experience that
are most critical to working effectively with you.
The organization chart of the engagement team below, was structured in a manner that recognizes the
decentralized nature of the City and its operations. Also, the teams were amassed in consideration of the
unique aspects and complexity of the various entities and nature of the services, coupled with the expertise and
background of the respective engagement team members. Resumes for each key professional assigned to the
City’s engagement are provided in Attachment 8 on pages 43-54.

Engagement Team

CITY OF SACRAMENTO
RESOURCES

Richard Green, CPA

Kevin Starkey, CPA

CLIENT SERVICE PARTNER
GOVERNMENT INDUSTRY LEADER

LEAD ENGAGEMENT PARTNER

David Bullock, CPA

GOVERNMENT RESOURCE
PARTNER

Caroline Walsh, CPA

Craig Harner, CPA
MANAGER
SCERS

Russell Robertson, CPA
MANAGER
CAFR, SINGLE AUDIT, AND
MEASURE U

Bunty Khetan, CPA
MANAGER

SCVB AND CHILD DEVELOPMEMT

PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS
REVIEW PARTNER

Mark Cousineau

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
DIRECTOR

Jasmine Costa

Chai Saechao

SENIOR ASSOCIATE
SCERS

Kathleen Foster, CPA
SENIOR ASSOCIATE

CAFR, SINGLE AUDIT, AND
MEASURE U

MGO PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATES

Misgana Habtezion

SENIOR ASSOCIATE
SCVB AND CHILD DEVELOPMEMT

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
MANAGER
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A NATIONAL FOOTPRINT

MGO is proud to be on the Top 100 list of Inside Public Accounting and several other
publications. But more importantly, we’re at the top of one very relevant list: MGO is the
#1 auditor of large government agencies in the State of California. While there are certainly
larger firms with thousands of CPAs serving dozens of industries around the globe, MGO
invests in more full-time, year-round government audit experts in California than any other
firm.
Because of our long-term involvement and national and state liaisons, we are the firm best
positioned to keep you up to date on changing accounting and auditing standards – and we
will. Our record of thought leadership includes working with:

Auditing Standard Setters

• In 2017, David Bullock, was appointed to the State and Local Government Expert Panel
(EP). The EP is a fifteen person nationwide panel responsible for addressing practice and
emerging issues in the public sector and serves as the profession’s primary liaison to the
GASB and regulators such as the U.S. Government Accountability Office and the U.S. Office
of Management and Budget. As an EP member, MGO reviewed and offered revisions to the
pension guidance provided to auditors in the AICPA’s Audit and Accounting Guide (Guide)
for State and Local Governments. Prior participation includes Caroline Walsh, MGO’s
Chief Quality Officer, appointment from October 2006 through September 2009, who
participated in the review of the 2008 and 2009 Guides for Statement Local Governments
and Government Auditing Standards and Circular A-133.
• In 2012, Richard Green was appointed to the AICPA State and Local Government Expert Panel Pension Comment
Letter Task Force, which reviewed the issued Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) exposure drafts
on pension accounting and reporting for employers and benefit plans.
• In 2009, Caroline Walsh chaired the EP task force for the GASB’s Invitation to Comment on Pension Accounting
and Financial Reporting and presented testimony to GASB on behalf of the AICPA. As a former member of the
EP, she was invited to serve as an EP task force member to review and comment on the GASB’s exposure draft,
which codiﬁes pre-November 30, 1989 accounting standards.
• MGO is a member of the AICPA Governmental Audit Quality Center (GAQC). The GAQC was established in 2004
and its primary purpose is to provide resources to promote high quality governmental audits. To demonstrate
our commitment to quality auditing practices, MGO was one of the first firms in the U.S. to join the GAQC.
• In 2011, Caroline Walsh was appointed to the Executive Committee of the AICPA GAQC and served on the
committee through 2014.

Accounting Standard Setters

• In 2015, David Bullock, Partner, was appointed to the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB)
Financial Reporting Model Reexamination Task Force. The task force is comprised of a diverse group of users,
preparers, and auditors of government financial statements. The objective of the task force is to provide
perspective to GASB members on project issues that arise during the development of the guidance over the
financial reporting model.
• In 2012, Caroline Walsh was appointed to GASB’s GAAP Hierarchy Advisory Committee, which provides input to
GASB on its GAAP Hierarchy Project. This project considered possible modifications to the GAAP hierarchy. It reexamined the hierarchy levels to assess whether the standards-setting process and the governmental ﬁnancial
reporting environment have sufficiently evolved since the establishment of the original hierarchy by the AICPA
in 1992. In June 2015, the GASB issued the final statement for the standard (GASB Statement No. 75). Exposure
Draft on the Comprehensive Implementation Guidance, which is now proposed to be category level B GAAP.
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Continuing Professional Education of Employees

We strive to keep our professionals current with the ever-changing educational requirements of public accounting.
MGO has developed a robust training program to ensure our clients are served by the most experienced and
trained professionals possible.
In compliance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, our firm administers a
program to ensure that all professional staff meets continuing professional education (CPE) requirements. Since
a large composition of MGO’s client base includes governmental entities, we are aware of the strict educational
guidelines required by Government Auditing Standards. All members of the audit team have satisfied these
requirements, having at least 80 hours of continuing professional education every two years, of which 24 must
directly relate to the government environment and to government accounting and auditing standards.
Refer to resumes on pages 43-54 for the key engagement team members' qualifications, public sector auditing
experience, and membership in professional organizations relevant to the performance of the various audits.

Availability of Key Personnel

It is our firm’s policy to have our leadership team and subject matter experts hands-on throughout the audit.
This policy will ensure your access to someone very knowledgeable of your operations throughout the duration
of our professional contract. Experienced auditors who can offer quality recommendations and support the
City's management as requested in analyzing difficult financial matters will assure you of a quality audit. Each key
team member proposed on the engagement has made a personal commitment to serve the City and will spend
significant time on-site to supervise staff and promote a smooth audit process.

Commitment to Maintain Staffing Continuity

Continuity of professional personnel is an important element in our service plan for the City. Excessive personnel
turnover, particularly at the staff level, sometimes creates confusion for client personnel and necessitates a
series of “start-up” periods while new personnel becomes familiar with the engagement. To ensure that the City's
personnel derive maximum benefit from their working relationships with our people, we will continue to maintain
the highest possible level of staff continuity throughout the course of the engagement.

Personnel Changes

MGO understands that engagement partners, directors, managers, other supervisory staff and specialists may be
changed if those personnel leave the firm, are promoted, or are assigned to another office. If a personnel change
is required, we will make a replacement available with equal or better qualifications and continue to ensure the
seamless transition. Furthermore, if personnel change for other reasons, we will seek the express prior written
permission of the City and hold that the City retains the right to approve or reject replacements.
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Prior Engagements with the City of Sacramento

MGO was contracted to perform work for fiscal year 2013. The following engagements were completed and
reports issued prior to January 31, 2014.

Scope of Work

Dates

CAFR, Single Audit, SCERS,

Fiscal Year

SCVB, Child Development

2013

Engagement

Total

Partner

Hours

Richard Green

1,953

Location of Office

Client Contact

3000 S Street, Suite 300

Osvaldo Lopez

Sacramento, CA 95816

916.808.5845

Similar Engagements with Other
Government Entities

FAST FACTS
CITY EXPERIENCE

MGO HAS AUDITED

Serving Large Complex Local Governments

Our firm’s State and Local Governmental practice is one of the largest in the
U.S. and offers unmatched resources in serving this highly complex sector, with
specialists dedicated to providing year-round services since 1987. In California,
our local government specialists have served over 100 cities, 15 counties and
more than 200 special purpose units of government. MGO has audited 8 out
of the top 10 cities in California, including the City of Los Angeles, the second
largest city in the United States. In addition, MGO also served as the principal
auditors for 10 of the top 10 largest counties in California, including the County
of Los Angeles, the largest county in the United States.
A representative list of significant engagements performed that demonstrates
our experience and expertise in serving entities of similar size and complexity is
indicated below.

8

OF THE
TOP

LARGEST CITIES
IN CALIFORNIA

COUNTY EXPERIENCE

MGO HAS AUDITED

The Top 10
LARGEST COUNTIES
IN CALIFORNIA

Engagement
Client

Scope

Years Served

Partner /

10

Total Hours

Director

Principal Client
Contact

DeAnna Christensen
City of Modesto

CAFR, Single Audit, TDA

2015

Scott Brunner

3,700

209.577.5387

CAFR, Single Audit, TDA, GANN AUP

1998 - Current

Scott Brunner

2,000

CAFR, Single Audit

1992 - 2017

Kevin Starkey

1,700

Unit Audits

2018

Kevin Starkey

1,300

510.874.1613

CAFR, Single Audit, GANN AUP

2004 - 2017

Scott Brunner

990

209.333.6800

Deborah Bautista
County of Tuolumne
Sacramento Housing
Redevelopment Agency

209.533.5552
Susana Jackson
916.440.1393

CAFR, Single Audit, HUD REAC AUP, and
2 stand Alone Enterprise Component
Oakland Housing Authority

Victor Madamba

Ruby Paiste
City of Lodi
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Enterprise Fund Operations
Similar to the City's major enterprise funds, MGO has served over 200 governmental entities that are either
separate funds or component units of the general-purpose or operate as a stand-alone entity. Our experience
spans all enterprise industries, including Water, Wastewater, Solid Waste, and Sewer operations. Many of these
operations have robust capital improvement plans with large capital projects financed by debt, grants and
contributions, and discretionary sources.

Water Operations
• Alameda County Water District

Solid Waste / Landfill
• Sacramento Regional Solid Waste Authority

• Contra Costa Water District

• City of Mountain View Solid Waste Fund

• Metropolitan Water District of Southern California

• City of Sunnyvale Solid Waste Management Fund

• San Diego County Water Authority

• Miramor Landfill

• Santa Clara Valley Water District

• Orange County Waste & Recycling

• Sonoma County Water Agency

• Western Placer Waste Management Authority

• State of California, Department of Water Resources (DWR)
• State of California DWR Electric Power Fund

Wastewater Operations
• City of San Diego Public Utilities
• City of San Jose Wastewater Plant
• Fallbrook Public Utility District
• Orange County Sanitation District
• Sonoma County Sanitation District
• Triunfo Sanitation District

Single Audit

As a result of MGO serving as independent auditor to many governments in California, our professionals have
developed extensive experience performing high quality compliance audits. These audits have been performed
in accordance with the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (commonly called "Uniform Guidance"). MGO has
proven experience in serving the largest and most complex federal programs in California. In 2017, MGO audited
approximately $108 billion dollars in federal expenditures made by California governments. This includes MGO
performing the Statewide Federal Compliance Audit for the State of California, the largest federal compliance audit
in the United States.
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MGO's Financial Statement Audit Approach
Audits of the Future - Dynamic Audit Solution Initiatives

“Technology is poised to disrupt auditing as we know it,” said Barry C. Melancon, CPA, CGMA, president and CEO
of the AICPA. The traditional audit approach can no longer support the growing need for technologies to do audits
smarter, more efficient and provide value-added services for our clients. MGO is one of the leading firms that
joined the AICPA and CaseWare International to develop a transformational auditing methodology supported by a
state-of the-art technology platform. An estimate of $50 million has been committed to develop the new Dynamic
Audit Solution (DAS) methodology. The plan is to develop a dynamic, flexible and scalable platform that uses
the power of automation, data analytics and updated methodologies to transform auditing as we know it. The
vision of the project is to be able to have intelligent audit programs, real-time client collaboration through a cloud
environment to avoid duplicating information and having dynamic dashboards to track audit status for both the
engagement team and the clients.

Through our participation in the DAS project, MGO has been reengineering the way we approach audits. With the
assistance of technology, we are already training our team members to have the analytical mindset to conduct a
more data driven audit. We are using data analytics throughout the different phases of the audit and assist our
clients with creating smart financial statements.

Applying Data Science

For years, the audit approach of most firms has remained the same with little to no innovation towards making
external financial audits more effective, timely, and efficient. Over the past fifteen years, we have been actively
involved in reviewing enhanced approaches for the future of auditing. These discussions have allowed us to
internally review our audit processes and techniques for more efficient and cost effective audits. With the
application of data science, we have been able to consider potential financial scenarios and develop expectations
that allow us to accurately pinpoint exceptions in the City’s financial environment; thus providing a higher level of
reliance that audit objectives are being accomplished.

Understanding of City’s Operations

Going beyond the traditional approach of doing high level comparison of preliminary financial data with prior year
information during planning stage of the audit, we dive into the operational activities at the transaction level and
apply substantive data mining procedures, to summarize information for patterns, trends and identification of
anomalies. This big data analytical approach drives our development of tailored audit procedures based on high
risk areas increasing the effectiveness and efficiency of the audit process.
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Using data mining software such as CaseWare IDEA will allow us to evaluate large subsets of data for
reasonableness and identification of outliers. To illustrate, the following are two significant audit areas where we
apply data mining and analytic procedures on 100% of the population:

Payroll

• Examine payment frequency for transactions occurring prior to or after the fiscal period, transaction volume by
day of the week pay periods and month
• Examine top paid employees by department
• Review weekend transactions for anomalies
• Identify ghost employees by comparing actual payments with HR records
• Performing trend analysis of overtime by departments
• Examine large or unusual transactions exceeding planning norms

Vendor payments

• Examine vendors with large or unusual amounts disbursed during the year
• Identify potential conflict of interest by matching employee master file with vendor master file using common
fields (such as address or name)
• Identify new vendors added to the master file and examine any unusual large payments
• Identifying payments to inactive or seldom used vendors
• Performing fraud risk assessment through Benford’s Law Analysis
• Identifying checks issued on City holidays or weekend

MGO's General Financial Statement Audit Approach
Our audit approach is built upon our extensive experience serving California local governments. Our knowledge
enables us to focus our effort on the areas of greatest audit risk and minimizes the time required of City staff
related to the financial statement and compliance audits. Professionals with direct experience auditing cities and
other governmental entities lead all phases of our audit.

From a project management perspective, MGO understands that the City CAFR, Single Audit, Child Development
Program, Employees' Retirement System, and Measure U audits will be centrally planned and coordinated
with City Finance personnel. However, SCVB is a separate stand-alone entity, not part of the City’s reporting
entity, with a separate and distinct governing body. MGO will coordinate directly with management from SCVB
establishing expectations regarding the specific timeline and information required to efficiently conduct the audit.
From an audit approach and centralized planning perspective, MGO understands that the City’s Peoplesoft system
is the primary financial reporting system for all of the auditable entities. MGO has assigned 3 distinct teams to
attentively serve the City. Our teams will work directly with the various entities, coordinating the audit effort,
arranging meetings with management personnel, and obtaining the necessary audit evidence.
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This section further describes our approach to the services we will provide to the City and details our framework
for planning and performing the audit.

APPROACH

General Audit Approach

01

02

03

04

05

Terms of
Engagement

Information
Gathering

Strategy &
Planning

Execution

Form Opinion
& Reporting

Our approach includes the following phases:

01

TERMS OF ENGAGEMENT

We will audit the City's financial statements and the related notes to the financial statements, and
conduct a single audit on the City's federal awards. Our audit will be performed in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards.
In order to accomplish this goal with minimal disruption to you, it is imperative that communications are
continuous and in a timely manner when obstacles occur or if any issues arise. We consider the City to
be a “Partner” in accomplishing our mutual goal and will develop a work plan, which incorporates the
needs, timing and expectations of the audit from both perspectives.

02

INFORMATION GATHERING

The key element of effective audit planning is a thorough understanding of the auditee‘s operations.
This includes the operating environment, internal accounting control structure, the organizational
structure, and governing legislation. Our experience in serving governmental entities provides us the
knowledge to develop a detailed understanding of these elements. Information gathering includes the
following procedures:
• Determine significant areas or changes to the City‘s organizational structure, relevant laws and
regulations, investments, or accounting and financial reporting requirements.
• Review minutes of the governing body and supporting committees.
• Obtain an understanding of the City‘s accounting controls over the critical transaction streams.
• Meet with appropriate City and representatives of the Audit Committee (if applicable) to acquire
additional knowledge about areas of risk.

03

STRATEGY AND PLANNING

Based on the information gathered, the engagement team will develop an audit plan, which responds to
the areas we have identified as areas of risk as it relates to the financial reporting process. During this
process, we perform the following:
• Assess the risk of improper financial statement presentation by evaluating the financial reporting
process.
• Continually reassess the City‘s processes as we become aware of additional risk areas.
• Develop audit procedures to address our risk assessment.
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04

EXECUTION

Based on the information gathered in the risk assessment process, we will perform:
• Tests on the general internal controls.
• Analytical procedures to identify unusual or unique transactions and balances and to determine
those amounts are properly recorded in the financial statements.
• Other substantive procedures over the significant account balances transaction streams

05

FORM OPINION AND REPORTING

The key element in this phase is to receive timely and accurate information. This eliminates unnecessary
work for all parties involved.
This phase includes:
• The Manager and Partner review to verify that the financial statements are presented in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
• Our technical reviewer also reviews the reports to provide a “fresh” and “cold” review.
• MGO will issue our opinions upon completion of our reporting process, including receipt of the
management representation letter.

Sampling Approach

Audit sampling is the application of an audit procedure to less than 100% of the items within an account
balance, class of transactions, or compliance requirement for the purpose of evaluating the value of the balance,
transaction class, or extent of compliance. Substantive test (“variables”) sampling provides a technique for
estimating the extent of monetary misstatement in a class of transactions, account balances, or noncompliance
with a compliance requirement. It can also be used for estimating the amount of a population. It answers the
question, “How much?” rather than “How many?” As in sampling for attributes (such as the operation of a control),
and is normally used to help decide if a balance is materially misstated. Sampling can be very useful in performing
substantive tests on, for example, inventory or accounts receivable. Sampling is sometimes also used for
determining sample sizes for substantive tests of recorded transactions (e.g., vouching of sales, purchases).
The application of sampling requires significant auditor judgment in areas such as:
• Considering audit approaches other than using audit sampling
• Defining the population and defining the sampling item
• Assessing the overall risk level for related control, analytical procedures and risk assessment activities
• Determining materiality as a base for calculating the tolerable misstatement (error)
• Selecting items for 100% examination
• Determining the sample size, considering factors such as:
1.

Expected misstatement (errors) to be found

2.

The effect of other tests on the account being tested

MGO encourages the use of statistical sampling whenever practical especially for substantive tests. We use two
primary substantive statistical sampling techniques - PPS (“Probability Proportional to Size”) sampling and SRS
(“Stratified Random Sampling”). We generally first remove all individual items in excess of 90% of the tolerable
misstatement from the population for 100% examination prior to selecting a sample, for both PPS and SRS
samples.
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When performing single audits, we have found that an effective approach is to perform tests of controls that
involve sampling simultaneously with tests of compliance with major programs related laws and regulations and
terms and conditions of the grant award (a dual-purpose test). Audit procedures designed to test compliance
with applicable laws and regulations will simultaneously test the operating effectiveness of the relevant control
activities designed to ensure compliance. If dual-purpose tests are planned, the sample size for a dual purpose
test of controls and compliance will usually be the larger of the one that would be used if the control and
compliance samples were tested separately. When using a dual-purpose sample for both internal control and
compliance testing, we align the objectives of the test to the same sampling unit and population to ensure the
population from which the sample is selected is appropriate for the specific audit objectives.

Analytical Procedures

Auditing standards require the use of analytical procedures in the planning and overall review stages of the audit.
They may be used throughout the audit:
• To direct our attention during the planning stage to areas where amounts appear unusual to the extent that we
are put on warning that a material amount may be misstated
• To provide an important source of audit evidence at the execution stage or substantive analytical procedure
• In forming an opinion on the financial statements by assessing the overall reasonableness of these statements
Preliminary Analytical Reviews – assists in planning the nature, timing, and extent of auditing procedures that
will be used to obtain evidential matter for specific account balances or classes of transactions. To accomplish
this, we focus on enhancing our understanding of the client’s business and the transactions and events that have
occurred since the last audit date and identifying areas that may represent specific risks relevant to the audit.
Substantive Analytical Procedures (SAPs) – essentially involve a comparison of an amount in the financial
statements with what we would expect that amount to be based on our knowledge of the organization and having
regard to other audit evidence.
Our work should normally involve utilizing the following techniques:
• Using IDEA to extract data and prepare subsequent analysis
• Determining whether there is a valid relationship between the items being compared (e.g., between interest
and interest bearing balances)
• Disaggregating information to compute ratios separately, percentages and amounts for different funds
• Considering the quality of the data being used in the procedure factoring whether we tested the data and the
source of the data
Overall Analytical Review – assists in assessing the conclusions reached and in the evaluation of the overall
financial statement presentation. We use a wide variety of analytical procedures for this purpose. The overall
review would generally include reading the financial statements and notes and considering the adequacy of
evidence gathered in response to unusual or unexpected balances identified during the planning phase or
unexpected balances or relationships that were not previously identified.
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Assessing Control Risk
Our Proven 4-step Approach to Evaluate
Internal Control and Assessing Control
Risk
During the Strategy & Planning and Execution
phases of the audit, we will consider the
City's internal control over financial reporting
and compliance to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements.

01

01

02

03

Risk Assessment

Entity Level
Controls

Transaction Level
Control Assessment

Risk Assessment
SUMMARY

02

In Step 1, the financial statement risk assessment,
audit plan, roles and responsibilities, and
communication protocols are developed
collectively with engagement team members.

•

•
•
•
•

03

Identify financial reporting risks (including fraud)
via brainstorming sessions and interviews
Determine financial statement account risks by
analyzing quantitative and qualitative factors,
including the review of interim financial statements
as available and budgetary documents
Identify relevant assertions and related risks
Review and evaluate the City's internal control
system and risk assessment process to determine
the level of risk and mitigating controls
Establish status reporting and communication
protocols
Develop audit plans

•
•
•

•
•
•

14

Identify key financial reporting controls
Perform walkthroughs to assess design effectiveness
and document results
Evaluate the risk of control failure, considering factors
such as:
• Past errors
• Entity-level controls
• Experience of personnel

Develop/evaluate risk and control matrices of all
key risks related to control points
Perform tests of application controls, as
appropriate
Assess the design of controls

Entity-level Controls
SUMMARY

•
•
•
•
•
•

SUMMARY

ACTIVITIES

Testing &
Reporting

ACTIVITIES

Transaction-level
Control Assessment
During Step 3, the engagement team will identify
significant financial reporting and compliance controls
for higher risk areas. An assessment will be made
as to whether controls are appropriately designed to
mitigate the identified risks and have been placed in
operation.

04

The objective of Step 2 is to evaluate the
City's entity-level control environment and
information technology controls using the
widely accepted COSO evaluation framework, as
applicable. Although not directly involved with
the processing of transactions, these pervasive
controls can have a significant effect on the
financial reporting process.

ACTIVITIES

•

Assessing Control Risk

APPROACH

04

Review appropriate elements of COSO for the
City’s internal control system
Perform Information Technology General Control
(ITGC) review
Document and test entity-level controls via
walkthroughs, interviews and detailed testing
Identify and test general controls over information
technology systems upon which other significant
application controls are dependent
Report key findings and discuss remediation steps
Prepare summary of entity-level controls
(including IT)

Testing and Reporting
SUMMARY

The final stage of our internal controls approach
involves developing and executing a test
plan of the transaction-level key controls. An
assessment is made as to whether the controls
are operating as intended to mitigate the
associated risk. The nature, timing and extent
of testing is correlated with the risk of control
failure determined in Step 3.
ACTIVITIES

•
•
•
•
•

Develop testing strategy and plan for key controls,
including the nature, timing and extent of testing
Execute testing and summarize results
Evaluate whether controls are operating
effectively
Investigate root cause(s) of control weaknesses
Design substantive tests for account balances
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IT Audit Approach

With technology playing an vital role into the day-to-day operations, it’s essential to review the systems that have
significant impact over the financial reporting process in order to rely on the output from the system.
PeopleSoft is utilized for the City’s operations and business processes such as budget control, maintaining
financial records, financial reporting, procurement of goods and services, vendor payments, logistics, and human
resources.
As part of the audit we consider the City's Information Technology General Controls (ITGC) and design audit
procedures to determine our level of reliance on PeopleSoft. Areas of review will include:
• PeopleSoft interfacing with separate systems having a significant impact on financial reporting
• Consistently applied predefined business rules that perform complex calculations in processing large volumes
of transactions or data
• Reporting IT events to management
• Access controls and other security measures
• Controls over the acquisition, implementation, and use of computer programs and data files
• Controls over the operation of computer programs
• Backup and disaster recovery methods
• Determine whether sufficient controls are in place to protect the integrity and reliability of financial data
• Determine the capability of the core financial management system in carrying out financial data processing
• Test the general user access control and backup policy for the core financial management information system
The ITGC considerations are divided into the following sub-sections:
• Organization and Operation - Identification and evaluation of the operational structure to determine
whether there is adequate segregation of duties and functions. In addition, our tools will assist in determining
whether personnel qualifications and controls ensure effective functioning of the City's information technology
resources. This would include the review of backup procedures for all critical files.
• Systems Development Maintenance and Documentation - Determination and evaluation on whether there
are procedures to ensure that the development of new systems and maintenance and changes to existing
systems are appropriately authorized, tested, and implemented. Also, a determination on whether appropriate
documentation exists for the applications.
• Access to Systems and Information - Assessment of the City’s internal controls used to help ensure that the
database, application and client layers are only accessed by authorized personnel. Additionally, an assessment
is made of the financial management applications being used and how they electronically enforce a proper
segregation of duties and maintain the accuracy and integrity of the financial information.
• Hardware and Systems Software - Determination on whether hardware controls provided by the equipment
vendor are used to the appropriate extent and whether systems software is subjected to the same control
procedures as those applied to changing, testing, and implementing applications.
• Communications - Determination and evaluation of the communications hardware, software, and related
controls to ensure all data are authorized, accurately transmitted and reviewed, and sufficiently protected.
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Laws and Regulations Approach

When planning and performing audit procedures and in evaluating and reporting the results thereof, we are
mindful that an illegal act could materially affect the financial statements. Laws and regulations vary considerably
in relation to the financial statements:
Direct and material effect on financial statements – We consider laws and regulations that generally have
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. For example, escheat or
unclaimed property laws, may affect recorded liabilities and revenues and applicable laws and regulations
may affect the amount of revenue accrued under government contracts. However, we consider such laws or
regulations from the perspective of their known relation to audit objectives derived from the related financial
statement assertions rather than from a legal perspective.
Indirect effect on financial statements – The City may be affected by many other laws or regulations,
including those related to occupational safety and health, equal employment, and other violations. Generally,
these laws and regulations relate more to aspects of an organization’s operations than to its financial reporting
and accounting, and their financial statement impact is indirect. We ordinarily do not have sufficient basis for
recognizing possible violations of such laws and regulations. Their indirect impact is normally the result of the
need to disclose a contingent liability because of the allegation or determination of illegality.
Normally, our audit does not include procedures specifically designed to detect illegal acts that indirectly affect the
financial statements. However, the procedures listed below, which may be performed for the purpose of forming
an opinion on the financial statements, may bring possible illegal acts to our attention:
• Understanding of the particular legal framework applicable to the City and its operations
• Inquiring of management and the City's attorneys regarding the accounting for and disclosure of loss
contingencies
• Inquiring of management as to the laws and regulations that may be expected to have a fundamental impact on
the operations of the City
• Discussing with management policies and procedures adopted for identifying, evaluating, and accounting for
litigation, claims, and assessments
• Inspecting relevant documentation and correspondence with licensing or regulatory authorities
• Obtaining written confirmation from management that they have disclosed all events of which they are aware
which involve possible illegal acts, together with any actual contingencies which may arise
• The performance of other substantive procedures
• The Uniform Guidance compliance testing

Pension and OPEB

MGO will closely coordinate with the City the required information necessary to perform specific audit procedures
related to the City’s pension and OPEB liabilities. MGO has extensive experience auditing both government
pension systems and OPEB obligations and follows the suggestive audit procedures contained in the AICPA State
and Local Government Audit and Accounting Guide.
Some of the specific procedures that will be performed are summarized below:
• Obtain actuarial valuation reports used to measure the collective total liability as of the measurement date
• Evaluate whether the methods and assumptions used in determining the total pension & OPEB liabilities are in
accordance with appropriate standards
• Recalculate the mathematical accuracy of total deferred inflows/outflows of resources and related expenses
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Single Audit Approach

Pursuant to the Uniform Guidance, when performing a federal compliance audit, auditors have a responsibility
to evaluate each major federal programs internal control over compliance and determine whether the entity has
complied with the federal statutes, regulations, and terms and conditions of its federal awards that are applicable
to each major federal program. MGO will draw upon our experience and tailored audit approach to serve as the
bedrock for fulﬁlling our audit responsibilities.
We will approach the federal compliance audit in three distinct phases (1) Planning, (2) Execution, and (3) Reporting.
As required by the Uniform Guidance, the phases will include:
1. Assessing federal program risk
2. Determination of major programs
3. Identification of the applicable direct and material compliance requirements
4. Testing those compliance requirements and the related internal controls
5. Testing the accuracy and completeness of the SEFA
6. Preparing and concluding on the severity of any findings
7. Obtaining management responses and corrective action plans
8. Following-up on management’s status of prior year audit findings
9. Issuance of the required auditor’s reports and completion of the relevant auditor’s section of the Data
Collection Form for electronic submission to the Federal audit Clearinghouse
Designing an efficient and effective integrated audit is dependent on an early and accurate risk assessment.
Our approach focuses on significant hands-on involvement of our partners and managers to promote a strong
understanding of the relevant financial reporting and compliance risks. Further, our methodology incorporates a
risk-based framework to assist our engagement teams focus more audit effort in areas where there is a higher risk
of noncompliance. In addition, MGO ensures full compliance with the auditing standards, and represents a robust,
independent assessment of the financial reporting requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Some of the specific procedures and activities contemplated in MGO’s approach to successfully perform the
federal compliance audit and fulﬁll our professional responsibilities are detailed further.

01 PLANNING
Task I: Review the Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal
Awards (SEFA)
Task II: Type A & B Risk
Assessments
Task III: Determination of
Major Programs and Direct
and Material Compliance
Requirements

02 EXECUTION

03 REPORTING

Task I: Identify and Evaluate
Internal Controls over Direct
and Material Compliance
Requirements

Task I: Summarize Results

Task II: Testing of Direct
and Material Compliance
Requirements

Task III: Coordinate and
Submit the Data Collection
Form

Task II: Prepare and Issue
Deliverables
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Late June

Provide final Independent Auditor's Reports for Child Development Program
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Grand Total

Provide final Measure U AUP

Year-end fieldwork

Measure U AUP
On or before December 15

October - November

On or before October 31

June - July
September - October

Year-end fieldwork

September - October
On or before October 31

June - July

On or before December 30

October - December

Interim fieldwork

Child Development Program

Year-end fieldwork
Provide final Independent Auditor's Reports for SCVB

Interim fieldwork

Sacramento Convention and Visitors Bureau

Provide final Independent Auditor's Reports for SCERS

Year-end fieldwork

Interim fieldwork, Treasury

SCERS

On or before March 31

Soon after SEFA provided - March

Year-end fieldwork

Provide final Single Audit Reports

Late July - August

Interim fieldwork

Initial major program assessment

Single Audit
Mid July

On or before December 15

Provide Management Letter

Total City CAFR

On or before December 15

Soon after provided

October - November

Provide final Independent Auditor's Reports on City CAFR and basic financial statements

Review client-prepared CAFR

Reporting and Wrap-up

Year-end fieldwork

Substantive Testing

June - July
October - December

Year-end fieldwork

June - July

July

Interim fieldwork

Compliance Testing

Interim fieldwork

Internal Control / Systems Evaluation

Develop audit strategy

Mid June
Late June

Entrance conference

Anticipated Dates Work will be Completed

Agree terms of engagement

Planning

City CAFR

Classification

Proposed Timetable

2

4

4

85

5

8

6

8

8

50

25

15

Partners

380

23

32

28

36

36

225

45

151

9

10

10

Managers

15

60

15

756

56

80

70

95

95

360

50

220

Seniors

Estimated Hours

983

45

59

50

90

90

649

40

450

59

90

10

Associates

160

836

85

164

39

2,204

129

179

154

229

229

1,284

Total
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Identification of Anticipated Potential Audit
Problems

MGO is excited with the opportunity to earn-back the City’s business and become a trusted advisor. We believe
communication to be the key factor to a successful relationship. Our approach includes planning meetings with
key personnel and the audit committee to provide an opportunity to set expectations necessary to meet the City’s
deadlines. We develop timelines with key milestone dates that both the City and the auditors can use to manage
expectations. In addition, we are committed to scheduling periodic (e.g. weekly) status meetings between City
personnel and the engagement partner and manager to discuss progress and resolve issues.
Given the every changing financial reporting and regulatory landscape surrounding governmental entities, an
audit issue that may be significant and potentially complex is the implementation of future accounting standards.
Specifically, the City will be required to implement GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2020 and GASB Statement No. 87, Leases for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021.
GASB 84 will effectively eliminate the City's agency funds and the related activity is required to be reported
in custodial funds. This change in the fund reporting structure necessitates the City to establish and report a
statement of changes in fiduciary net position for the custodial funds and report on the additions and deletions
from the funds net position (equity).
GASB 87 impacts the manner in which governmental entities account for and report lease activity, either as the
lessee or lessor. GASB 87 eliminates any distinction between operating and capital leases and treats all leases as
financings. Under current standards, operating leases are accounted for as an "off -balance sheet" item, but will
require lessees to recognize an asset for the right to use the leased item and a corresponding lease liability. Lease
liabilities will be considered as long-term obligations and lease payments will be capital financing outflows in the
cash flow statement for proprietary funds. In the activity statements, lessees will no longer report rent expense
for current operating leases, but will instead report interest expense of the long-term obligation and amortization
expense related to the leased asset.
The City is also a lessor and beginning in FY2020/21 will be required to recognize a lease receivable and a
corresponding deferred inflow of resources while continuing to report the asset underlying the lease. Interest
income associated with the lease receivable will be recognized using the effective interest method. Also, lease
revenue will arise from amortizing the deferred inflow of resources in a systematic and rational manner over the
lease term.
The City has some significant leasing activity and will need to dissect and evaluate the various implementation
issues. Below are a brief summary of some of the factors for consideration:
• Determination of implementation team members
• How is the City managing its leases
• Establishing a plan for lease data collection
• Understanding of lease types that are not covered under GASB 87 and specific criteria used for evaluation
purposes
• Define a threshold for recording leases and identification of fair value for leased assets
• Determination of a discount rate for future cash flows
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Special Area of Expertise
National Thought Leadership

MGO is committed to participating in the national thought leadership dialogue to address the complex issues
facing state and local governments and providing our clients a “voice” in the standard setting process. Key
members of your engagement team are active leaders on national committees and panels that set government
accounting and audit standards. As a result, we are uniquely qualified to advise you on emerging issues. For
example, the recently issued GASB pronouncement on leases (GASB 87) represents a significant change to the
current standards for lease accounting. As such, GASB has prepared an implementation guide as a project
for providing additional technical guidance on leases. As an AICPA expert panel member, David Bullock has
deliberated extensively on GASB 87 with the panel, and currently is participating on the expert panel’s task force
that will respond to the request for comment on the GASB 87 implementation guide.

Pension Audit Experience

MGO has the qualifications and experience required to provide audit services for a retirement system such as
Sacramento City Employees’ Retirement System (SCERS). We have unmatched experience in providing assurance
and advisory services to the largest and most complex public employees’ retirement systems including the
California Public Employees’ Retirements System, California State Teachers’ Retirement System and Oregon Public
Employees’ Retirement System. Combined, our auditors have served over a dozen state and local government
public employees' retirement systems throughout the Western United States.
This experience allows MGO to design specific audit procedures to address the risk of misstatement associated
with the SCERS's investments, actuarial calculations, benefit payments and contributions. MGO includes
experienced actuaries as a part of the engagement team to perform reviews and analysis of SCERS’s Actuarial
Valuation Report including the determination if benefit payments are being calculated in accordance with plan
provisions.

Advisory Services

All public agencies and privately-owned firms need evaluative information to help them make decisions about
the programs they oversee-information that tells them whether, and in what important ways, a program is
working well or poorly, and why. On too many occasions, key decision-makers are hampered by the lack of good
information on the assessment of operations and results of organizations, policies, programs, and services. The
management consulting practice at MGO is built upon the expertise of its project leaders who have employed
many analytic approaches to help agencies strengthen their operational capacity. Our core consultants each bring
15-35 years of experience with local, state, and federal agencies.
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Attachment 2 - Professional External Audit Services Client References

City of Sacramento - Request for Proposals for Auditing Services

ATTACHMENT 2
PROFESSIONAL EXTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
CLIENT REFERENCES
CLIENT NAME: ________________________________________________________
City and County of San Francisco
CITY/COUNTY

County of San Francisco

POPULATION

884,000

STATE

CA

ADDRESS 1 Drive, Carlton B. Goodlett Pl., City Hall, Room 484 San Francisco, CA 94102
KEY USER CONTACT NAME / EMAIL / TELEPHONE NUMBER:
Carmen LeFranc / Carmen.LeFranc@sfgov.org / 415.554.7645

KEY TECHNICAL CONTACT NAME / EMAIL / TELEPHONE NUMBER:
Carmen LeFranc / Carmen.LeFranc@sfgov.org / 415.554.7645
$ 1.4 million
PROJECT DATE: _________________PROJECT
BUDGET: ____________________
2004 - Current

NAME OF CONSULTANT PROJECT MANAGER: _____________________________
Linda Hurley, Partner
NAME(S) OF TEAM MEMBERS: ___________________________________________
Annie Louie, Project Partner / Cindy Pon, Project Partner
_____________________________________________________________________
Richard Green, Project Partner / Ben Lau, Project Partner / Guian Chhim, Project Manager
PROJECT DETAILS
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Audit the CAFR, including the Single Audit Report. The CAFR
receives the GFOA Certificate of Achievement in Financial Reporting.

REMARKS:
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Attachment 2 - Professional External Audit Services Client References

City of Sacramento - Request for Proposals for Auditing Services

ATTACHMENT 2
PROFESSIONAL EXTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
CLIENT REFERENCES
CLIENT NAME: ________________________________________________________
City of San Jose
CITY/COUNTY

County of Santa Clara

POPULATION

1.03 milliom

ADDRESS

200 E. Santa Clara Street, San José, CA 95113

STATE

CA

KEY USER CONTACT NAME / EMAIL / TELEPHONE NUMBER:
Julia Cooper / julia.cooper@sanjoseca.gov / 408.535.7011

KEY TECHNICAL CONTACT NAME / EMAIL / TELEPHONE NUMBER:
Julia Cooper / julia.cooper@sanjoseca.gov / 408.535.7011

PROJECT DATE: 2001-2015,
_________________PROJECT
BUDGET: ____________________
2018-current
$ 710,000
David Bullock, Partner
NAME OF CONSULTANT PROJECT MANAGER: _____________________________
Caroline Walsh, Technical Review Partner
NAME(S) OF TEAM MEMBERS: ___________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________
PROJECT DETAILS
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT:

CAFR, Single Audit, Airport CAFR, Convention Center BFS,

Compliance Audits, Successor Agency FS/Compliance Audit, Clean Water FS/Compliance Audit,
Deferred Compensation Plan Audits, Other Compliance Audits (TDA, GANN, Treasury)

REMARKS:
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Attachment 2 - Professional External Audit Services Client References

City of Sacramento - Request for Proposals for Auditing Services

ATTACHMENT 2
PROFESSIONAL EXTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
CLIENT REFERENCES
California Prison Industry Authority (CalPIA)
CLIENT NAME: ________________________________________________________

CITY/COUNTY

Folsom/Sacramento
County of Sacramento

POPULATION

Not Applicable

ADDRESS

560
East
Natoma
Street, Folsom,
CA 95630
2125
19th
St, Sacramento
, CA 95818

STATE

CA

KEY USER CONTACT NAME / EMAIL / TELEPHONE NUMBER:
Natalie McCorkle / natalie.mccorkle@calpia.ca.gov / 916.358.2724

KEY TECHNICAL CONTACT NAME / EMAIL / TELEPHONE NUMBER:
Natalie McCorkle / natalie.mccorkle@calpia.ca.gov / 916.358.2724
2009 - Current
$ 127,500
PROJECT DATE: _________________PROJECT
BUDGET: ____________________

NAME OF CONSULTANT PROJECT MANAGER: _____________________________
Scott Hammon, Partner
NAME(S) OF TEAM MEMBERS: ___________________________________________
Scott Brunner, Engagement Director / Caroline Walsh,
_____________________________________________________________________
Senior
Technical Review Partner / Laura Kennedy, Supervisor
PROJECT DETAILS
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Audit of Basic Financial Statements

REMARKS:
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Attachment 2 - Professional External Audit Services Client References

City of Sacramento - Request for Proposals for Auditing Services

ATTACHMENT 2
PROFESSIONAL EXTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
CLIENT REFERENCES
CLIENT NAME: ________________________________________________________
City of San Diego
CITY/COUNTY

City of San Diego

POPULATION

1.41 million

ADDRESS

1200 Third Avenue, Suite 200 San Diego, California 92101

STATE

CA

KEY USER CONTACT NAME / EMAIL / TELEPHONE NUMBER:
Rolando Charvel / rcharvel@sandiego.gov / 619.236.5941

KEY TECHNICAL CONTACT NAME / EMAIL / TELEPHONE NUMBER:
Scott Clark / sclark@sandiego.gov / 619.236.5887

PROJECT DATE: _________________PROJECT
BUDGET: ____________________
2004 - Current
$ 520,000
NAME OF CONSULTANT PROJECT MANAGER: _____________________________
Kevin Starkey, Partner
Richard Green,
Partner
/ Caroline
NAME(S) OF TEAM MEMBERS: ___________________________________________
Caroline
Walsh, Project
Technical
Review
Partner Walsh,

_____________________________________________________________________
Technical Review Partner
PROJECT DETAILS
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Audit of the City's CAFR, Single Audit, Sewerage Utility
Allocation Schedule for Billing, GANN Agreed Upon Procedures, and Management Letter

REMARKS:
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Attachment 2 - Professional External Audit Services Client References

City of Sacramento - Request for Proposals for Auditing Services

ATTACHMENT 2
PROFESSIONAL EXTERNAL AUDIT SERVICES
CLIENT REFERENCES
CLIENT NAME: ________________________________________________________
County of Tuolumne
CITY/COUNTY

Sonora/Tuolumne
County of Tuolumne

POPULATION

53,800

ADDRESS

2 South Green Street, Sonora, CA 95370

STATE CA

KEY USER CONTACT NAME / EMAIL / TELEPHONE NUMBER:
Deborah Bautista / DBautista@co.tuolumne.ca.us / 209.533.5552

KEY TECHNICAL CONTACT NAME / EMAIL / TELEPHONE NUMBER:
Deborah Bautista / DBautista@co.tuolumne.ca.us / 209.533.5552
1998 - Current
PROJECT DATE: _________________PROJECT
BUDGET: ____________________
$ 183,000

NAME OF CONSULTANT PROJECT MANAGER: _____________________________
Richard Green, Partner
Scott Brunner, Engagement Director / Caroline Walsh,
NAME(S) OF TEAM MEMBERS: ___________________________________________
Technical
Review Partner
/ Bunty Khetan, Supervisor
_____________________________________________________________________
_________________
_______________________

PROJECT DETAILS
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: CAFR and Single Audit, Gann AUP, TDA compliance
(includes TCTC FS and Single Audit, County Non-Transit Activities audit and Sonora TDA
Fund audit), PTMISEA compliance, Power Agency FS audit, and First 5 FS and compliance audit

REMARKS:
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Attachment 3 - Proposal Signature Form

City of Sacramento - Request for Proposals for Auditing Services

ATTACHMENT 3
PROPOSAL SIGNATURE FORM
Name of Proposer: ________________________________________________
Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP (MGO)
Business Address: 3000
________________________________________________
S Street, Suite 300, Sacramento, CA 95816
(Street)
(City)
(State)
(Zip)
Telephone:

_________________________
916.642.7048

Type of Business:

FAX: _______________
916.928.2755

[ ] Corporation;
[ X ] Partnership;
[ ] Individual doing business under own name;
[ ] Individual doing business using a firm name;
[ ] Joint Venture (Attach Joint Venture Agreement)

Federal Tax I.D. Number: _____________________________
68-0300457
City of Sacramento Business Operations Tax Number:________________
124477
To the City of Sacramento:
The undersigned, as Proposer, certifies that the only persons or parties interested in
this proposal as principals are those named herein as Proposer; that this proposal is
made without collusion with any other person, firm, or corporation; that in submitting
this proposal the Proposer has examined all terms, conditions, and requirements set
forth in the Request for Proposals; that the Proposer proposes and agrees that if this
proposal is accepted, the Proposer will execute and fully perform the contract for
which proposals are called; that the Proposer will perform all the work and/or furnish
all the materials specified in the contract, in the manner and time therein prescribed,
and according to the requirements as therein set forth; and that the Proposer will take
in full payment therefore, the prices set forth in the attached schedule.
________________________________________________________________
Kevin Starkey, Partner
(Typed or Printed Name and Title)
(Signature)
Address (if different than business address above)___________________________
___________________________________________________________________
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MACIGIN-02

LMANZER

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

04/18/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
CONTACT Tracy Dolan
NAME:
PHONE
(A/C, No, Ext): (916) 210-0317
E-MAIL
ADDRESS: tracy.dolan@alliant.com

PRODUCER

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.
2355 Gold Meadow Way Ste 250
Gold River, CA 95670

FAX
(A/C, No): (916)

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

NAIC #

INSURER A : Fireman's

Fund Insurance Company
INSURER B : Oak River Insurance Company

INSURED

Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP
3000 S Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95816

210-0343

21873
34630

INSURER C :
INSURER D :
INSURER E :
INSURER F :

COVERAGES

CERTIFICATE NUMBER:

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR

A

X

ADDL SUBR
INSD WVD

TYPE OF INSURANCE

POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CLAIMS-MADE

X

OCCUR

A S1 AZC 80910377

04/30/2019 04/30/2020

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:
PROX POLICY
LOC
JECT

A

OTHER:
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

X

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

X

A S1 AZC 80910377

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

04/30/2019 04/30/2020

LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

$

MED EXP (Any one person)

$

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$

$

GENERAL AGGREGATE

$

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accident)
BODILY INJURY (Per person)

$
$

2,000,000
100,000
10,000
Included
4,000,000
Included
2,000,000

$

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)
$
$

B

UMBRELLA LIAB

OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

EXCESS LIAB

CLAIMS-MADE

AGGREGATE

DED

$
$

RETENTION $

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

Y/N
N/A

X MAWC024121

04/30/2019 04/30/2020

X

PER
STATUTE

OTHER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

$

1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

The City of Sacramento, its officials, employees, and volunteers are additional insureds with respect to General Liability as their interests may appear per the
attached form. Coverage is primary and non-contributory and 30 days written notice of cancellation applies. Waiver of Subrogation applies to Workers
Compensation per attached. Insured has no owned autos, so only Hired/Non-Owned coverage applies.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

City of Sacramento
c/o EXIGIX LLX
PO Box 4668 ECM #35050
New York, NY 10168

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
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%&' 1YPXM'SZIV  %&    
8LMW IRHSVWIQIRX QSHMJMIW MRWYVERGI TVSZMHIH YRHIV XLI JSPPS[MRK
%QIVMGER &YWMRIWW 'SZIVEKI
=SYV TSPMG] MW FVSEHIRIH ERH GPEVMJMIH EW JSPPS[W


TIVQERIRX PSHKMRK SV TVIQMWIW F] SV EX
XLI HMVIGXMSR SJ ER] MRWYVIH SV

2SR )QTPS]QIRX (MWGVMQMREXMSR 0MEFMPMX]

 %VMWMRK SYX SJ HMWGVMQMREXMSR MJ MRWYVERGI
XLIVISJ MW TVSLMFMXIH F] PE[ SV

9RPIWW 4IVWSREP -RNYV] SV %HZIVXMWMRK -RNYV] MW
I\GPYHIH JVSQ XLMW TSPMG]
%

J
&

(MWGVMQMREXMSR

7IGXMSR ---  (IJMRMXMSRW -XIQ  %HZIVXMWMRK
-RNYV] MW EQIRHIH XS MRGPYHI
I

'

 *MRIW TIREPXMIW WTIGMJMG TIVJSVQERGI SV
MRNYRGXMSRW PIZMIH SV MQTSWIH F] E KS
ZIVRQIRXEP IRXMX] SV KSZIVRQIRXEP GSHI
PE[ SV WXEXYXI FIGEYWI SJ HMWGVMQMREXMSR

7IGXMSR ---  (IJMRMXMSRW -XIQ  4IVWSREP
-RNYV] MW EQIRHIH XS MRGPYHI

(MWGVMQMREXMSR

7IGXMSR ---  (IJMRMXMSRW MW EQIRHIH XS MR
GPYHI



&PEROIX %HHMXMSREP -RWYVIH
7IGXMSR --  0MEFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI 4EVX - ;LS -W %R
-RWYVIH -XIQ  MW EQIRHIH XS MRGPYHI
J

 (MWGVMQMREXMSR QIERW XLI YRPE[JYP XVIEX
QIRX SJ MRHMZMHYEPW FEWIH SR VEGI GSPSV
IXLRMG SVMKMR KIRHIV VIPMKMSR EKI SV
WI\YEP TVIJIVIRGI
(

%R] TIVWSR SV SVKERM^EXMSR XLEX ]SY EVI VI
UYMVIH F] E [VMXXIR MRWYVIH GSRXVEGX XS MRGPYHI
EW ER MRWYVIH WYFNIGX XS EPP SJ XLI JSPPS[MRK
TVSZMWMSRW


'SZIVEKI MW PMQMXIH XS XLIMV PMEFMPMX] EVMW
MRK SYX SJ
E

XLI S[RIVWLMT QEMRXIRERGI SV YWI
SJ XLEX TEVX SJ XLI TVIQMWIW SV PERH
S[RIH F] VIRXIH XS SV PIEWIH XS
]SY SV

 %VMWMRK SYX SJ HMWGVMQMREXMSR HMVIGXP] SV
MRHMVIGXP] VIPEXIH XS XLI TEWX IQTPS]
QIRX IQTPS]QIRX SV TVSWTIGXMZI IQ
TPS]QIRX SJ ER] TIVWSR SV GPEWW SJ
TIVWSRW F] ER] MRWYVIH SV

F

]SYV SRKSMRK STIVEXMSRW TIVJSVQIH
JSV XLEX MRWYVIH SV

G

XLEX MRWYVIH W JMRERGMEP GSRXVSP SJ
]SY SV

 %VMWMRK SYX SJ HMWGVMQMREXMSR HMVIGXP] SV
MRHMVIGXP] VIPEXIH XS XLI WEPI VIRXEP PIEWI
SV WYFPIEWI SV TVSWTIGXMZI WEPI VIRXEP
PIEWI
SV WYFPIEWI SJ ER] H[IPPMRK

H

XLI QEMRXIRERGI STIVEXMSR SV YWI
F] ]SY SJ IUYMTQIRX PIEWIH XS ]SY
F] WYGL TIVWSR W SV SVKERM^EXMSR W 
SV

7IGXMSR --  0MEFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI 4EVX , )\
GPYWMSRW -XIQ T 4IVWSREP -RNYV] SV %HZIV
XMWMRK -RNYV] MW EQIRHIH XS MRGPYHI

8LMW *SVQ QYWX FI EXXEGLIH XS 'LERKI )RHSVWIQIRX [LIR MWWYIH EJXIV XLI TSPMG] MW [VMXXIR
3RI SJ XLI *MVIQER W *YRH -RWYVERGI 'SQTERMIW EW REQIH MR XLI TSPMG]

7IGVIXEV]

%& 

4VIWMHIRX
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'SZIVEKI HSIW RSX ETTP] XS ER] SGGYV
VIRGI SV SJJIRWI
E

F


EWWYQTXMSR SJ PMEFMPMX] MR E GSRXVEGX
SV EKVIIQIRX 8LMW I\GPYWMSR HSIW
RSX ETTP] XS PMEFMPMX] JSV HEQEKIW
XLEX XLI ZIRHSV [SYPH LEZI MR XLI
EFWIRGI SJ XLI GSRXVEGX SV EKVII
QIRX

E WXEXI SV TSPMXMGEP WYFHMZMWMSR TIV
QMX MWWYIH XS ]SY

[LMGL XSSO TPEGI FIJSVI XLI I\I
GYXMSR SJ SV WYFWIUYIRX XS XLI
GSQTPIXMSR SV I\TMVEXMSR SJ XLI
[VMXXIR MRWYVIH GSRXVEGX SV
[LMGL XEOIW TPEGI EJXIV ]SY GIEWI XS
FI E XIRERX MR XLEX TVIQMWIW

;MXL VIWTIGX XS EVGLMXIGXW IRKMRIIVW SV
WYVZI]SVW GSZIVEKI HSIW RSX ETTP] XS
&SHMP] -RNYV] 4VSTIVX] (EQEKI 4IV
WSREP -RNYV] SV %HZIVXMWMRK -RNYV] EVMWMRK
SYX SJ XLI VIRHIVMRK SV XLI JEMPYVI XS
VIRHIV ER] TVSJIWWMSREP WIVZMGIW F] SV JSV
]SY MRGPYHMRK
E

8LI TVITEVMRK ETTVSZMRK SV JEMPMRK
XS TVITEVI SV ETTVSZI QETW HVE[
MRKW STMRMSRW VITSVXW WYVZI]W
GLERKI SVHIVW HIWMKRW SV WTIGMJMGE
XMSRW ERH

F

7YTIVZMWSV] MRWTIGXMSR
RIIVMRK WIVZMGIW

SV

F

%R] I\TVIWW [EVVERX] YREYXLSVM^IH
F] ]SY

G

%R] TL]WMGEP SV GLIQMGEP GLERKI MR
XLI TVSHYGX QEHI MRXIRXMSREPP] F]
XLI ZIRHSV

H

6ITEGOEKMRK YRPIWW YRTEGOIH WSPIP]
JSV XLI TYVTSWI SJ MRWTIGXMSR HIQ
SRWXVEXMSR XIWXMRK SV XLI WYFWXM
XYXMSR SJ TEVXW YRHIV MRWXVYGXMSRW
JVSQ XLI QERYJEGXYVIV ERH XLIR VI
TEGOEKIH MR XLI SVMKMREP GSRXEMRIV

I

%R] JEMPYVI XS QEOI WYGL MR
WTIGXMSRW EHNYWXQIRXW XIWXW SV WIV
ZMGMRK EW XLI ZIRHSV LEW EKVIIH XS
QEOI SV RSVQEPP] YRHIVXEOIW XS
QEOI MR XLI YWYEP GSYVWI SJ FYWM
RIWW MR GSRRIGXMSR [MXL XLI HMWXVMF
YXMSR SV WEPI SJ XLI TVSHYGXW

J

(IQSRWXVEXMSR MRWXEPPEXMSR WIVZMG
MRK SV VITEMV STIVEXMSRW I\GITX WYGL
STIVEXMSRW TIVJSVQIH EX XLI ZIRHSV W
TVIQMWIW MR GSRRIGXMSR [MXL XLI WEPI
SJ XLI TVSHYGX

K

4VSHYGXW [LMGL EJXIV HMWXVMFYXMSR
SV WEPI F] ]SY LEZI FIIR PEFIPIH SV
VIPEFIPIH SV YWIH EW E GSRXEMRIV TEVX
SV MRKVIHMIRX SJ ER] SXLIV XLMRK SV
WYFWXERGI F] SV JSV XLI ZIRHSV

IRKM

-J ER %HHMXMSREP -RWYVIH IRHSVWIQIRX MW EXXEGLIH
XS XLMW TSPMG] XLEX WTIGMJMGEPP] REQIW E TIVWSR SV
SVKERM^EXMSR EW ER MRWYVIH XLIR XLMW GSZIVEKI HSIW
RSX ETTP] XS XLEX TIVWSR SV SVKERM^EXMSR


&PEROIX %HHMXMSREP -RWYVIH JSV :IRHSVW
9RPIWW XLI 4VSHYGXW'SQTPIXIH 3TIVEXMSRW ,E^
EVH MW I\GPYHIH JVSQ XLMW TSPMG] 7IGXMSR --  0M
EFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI 4EVX - ;LS -W ER -RWYVIH -XIQ
 MW EQIRHIH XS MRGPYHI
K

%R] ZIRHSV FYX SRP] [MXL VIWTIGX XS &SHMP]
-RNYV] SV 4VSTIVX] (EQEKI EVMWMRK SYX SJ ]SYV
TVSHYGXW [LMGL EVI HMWXVMFYXIH SV WSPH MR XLI
VIKYPEV GSYVWI SJ XLI ZIRHSV W FYWMRIWW WYF
NIGX XS XLI JSPPS[MRK EHHMXMSREP I\GPYWMSRW


8LI MRWYVERGI EJJSVHIH XLI ZIRHSV HSIW
RSX ETTP] XS
E

%& 

&SHMP] -RNYV] SV 4VSTIVX] (EQEKI
JSV [LMGL XLI ZIRHSV MW SFPMKEXIH XS
TE] HEQEKIW F] VIEWSR SJ XLI



8LMW MRWYVERGI HSIW RSX ETTP] XS ER] MR
WYVIH TIVWSR SV SVKERM^EXMSR JVSQ
[LSQ ]SY LEZI EGUYMVIH WYGL TVSHYGXW
SV ER] MRKVIHMIRX TEVX SV GSRXEMRIV IR
XIVMRK MRXS EGGSQTER]MRK SV GSRXEMRMRK
WYGL TVSHYGXW

-J ER %HHMXMSREP -RWYVIH  :IRHSVW IRHSVWIQIRX
MW EXXEGLIH XS XLMW TSPMG] XLEX WTIGMJMGEPP] REQIW E
TIVWSR SV SVKERM^EXMSR EW ER MRWYVIH XLIR XLMW
GSZIVEKI HSIW RSX ETTP] XS XLEX TIVWSR SV SVKER
M^EXMSR
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&PEROIX ;EMZIV SJ 7YFVSKEXMSR

FIJSVI ]SY EGUYMVIH SV JSVQIH XLI SV
KERM^EXMSR

7IGXMSR --  0MEFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI 4EVX / 0MEFMPMX]
ERH 1IHMGEP 4E]QIRXW +IRIVEP 'SRHMXMSRW MW
EQIRHIH XS MRGPYHI


8VERWJIV SJ 6MKLXW SJ 6IGSZIV] %KEMRWX 3XL
IVW XS YW ERH &PEROIX ;EMZIV SJ 7YFVSKEXMSR
E

F



G

-J XLI MRWYVIH LEW VMKLXW XS VIGSZIV EPP SV
TEVX SJ ER] TE]QIRX [I LEZI QEHI YRHIV
XLMW 'SZIVEKI 4EVX XLSWI VMKLXW EVI
XVERWJIVVIH XS YW 8LI MRWYVIH QYWX HS
RSXLMRK EJXIV PSWW XS MQTEMV XLSWI VMKLXW
%X SYV VIUYIWX XLI MRWYVIH [MPP FVMRK WYMX
SV XVERWJIV XLSWI VMKLXW XS YW ERH LIPT YW
IRJSVGI XLIQ



1IHMGEP 4E]QIRXW
9RPIWW 'SZIVEKI ( 1IHMGEP 4E]QIRXW MW I\GPYHIH
JVSQ XLMW TSPMG]
%

7IGXMSR --  0MEFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI 4EVX , )\
GPYWMSRW -XIQ J MW VITPEGIH [MXL
J

-J VIUYMVIH F] E [VMXXIR MRWYVIH GSRXVEGX
[I [EMZI ER] VMKLX SJ VIGSZIV] [I QE]
LEZI EKEMRWX ER] TIVWSR SV SVKERM^EXMSR
FIGEYWI SJ TE]QIRXW [I QEOI JSV MRNYV]
SV HEQEKI EVMWMRK SYX SJ ]SYV STIVEXMSRW
SV ]SYV [SVO JSV XLEX TIVWSR SV SVKER
M^EXMSR

&

G





E

]SY LEZI XLI VIWTSRWMFMPMX] SJ TPEGMRK MR
WYVERGI JSV IEGL WYGL IRXMX] ERH

F

GSZIVEKI JSV XLI IRXMX] MW RSX SXLIV[MWI
QSVI WTIGMJMGEPP] TVSZMHIH ERH

G

XLI IRXMX] MW MRGSVTSVEXIH SV SVKERM^IH
YRHIV XLI PE[W SJ XLI 9RMXIH 7XEXIW SJ
%QIVMGE

F
%& 

'SZIVEKI YRHIV XLMW TVSZMWMSR MW EJJSVHIH
SRP] YRXMP XLI IRH SJ XLI TSPMG] TIVMSH
SV XLI  QSRXL ERRMZIVWEV] SJ XLI TSPMG]
MRGITXMSR HEXI [LMGLIZIV MW IEVPMIV
'SZIVEKI ' HSIW RSX ETTP] XS FSHMP] MR
NYV] SV TVSTIVX] HEQEKI XLEX SGGYVVIH

7IGXMSR ---  0MEFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI 4EVX . 0M
EFMPMX] ERH 1IHMGEP 4E]QIRXW 0MQMXW SJ -R
WYVERGI -XIQ  MW VITPEGIH [MXL


8LI QSWX [I [MPP TE] YRHIV 'SZIVEKI '
 0MEFMPMX] JSV HEQEKIW FIGEYWI SJ TVST
IVX] HEQEKI XS TVIQMWIW [LMPI VIRXIH XS
]SY XIQTSVEVMP] SGGYTMIH F] ]SY [MXL
XLI TIVQMWWMSR SJ XLI S[RIV SV QEREKIH
F] ]SY YRHIV E [VMXXIR EKVIIQIRX [MXL
XLI S[RIV
E

&YX IEGL IRXMX] MW MRWYVIH SRP] [LMPI ]SY
S[R HYVMRK XLI TSPMG] TIVMSH E GSRXVSPPMRK
MRXIVIWX MR WYGL IRXMX] SJ KVIEXIV XLER  SJ
XLI WXSGO SV EWWIXW ,S[IZIV
E

'SZIVEKI ( 1IHMGEP 4E]QIRXW MW TVM
QEV] ERH RSX GSRXVMFYXMRK [MXL ER]
SXLIV MRWYVERGI IZIR MJ XLEX SXLIV MRWYV
ERGI MW TVMQEV] EPWS

8IRERX W 0IKEP 0MEFMPMX]
%

%PP SJ ]SYV WYFWMHMEVMIW GSQTERMIW GSVTS
VEXMSRW JMVQW SV SVKERM^EXMSRW EW RS[ SV
LIVIEJXIV GSRWXMXYXIH UYEPMJ] EW 2EQIH -R
WYVIH YRHIV XLMW TSPMG] MJ

-RGPYHIH [MXLMR XLI TVSHYGXWGSQTPIXIH
STIVEXMSRW LE^EVH ,S[IZIV XLMW I\GPY
WMSR HSIW RSX ETTP] XS I\TIRWIW JSV HIR
XEP WIVZMGIW

7IGXMSR --  0MEFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI 4EVX + 'SZ
IVEKI -XIQ  MW EQIRHIH XS MRGPYHI

&VSEHIRIH 2EQIH -RWYVIH
7IGXMSR --  0MEFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI 4EVX - ;LS -W %R
-RWYVIH -XIQ  MW VITPEGIH [MXL

'SZIVEKI ' HSIW RSX ETTP] XS TIVWSREP
MRNYV] SV EHZIVXMWMRK MRNYV] EVMWMRK SYX SJ
ER SJJIRWI GSQQMXXIH FIJSVI ]SY EG
UYMVIH SV JSVQIH XLI SVKERM^EXMSR



EVMWMRK SYX SJ ER] 'SZIVIH 'EYWI SJ
0SWW WLEPP FI XLI KVIEXIV SJ


 SV



8LI 8IRERX W 0IKEP 0MEFMPMX]
PMQMX WLS[R MR XLI (IGPEVEXMSRW

'LEVXIVIH %MVGVEJX
7IGXMSR --  0MEFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI 'SZIVEKI ' 4EVX
, )\GPYWMSRW -XIQ K MW EQIRHIH XS MRGPYHI


%R EMVGVEJX MR [LMGL ]SY LEZI RS S[RIVWLMT
MRXIVIWX ERH XLEX ]SY LEZI GLEVXIVIH [MXL
GVI[
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'SZIVEKI 8IVVMXSV] &VSEHIRIH
7IGXMSR ---  (IJMRMXMSRW -XIQ E MW VITPEGIH [MXL
E

8LI 9RMXIH 7XEXIW SJ %QIVMGE MRGPYHMRK MXW
XIVVMXSVMIW ERH TSWWIWWMSRW  4YIVXS 6MGS 'E
REHE &IVQYHE XLI &ELEQEW XLI 'E]QER
-WPERHW ERH XLI &VMXMWL :MVKMR -WPERHW

4E]QIRXW (IJMRMXMSRW -XIQW F H ERH I EVI
VITPEGIH [MXL
F

1EPMGMSYW TVSWIGYXMSR SV EFYWI SJ TVSGIWW

H

3VEP [VMXXIR XIPIZMWIH SV ZMHISXETIH TYFPMGE
XMSR SJ QEXIVMEP XLEX WPERHIVW SV PMFIPW E TIVWSR
SV SVKERM^EXMSR SV HMWTEVEKIW E TIVWSR W SV
SVKERM^EXMSR W KSSHW TVSHYGXW SV WIVZMGIW

I

3VEP [VMXXIR XIPIZMWIH SV ZMHISXETIH TYFPMGE
XMSR SJ QEXIVMEP XLEX ZMSPEXIW E TIVWSR W VMKLX
SJ TVMZEG]

 &VSEHIRIH %HZIVXMWMRK -RNYV]
9RPIWW %HZIVXMWMRK -RNYV] MW I\GPYHIH JVSQ XLMW
TSPMG]
%

7IGXMSR ---  (IJMRMXMSRW  -XIQ  MW VITPEGIH
[MXL


%HZIVXMWMRK -RNYV] QIERW MRNYV] EVMWMRK
SYX SJ SRI SV QSVI SJ XLI JSPPS[MRK SJ
JIRWIW
E

&

3VEP [VMXXIR XIPIZMWIH SV ZMHISXETIH
TYFPMGEXMSR SJ QEXIVMEP XLEX WPERHIVW
SV PMFIPW E TIVWSR SV SVKERM^EXMSR SV
HMWTEVEKIW E TIVWSR W SV SVKERM^E
XMSR W KSSHW TVSHYGXW SV WIVZMGIW

F

3VEP [VMXXIR XIPIZMWIH SV ZMHISXETIH
TYFPMGEXMSR SJ QEXIVMEP XLEX ZMSPEXIW
E TIVWSR W VMKLX SJ TVMZEG]

G

1MWETTVSTVMEXMSR
SJ EHZIVXMWMRK
MHIEW SV WX]PI SJ HSMRK FYWMRIWW SV

H

-RJVMRKIQIRX SJ XVEHIQEVO
VMKLX XMXPI SV WPSKER

9RPIWW 4IVWSREP -RNYV] SV %HZIVXMWMRK -RNYV] MW
I\GPYHIH JVSQ XLMW TSPMG] 7IGXMSR --  0MEFMPMX]
'SZIVEKI 'SZIVEKI ' 4EVX , )\GPYWMSRW -XIQ
T  )\GPYWMSRW MW HIPIXIH MR MXW IRXMVIX]
 *IPPS[ )QTPS]IIW 'SZIVEKI
7IGXMSR --  0MEFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI 4EVX - ;LS -W ER
-RWYVIH -XIQ E  MW EQIRHIH EW JSPPS[W


GST]

7IGXMSR --  0MEFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI 'SZIVEKI '
4EVX , )\GPYWMSRW -XIQW T  ERH  EVI
VITPEGIH [MXL


%VMWMRK SYX SJ SVEP [VMXXIR XIPIZMWIH SV
ZMHISXETIH TYFPMGEXMSR SJ QEXIVMEP MJ
HSRI F] SV EX XLI HMVIGXMSR SJ XLI MRWYVIH
[MXL ORS[PIHKI SJ MXW JEPWMX]



%VMWMRK SYX SJ SVEP [VMXXIR XIPIZMWIH SV
ZMHISXETIH TYFPMGEXMSR SJ QEXIVMEP [LSWI
JMVWX TYFPMGEXMSR XSSO TPEGI FIJSVI XLI
FIKMRRMRK SJ XLI TSPMG] TIVMSH

 &VSEHIRIH 4IVWSREP -RNYV]
9RPIWW 4IVWSREP -RNYV] MW I\GPYHIH JVSQ XLMW TSP
MG] 7IGXMSR ---  4VSTIVX] 0MEFMPMX] ERH 1IHMGEP
%& 

 &VSEHIRIH 4IVWSREP SV %HZIVXMWMRK -RNYV]

4IVWSREP -RNYV] XS ]SY SV XS E GSIQTPS]II
[LMPI MR XLI GSYVWI SJ LMW SV LIV IQTPS]QIRX
SV XLI WTSYWI GLMPH JIXYW IQFV]S TEVIRX
FVSXLIV WMWXIV SV ER] QIQFIV SJ XLI LSYWI
LSPH SJ XLEX IQTPS]II SV GSIQTPS]II EW E
GSRWIUYIRGI SJ WYGL 4IVWSREP -RNYV] SV JSV
ER] SFPMKEXMSR XS WLEVI HEQEKIW [MXL SV VITE]
WSQISRI IPWI [LS QYWX TE] HEQEKIW FIGEYWI
SJ XLI MRNYV] SV

 1IRXEP %RKYMWL -W -RGPYHIH MR &SHMP] -RNYV]
7IGXMSR ---  (IJMRMXMSRW -XIQ  MW VITPEGIH [MXL


&SHMP] MRNYV] QIERW FSHMP] MRNYV] WMGORIWW SV
HMWIEWI WYWXEMRIH F] E TIVWSR -X MRGPYHIW
HIEXL SV QIRXEP ERKYMWL [LMGL VIWYPX EX ER]
XMQI JVSQ WYGL TL]WMGEP LEVQ TL]WMGEP WMGO
RIWW SV TL]WMGEP HMWIEWI 1IRXEP ERKYMWL QI
ERW ER] X]TI SJ QIRXEP SV IQSXMSREP MPPRIWW
SV HMWIEWI

 9RMRXIRXMSREP *EMPYVI XS (MWGPSWI ,E^EVHW
7IGXMSR --  0MEFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI 4EVX / 0MEFMPMX]
ERH 1IHMGEP 4E]QIRXW +IRIVEP 'SRHMXMSRW MW
EQIRHIH XS MRGPYHI
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9RMRXIRXMSREP *EMPYVI XS (MWGPSWI ,E^EVHW
-J ]SY YRMRXIRXMSREPP] JEMP XS HMWGPSWI ER] LE
^EVHW I\MWXMRK EX XLI MRGITXMSR HEXI SJ ]SYV
TSPMG] [I [MPP RSX HIR] GSZIVEKI YRHIV XLMW
'SZIVEKI *SVQ FIGEYWI SJ WYGL JEMPYVI
,S[IZIV XLMW TVSZMWMSR HSIW RSX EJJIGX SYV
VMKLX XS GSPPIGX EHHMXMSREP TVIQMYQ SV I\IVGMWI
SYV VMKLX SJ GERGIPPEXMSR SV RSRVIRI[EP

PIKEP VITVIWIRXEXMZIW EVI E[EVI SJ XLI +IRIVEP
0MEFMPMX] SGGYVVIRGI SJJIRWI GPEMQ SV WYMX
/RS[PIHKI SJ ER SGGYVVIRGI SJJIRWI GPEMQ
SV WYMX F] SXLIV IQTPS]II W HSIW RSX MQTP]
]SY EPWS LEZI WYGL ORS[PIHKI
F

 7YTTPIQIRXEV] 4E]QIRXW -RGVIEWI 0MQMXW
7IGXMSR --  0MEFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI 4EVX + 'SZIVEKI
-XIQW I  ERH  EVI VITPEGIH [MXL




8LI GSWX SJ FEMP FSRHW VIUYMVIH
EGGMHIRXW SV XVEJJMG PE[ ZMSPEXMSRW
SJ XLI YWI SJ ER] ZILMGPI XS [LMGL
-RNYV] 0MEFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI ETTPMIW
LEZI XS JYVRMWL XLIWI FSRHW

FIGEYWI SJ
EVMWMRK SYX
XLI &SHMP]
;I HS RSX

%PP VIEWSREFPI I\TIRWIW MRGYVVIH F] XLI MR
WYVIH EX SYV VIUYIWX XS EWWMWX YW MR XLI MRZIW
XMKEXMSR SV HIJIRWI SJ XLI GPEMQ SV WYMX
MRGPYHMRK WYFWXERXMEXIH PSWW SJ IEVRMRKW YT XS
 E HE] FIGEYWI SJ XMQI SJJ [SVO

 4IV 0SGEXMSR %KKVIKEXI
%

7IGXMSR --  0MEFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI 4EVX . 0MQMXW
SJ -RWYVERGI -XIQ  MW EQIRHIH XS MRGPYHI

8S XLI I\XIRX TSWWMFPI RSXMGI XS YW WLSYPH
MRGPYHI


,S[ [LIR ERH [LIVI XLI SGGYVVIRGI SV
SJJIRWI XSSO TPEGI



8LI REQIW EHHVIWWIW ERH XIPITLSRI
RYQFIVW SJ ER] MRNYVIH TIVWSRW ERH [MX
RIWWIW ERH



8LI REXYVI ERH PSGEXMSR SJ ER] MRNYV] SV
HEQEKI EVMWMRK SYX SJ XLI SGGYVVIRGI SJ
JIRWI GPEMQ SV WYMX

 'SQQSR 4SPMG] 'SRHMXMSRW %&   %   
4EVX , 3XLIV -RWYVERGI -XIQ  MW VITPEGIH [MXL


'SZIVEKI '  0MEFMPMX]
-J SXLIV ZEPMH ERH GSPPIGXMFPI MRWYVERGI MW
EZEMPEFPI XS ER] MRWYVIH JSV E PSWW [I GSZIV
YRHIV 'SZIVEKI ' SJ XLMW 'SZIVEKI 4EVX SYV
SFPMKEXMSRW EVI PMQMXIH EW JSPPS[W
E

8LI MRWYVERGI TVSZMHIH YRHIV XLMW TSPMG]
MW TVMQEV] MJ ]SY EVI VIUYMVIH F] E [VMXXIR
MRWYVIH GSRXVEGX XS MRGPYHI ER] TIVWSR
SV SVKERM^EXMSR EW ER MRWYVIH FYX SRP]
[MXL VIWTIGX XS XLEX MRWYVIH W PMEFMPMX]
EVMWMRK SYX SJ XLI S[RIVWLMT QEMRXI
RERGI SV YWI SJ XLEX TEVX SJ XLI TVIQMWIW
S[RIH F] SV VIRXIH XS ]SY SV ]SYV [SVO
JSV XLEX MRWYVIH F] SV JSV ]SY %R] SXLIV
MRWYVERGI EZEMPEFPI XS XLEX TIVWSR SV SV
KERM^EXMSR MW I\GIWW ERH RSRGSRXVMFYXSV]
[MXL XLMW MRWYVERGI SV

F

)\GITX JSV XLI GMVGYQWXERGI HIWGVMFIH MR
E EFSZI XLI MRWYVERGI TVSZMHIH YRHIV
XLMW TSPMG] MW I\GIWW SZIV ER] SXLIV PM
EFMPMX] MRWYVERGI EZEMPEFPI XS ER] MRWYVIH
[LIXLIV WYGL SXLIV MRWYVERGI MW [VMXXIR
EW TVMQEV] I\GIWW GSRXMRKIRX SV ER]
SXLIV FEWMW %R I\GITXMSR ETTPMIW [LIR
ER] MRWYVIH WTIGMJMGEPP] LEW TYVGLEWIH
I\GIWW MRWYVERGI XS ETTP] MR I\GIWW SJ XLI
PMQMXW SJ MRWYVERGI WLS[R MR XLI (IGPE
VEXMSRW SJ XLMW 'SZIVEKI 4EVX JSV 'SZIV
EKI '

8LI %KKVIKEXI 0MQMX SJ -RWYVERGI ETTPMIW WI
TEVEXIP] XS IEGL PSGEXMSR S[RIH F] ]SY
VIRXIH XS ]SY SV SGGYTMIH F] ]SY [MXL XLI
TIVQMWWMSR SJ XLI S[RIV
&

7IGXMSR ---  4VSTIVX] 0MEFMPMX] ERH 1IHMGEP
4E]QIRXW (IJMRMXMSRW  MW EQIRHIH XS MRGPYHI
 0SGEXMSR QIERW TVIQMWIW MRZSPZMRK XLI
WEQI SV GSRRIGXMRK PSXW SV TVIQMWIW
[LSWI GSRRIGXMSR MW MRXIVVYTXIH SRP] F]
E WXVIIX VSEH[E] [EXIV[E] SV VMKLXSJ
[E] SJ VEMPVSEH

 %QIRHIH (YXMIW MR XLI )ZIRX SJ ER 3GGYVVIRGI
3JJIRWI 'PEMQ SV 7YMX
7IGXMSR --  0MEFMPMX] 'SZIVEKI 4EVX / 0MEFMPMX]
ERH 1IHMGEP 4E]QIRXW +IRIVEP 'SRHMXMSRW -XIQW
E ERH F EVI VITPEGIH [MXL
E

-R XLI IZIRX SJ ER SGGYVVIRGI SJJIRWI GPEMQ
SV WYMX ]SY QYWX TVSQTXP] RSXMJ] YW =SYV
HYX] XS TVSQTXP] RSXMJ] YW MW IJJIGXMZI [LIR
]SYV I\IGYXMZI SJJMGIVW TEVXRIVW QIQFIVW SV

%& 
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 (EQEKI XS -RZMXIIW %YXSQSFMPIW JVSQ *EPPMRK
8VIIW SV 8VII 0MQFW  0MQMXIH 'SZIVEKI
8LI TSPMG] ETTPMIW XS HMVIGX TL]WMGEP HEQEKI XS
EYXSQSFMPIW S[RIH F] MRZMXIIW WYFNIGX XS EPP SJ XLI
JSPPS[MRK




4VSZMHIH WYGL HEQEKI SVMKMREXIW JVSQ TVIQ
MWIW S[RIH QEREKIH PIEWIH SV VIRXIH F] ER
MRWYVIH
'SZIVEKI ETTPMIW SRP] XS MRZMXIIW SJ ER MR
WYVIH SV ER MRWYVIH W XIRERX



7YGL
HEQEKI
MW HMVIGXP] GEYWIH
[MRHHVMZIR JEPPMRK XVIIW SV XVII PMQFW



8LI QSWX [I [MPP TE] JSV ER] SRI PSWW MW XLI
PIWWIV SJ XLI EGXYEP GEWL ZEPYI SJ XLI HEQEKIH
EYXSQSFMPI EW SJ XLI XMQI SJ XLI PSWW SV XLI
GSWX SJ VITEMVMRK SV VITPEGMRK XLI HEQEKIH
EYXSQSFMPI [MXL ERSXLIV EYXSQSFMPI SJ PMOI

%& 

F]

OMRH ERH UYEPMX] WYFNIGX XS E PMQMX SJ 
MR ER] SRI TSPMG] TIVMSH ERH


8LMW GSZIVEKI MW RSX WYFNIGX XS XLI +IRIVEP
0MEFMPMX] +IRIVEP %KKVIKEXI 0MQMX

 )\TIGXIH SV -RXIRHIH -RNYV]  %QIRHQIRX XS )\
GPYWMSR
7)'8-32 -   )<'097-327 E )\TIGXIH SV
-RXIRHIH -RNYV] MW VITPEGIH F] XLI JSPPS[MRK
E

)\TIGXIH SV -RXIRHIH -RNYV]
&SHMP] MRNYV] SV TVSTIVX] HEQEKI I\TIGXIH SV
MRXIRHIH JVSQ XLI WXERHTSMRX SJ XLI MRWYVIH
8LMW I\GPYWMSR HSIW RSX ETTP] XS FSHMP] MRNYV]
SV TVSTIVX] HEQEKI VIWYPXMRK JVSQ XLI YWI SJ
VIEWSREFPI JSVGI XS TVSXIGX TIVWSRW SV TVST
IVX]

%PP SXLIV XIVQW ERH GSRHMXMSRW SJ XLI TSPMG] ETTP]
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of Covered Causes of Loss (see Tenant’s Legal Liability).

You must see to it that we receive written
notice of the claim or suit as soon as
practicable.

The limits of this policy apply separately to each
consecutive annual period and to any remaining
period of less than 12 months, starting with the
beginning of the policy period shown in the Declarations, unless the policy period is extended after
issuance for an additional period of less than 12
months. In that case, the additional period will
be deemed part of the last preceding period for
purposes of determining the Limits of Insurance.

c.

(1) Immediately send us copies of any
demands, notices, summonses or legal papers received in connection
with the claim or suit ;
(2) Authorize us to obtain records and
other information;

K. Liability and Medical Payments General Condi-

(3) Cooperate with us in the investigation, settlement or defense of the
claim or suit ; and

tions

We have no duty to provide coverage under this
Coverage Part to any insured unless that insured
has fully complied with the Conditions contained
in this Coverage Part.
1.

(4) Assist us, upon our request, in the
enforcement of any right against any
person or organization which may
be liable to the insured because of
injury or damage to which this insurance may also apply.

Bankruptcy
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the insured or
of the insured’s estate will not relieve us of our
obligations under this policy.

2.

d.

Duties in the Event of Occurrence, Offense,
Claim or Suit
a.

You must see to it that we are notified
as soon as practicable of an occurrence
or an offense which may result in a claim.
To the extent possible, notice should include:
(1) How, when and where the occurrence or offense took place;

3.

Financial Responsibility Laws
a.

When this policy is certified as proof of
financial responsibility for the future under the provisions of any motor vehicle
financial responsibility law, the insurance
provided by the policy for bodily injury
liability and property damage liability will
comply with the provisions of the law to
the extent of the coverage and limits of
insurance required by that law.

b.

With respect to mobile equipment to
which this insurance applies, we will
provide any liability, uninsured motorists, underinsured motorists, no-fault or
other coverage required by any motor
vehicle law. We will provide the required
limits for those coverages.

(3) The nature and location of any injury or damage arising out of the
occurrence or offense .
If a claim is made or suit is brought
against any insured, you must:
(1) Immediately record the specifics of
the claim or suit and the date received, and
(2) Notify us as soon as practicable.
AB9000 12-93S

No insured will, except at that insured’s
own cost, voluntarily make a payment,
assume any obligation, or incur any expense, other than for first aid, without
our consent.
We shall not take over any such obligations or reimburse any insured for any
such payments or incurred expense.

(2) The names and addresses of any injured persons and witnesses; and

b.

You and any other involved insured
must:
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4.

Legal Action Against Us

3.

Auto means a land motor vehicle, trailer or semitrailer designed for travel on public roads, including any attached machinery or equipment. But
auto does not include mobile equipment.

To join us as a party or otherwise bring
us into a suit asking for damages from
an insured; or

4.

Bodily Injury means bodily injury, sickness or dis-

To sue us on this policy unless all of its
terms have been fully complied with.

5.

No person or organization has a right under
this policy:
a.

b.

ease sustained by a person, including death resulting from any of these at any time.

a.

A person or organization may sue us to recover on an agreed settlement or on a final
judgment against an insured obtained after an
actual trial; but we will not be liable for
damages that are not payable under the terms
of this policy or that are in excess of the applicable limit of insurance. An agreed settlement means a settlement and release of
liability signed by us, the insured and the
claimant or the claimant’s legal representative.
5.

Coverage territory means:

(1) The United States of America and Puerto
Rico.
b.

(2) International waters or airspace, provided
the injury or damage does not occur in
the course of travel or transportation to
or from any place not included in a.
above; or

Except with respect to the Limits of Insurance, and any rights or duties specifically assigned in this policy to the first Named
Insured, this insurance applies:
As if each Named Insured were the only
Named Insured; and

b.

Separately to each insured against whom
claim is made or suit is brought.

(3) All parts of the world if:
(a) The injury or damage arises out of
an occurrence or offense caused by
activities conducted by any insured
whose home is in the territory described in 5.b.(1) above, but is away
for a short time on your business;
and

Section III - Property, Liability and Medical Payments
Definitions

1.

(b) The insured’s responsibility to pay
damage is determined in a suit on
the merits, in the territory described
in 5.b.(1) above; in Bermuda, the
Bahamas, the Cayman Islands or the
British Virgin Islands; or in a settlement we agree to.

Accident means a fortuitous circumstance, event

or happening that takes place and is neither expected nor intended from the standpoint of the
insured.
2.

Advertising Injury means injury arising out of one
or more of the following offenses :

a.

Oral or written publication of material that
slanders or libels a person or organization;

b.

Oral or written publication of material that
violates a person’s right of privacy;

c.

Misappropriation of advertising ideas or advertising style; or

d.

Infringement of copyright, title or slogan.

AB9000 12-93S

Under Section II Business Liability:
(1) The United States of America (including
its territories and possessions), Puerto
Rico and Canada;

Separation of Insureds

a.

Under Section I Property:

6.

Impaired Property means tangible property, other
than your product or your work, that cannot be
used or is less useful because:

a.

It incorporates your product or your work that
is known or thought to be defective, deficient,
inadequate or dangerous; or

b.

You have failed to fulfill the terms of a contract or agreement;
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Attachment 4 - Insurance



."8$

Page 82 of 130

28

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

04/30/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
CONTACT
1-847-385-6800
PRODUCER
David Koenen
NAME:
Integro Insurance Brokers
FAX
PHONE
(A/C, No):
(A/C, No, Ext): 847-385-6800
E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

111 West Campbell
4th Floor
Arlington Heights, IL 60005

David.Koenen@lemme.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER A :

INSURED

NAIC #

36056

NAVIGATORS SPECIALTY INS CO

INSURER B :

Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP

INSURER C :
INSURER D :

3000 S Street, Suite 300

INSURER E :

Sacramento, CA 95816

INSURER F :

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 56096793

COVERAGES

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSR
LTR

ADDL SUBR
INSD WVD

TYPE OF INSURANCE

POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:
PROPOLICY
LOC
JECT

LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

$

MED EXP (Any one person)

$

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$

GENERAL AGGREGATE

$

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$
$

OTHER:
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accident)
BODILY INJURY (Per person)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

$

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

$
$

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

$
$

UMBRELLA LIAB

OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

$

EXCESS LIAB

CLAIMS-MADE

AGGREGATE

$

DED
RETENTION $
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

A

Professional Liability

$
PER
STATUTE

Y/N

OTHER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

N/A

$

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

CE19APLC0003KIC

05/01/19

05/01/20 Each Claim
Annual Aggregate

$

2,000,000
2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Producer's California DOI License #OE77964
Deductible: $150,000

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

City of Sacramento
Risk Management Division
915 I Street
4th Floor
Sacramento, CA 95814

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

USA
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DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

05/15/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
CONTACT
1-847-385-6800
PRODUCER
David Koenen
NAME:
Integro Insurance Brokers
FAX
PHONE
(A/C, No):
(A/C, No, Ext): 847-385-6800
E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

111 West Campbell
4th Floor
Arlington Heights, IL 60005

david.koenen@lemme.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER A :

INSURED

NAIC #

FEDERAL INS CO / CHUBB

20281

INSURER B :

Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP

INSURER C :
INSURER D :

3000 S Street, Suite 300

INSURER E :

Sacramento, CA 95816

INSURER F :

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 56196264

COVERAGES

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSR
LTR

ADDL SUBR
INSD WVD

TYPE OF INSURANCE

POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:
PROPOLICY
LOC
JECT

LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

$

MED EXP (Any one person)

$

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$

GENERAL AGGREGATE

$

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$
$

OTHER:
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accident)
BODILY INJURY (Per person)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

$

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

$
$

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

$
$

UMBRELLA LIAB

OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

$

EXCESS LIAB

CLAIMS-MADE

AGGREGATE

$

DED
RETENTION $
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

A

Crime Insurance

$
PER
STATUTE

Y/N

OTHER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

N/A

$

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

8225-3350

05/01/19

05/01/20 Each Loss

$

1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

The policy above includes Third-Party Crime Coverage.
The City of Sacramento is named as loss payee on the policy.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

City of Sacramento
c/o EXIGIX LLX
PO Box 4668 ECM #35050

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

New York, NY 10168
USA
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DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

05/15/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
CONTACT
1-847-385-6800
PRODUCER
David Koenen
NAME:
Integro Insurance Brokers
FAX
PHONE
(A/C, No):
(A/C, No, Ext): 847-385-6800
E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

111 West Campbell
4th Floor
Arlington Heights, IL 60005

david.koenen@lemme.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER A :

INSURED

NAIC #

37273

AXIS INS CO

INSURER B :

Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP

INSURER C :
INSURER D :

3000 S Street, Suite 300

INSURER E :

Sacramento, CA 95816

INSURER F :

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 56194669

COVERAGES

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSR
LTR

ADDL SUBR
INSD WVD

TYPE OF INSURANCE

POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CLAIMS-MADE

OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:
PROPOLICY
LOC
JECT

LIMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

$

MED EXP (Any one person)

$

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$

GENERAL AGGREGATE

$

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$
$

OTHER:
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accident)
BODILY INJURY (Per person)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

$

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

$
$

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per accident)

$
$

UMBRELLA LIAB

OCCUR

EACH OCCURRENCE

$

EXCESS LIAB

CLAIMS-MADE

AGGREGATE

$

DED
RETENTION $
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

A

Cyber Insurance

$
PER
STATUTE

Y/N

OTHER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

N/A

$

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

P-001-000027465-02

05/01/19

05/01/20 Each Claim
Aggregate

$

1,000,000
1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

City of Sacramento
c/o EXIGIX LLX
PO Box 4668 ECM #35050

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

New York, NY 10168
USA
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Attachment 5 - Peer Review
9250 E AST C OSTILLA A VENUE , S UITE 450
G REENWOOD V ILLAGE , C OLORADO 80112
303‐792‐3020 ( O ) | 303‐792‐5153 ( F )
WWW . WCRCPA . COM

Report on the Firm’s System of Quality Control
October 25, 2018
To the Partners of
Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP
and the National Peer Review Committee
We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Macias
Gini & O’Connell LLP (the firm) applicable to engagements not subject to PCAOB permanent
inspection in effect for the year ended March 31, 2018. Our peer review was conducted in
accordance with the Standards for Performing and Reporting on Peer Reviews established by the
Peer Review Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Standards).
A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a
System Review as described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The
summary also includes an explanation of how engagements identified as not performed or reported
in conformity with applicable professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to
determine a peer review rating.
Firm’s Responsibility
The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide
the firm with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable
professional standards in all material respects. The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions
to promptly remediate engagements deemed as not performed or reported in conformity with
professional standards, when appropriate, and for remediating weaknesses in its system of quality
control, if any.
Peer Reviewer’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the design of the system of quality control and the
firm’s compliance therewith based on our review.
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Attachment 5 - Peer Review
Required Selections and Considerations
Engagements selected for review included an engagements performed under Government
Auditing Standards, including compliance audits under the Single Audit Act; an audit of an
employee benefit plan and an examination of a service organization, SOC 1 engagement.

As a part of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by
the firm, if applicable, in determining the nature and extent of our procedures.
Opinion
In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of Macias
Gini & O’Connell LLP engagements not subject to PCAOB permanent inspection in effect for the
year ended March 31, 2018, has been suitably designed and complied with to provide the firm with
reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional
standards in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or
fail. Macias Gini & O’Connell LLP has received a peer review rating of pass.

w
Watson Coon Ryan, LLC

2
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Attachment 6 - Local Business Enterprise (LBE)
City of Sacramento - Request for Proposals for Auditing Services

ATTACHMENT 6
LOCAL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (LBE)
PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND
NONPROFESSIONAL SERVICES OF $100,000 OR MORE
(City Contracts no Federal Funds Used)

I.

LBE PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENT

On April 3, 2012, the Sacramento City Council adopted a Local Business Enterprise (LBE)
Preference Program to provide enhanced opportunities for the participation of local business
enterprises (LBEs) in the City’s contracting and procurement activities. On November 19, 2013
City Council increased the LBE preference percentage and authorized City departments to
require a minimum 5% LBE participation level in public project and professional service
contracts. On December 17, 2013, the City Council amended the City Code to allow City
departments to require a minimum 5% LBE participation level in supply and nonprofessional
service contracts. Under City Code section 3.60.270, when the specifications or request for
proposals or bids for a City contract establish a minimum participation level for LBEs, no
proposer or bidder on the contract shall be considered responsive unless its proposal or bid
meets the minimum LBE participation level required by the specifications or request for
proposals or bids.
The City has established a minimum 5% participation level for LBE’s on this contract. Under
City Code section 3.60.270, no proposer or bidder shall be considered a responsive proposer or
bidder unless its proposal or bid meets this minimum LBE participation level.
Bidder and any other business entity listed on the LBE forms submitted shall comply with all
applicable laws relating to licensing, permitting, and payment of taxes and fees in the City of
Sacramento or County of Sacramento; and shall not be in arrears to the City of Sacramento or
County of Sacramento, upon award of a contract.
II.

LBE QUALIFICATION

A.

A LBE designated in the proposal or bid must be qualified as a LBE prior to the
time set for submission of proposals or bids.

B.

Local Business Enterprise means a business enterprise, including but not limited to,
a sole proprietorship, partnership, Limited Liability Company, corporation, or other
business entity that has a legitimate business presence in the city or unincorporated
county of Sacramento. Proof of legitimate business presence in the city or
unincorporated county of Sacramento shall include:

27
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Attachment 6 - Local Business Enterprise (LBE)
City of Sacramento - Request for Proposals for Auditing Services
1. Having a current City of Sacramento Business Operation Tax or County of
Sacramento Business License for at least twelve (12) consecutive months
prior to submission of the proposal or bid; and
2. Having either of the following types of offices or workspace operating
legally within the city or unincorporated county of Sacramento for at least
twelve (12) consecutive months prior to submission of the proposal or bid:
a. The LBE’s principle business office or workspace; or
b. The LBE’s regional, branch or satellite office with at least one full
time employee located in the city or unincorporated county of
Sacramento.

III.

IV.

C.

A LBE must provide a physical address for the basis of location. This excludes
P.O. Box addresses.

D.

A LBE must provide a current copy of the City of Sacramento Business
Operations Tax Certificate or County of Sacramento Business License.
DETERMINATION OF LBE PARTICIPATION LEVEL
A.

Professional and nonprofessional services agreements of $100,000 or more will
be subject to a minimum 5% LBE participation requirement.

B.

To receive credit for the 5% minimum participation requirement, the Contractor
must either (a) be a LBE, or (b) subcontract with a business entity that is a qualified
LBE.

LBE REQUIREMENTS OF SUCCESSFUL PROPOSAL
A.

LBE RECORDS - The Contractor shall maintain records of all agreements with
verified LBE subconsultants or subcontractors for one (1) year after receiving final
payment from the City. Such records shall show the name and business address
of each LBE subconsultant or subcontractor and the total dollar amount actually
paid each LBE subconsultant or subcontractor. Upon completion of the
agreement, a summary of these records shall be prepared, certified correct by the
Contractor’s authorized representative and furnished to the City. The Contractor
shall provide such other information, records, reports, certifications, or other
documents as may be required by City, to determine compliance with any provision
of the LBE program or these requirements.

B.

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND SANCTIONS - Failure to provide specific
information, records, reports, qualifications, or any other documents required for
compliance with these requirements shall be considered noncompliance with the
agreement. If the Contractor fails to correct a deficiency within fifteen (15) days
after notification, a deduction may be made from the agreement amount. The

28
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Attachment 6 - Local Business Enterprise (LBE)
City of Sacramento - Request for Proposals for Auditing Services
deduction shall be ten (10) percent of the estimated value of the services
performed during the month, not to be less than $1,000 nor exceed $10,000.
C.

V.

PERFORMANCE OF LBE SUBCONSULTANTS - The LBEs listed as
subconsultants or subcontractors by the Contractor shall perform the work or
services for which they are listed unless the Contractor has received prior written
authorization from the City to perform the work or services in another manner. If
the City approves the substitution of an LBE listed as a subconsultant or
subcontractor by the Contractor, the Contractor will be required to make good faith
efforts to replace the original LBE subconsultant or subcontractor with another
qualified LBE subconsultant or subcontractor.

DEFINITIONS
A.

Local Business Enterprise (LBE)
Local Business Enterprise (LBE): A business enterprise, including but not limited
to, a sole proprietorship, partnership, limited liability company, corporation, or any
other business entity that has a legitimate business presence in the city or
unincorporated county of Sacramento.

B.

Contractor
The successful proposer or bidder who is awarded the professional services or
nonprofessional services agreement by the City.

C.

Subconsultant
The individual, partnership, corporation, firm, or other entity entering into a contract
or agreement with the Contractor to perform a portion of the work or services under
the professional services agreement.

D.

Subcontractor
The individual, partnership, corporation, firm, or other entity entering into a contract
or agreement with the Contractor to perform a portion of the work or services under
the nonprofessional services agreement.

Updated 2/4/14
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Attachment 6 - Local Business Enterprise (LBE)
City of Sacramento - Request for Proposals for Auditing Services

Local Business Enterprise (LBE)
Participation Verification Form
Professional and Nonprofessional Service Agreements of $100,000 or More
THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH THE PROPOSAL OR BID
IF A SEPARATE SEALED COST ESTIMATE IS REQUIRED, THIS FORM MUST BE INCLUDED WITH THE
SEALED COST ESTIMATE
To be eligible for this agreement, the proposer or bidder shall list below all the business entities used to attain the 5%
LBE participation requirement. Estimated dollar values shall be provided for all work / services listed. The failure to
attain the 5% LBE participation or the inclusion of false information or the omission of required information will
render the proposal or bid non‐responsive.

$ 245,000
Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP (MGO) Proposal/Bid Amount: __________________
Proposer/Bidder Name: ___________________________________________
Proposer/Bidder a LBE ? ______Yes
____ No
X
LBE Business Entity Name and Address
(subject to verification)

Macias Gini & O'Connell LLP
3000 S Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95816
Business License Number 1024115

Description of Work or Services to be
provided

Auditing Services

Is the

Estimated Dollar Value of
Work or Services

$ 245,000

The Proposer/Bidder hereby certifies that each business entity listed on this LBE Participation Verification Form has
been notified that it has been listed and has consented in writing to its name being submitted for this proposal or bid.
The Proposer/Bidder also certifies that it will notify each business entity listed on this Form in writing if the
agreement is awarded to the Proposer/Bidder, and will make all documentation relevant to the listed business
entities and LBE participation available to the City of Sacramento upon request. The Proposer/Bidder further certifies
that all of the information contained in this Form is true and correct and acknowledges that the City will rely on the
accuracy of this information in awarding the agreement.
Form Revised 2/3/2014

COPY AND ATTACH ADDITIONAL SHEETS AS NECESSARY
Page ____ of _____

30
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Richard Green, CPA
CLIENT SERVICE PARTNER
GOVERNMENT INDUSTRY LEADER
PROPOSED ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES
• Leads and coordinates the overall delivery of service to the City and Lead
the SCERS engagement team
• Assist the lead engagement partner in project strategy and planning efforts
• Available throughout the year to ensure proactive issue identification and deivery of service
• Consults with the engagement partner and management team on audit progress, and ensures timelines
are met

SUMMARY
Richard serves as MGO's State and Local Government (SLG)
Industry Leader and has over 26 years of auditing, accounting,
and consulting experience, including all phases of external and
internal auditing. As the Government Industry Leader, Richard is
responsible for:
•
•

•

Ensuring MGO exceeds the expectations of our clients on
in the SLG segment
Building on the position as an industry thought leader
through active participation in state and national standardsetting boards and associations
Developing industry training and communication programs
that assists our clients understand and navigate the latest
SLG specific critical issues, trends and best practices

In addition to his role as SLG Industry Leader, Richard also
leads our public employee retirement benefit plan practice.
For over 13 years, he has overseen the assurance and advisory
services provided to public defined benefit pension plans, other
postemployment benefit plans, and defined contribution pension
plans. The financial statements of these entities follow GASB
Statement Nos. 67, and 74. In addition, Richard has been involved
with pension plan, state and local government audits that follow
GASB Statement Nos. 34, 68 and 75.
EDUCATION
California State University, Sacramento
B.S., Business Administration with a concentration in Accounting
ASSOCIATIONS
• American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
• California Society of Certified Public Accountants
• Association of Government Accountants

REPRESENTATIVE CLIENT EXPERIENCE
Public Pension Plans
• California Public Employees’ Retirement System
• California State Teachers' Retirement System
• Oregon Public Employees Retirement System
• Public Employees' Retirement System of Nevada
• Sacramento County Employees' Retirement
System
City Governments
• Sacramento
• Lodi
• Modesto
County Governments
• Butte
• Glenn
• Merced
• Sacramento
• Solano

•
•
•

Needles
Santa Rosa
Stockton

•
•
•
•

Sonoma
Stanislaus
Tuolumne
Yolo

Other Governmental Agencies
• California Business Transportation & Housing
Agency
• California Exposition and State Fair
• California Infrastructure and Economic
Development Bank
• California Institute for Regenerative Medicine
• California Integrated Waste Management Board
• California State Single Audit
• California Technology Agency
Page 93 of 130
• Department of Transportation - CalTRANS
• Sacramento Area Flood Control Agency
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Kevin Starkey, CPA, CGMA
LEAD ENGAGEMENT PARTNER

PROPOSED ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES
• Leads and coordinates the overall delivery of the audit and technical
assistance for the engagement
• Leads project strategy and planning efforts
• Works closely with engagement management team
• Available throughout the year to ensure proactive issue identification and service delivery
• Discusses and resolves accounting and control issues
• Consults with the engagement management and monitors audit progress, task
accomplishment, and ensures timelines are met
SUMMARY
Kevin is an MGO Assurance Services Partner and has over 20
years of accounting and auditing experience primarily focusing
on the state and local government industry.
Kevin is considered a Single Audit specialist within the firm and
functions as a Quality Control Review Partner for numerous
financial statements and single audits conducted throughout the
firm. Kevin is a member of the firm's Professional Practice Group
(PPG), comprised of five partners, two directors, and the firm’s
Chief Quality Officer as the chair person. The PPG serves as the
firm’s technical research department.
Kevin operates as one of the lead engagement partners for
conducting the federal compliance audit for the State of
California, which expends more than $95 billion in federal funds.
Kevin has extensive experience serving clients preparing CAFR's
for GFOA's excellence in financial reporting program that covers a
broad spectrum of governmental entities, which include general
purpose governments, transit districts, housing authorities,
water and port authorities.
EDUCATION
California State University, Sacramento
B.S., Business Administration, Accounting

44

ASSOCIATIONS
• American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
• Association of Government Accountants
• California Society of Certified Public Accountants
• Government Finance Officers ssociation’s Special Review
Committee for the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence
in Financial Reporting Program National Grants Management
Association
• National Grants Management Association

REPRESENTATIVE CLIENT EXPERIENCE
City Governments
• Sacramento
• Modesto
• Chico
• Oakland
• Encinitas
• San Diego
• Galt
• Stockton
• Lodi
• Woodland
County Governments
• Butte
• Fresno
• Glenn
• Placer
• Sacramento
• Santa Clara

•
•
•
•
•

San Diego
Solano
Sonoma
Tuolumne
Yolo

Other Governmental Entities
• California Institute for Regenerative Medicine
• California Public Employees' Retirement System
• California State Single Audit
• Oakland Housing Authority
• Port of San Diego
• Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency
• San Diego County Water Authority
• Sonoma County Water Agency and Sanitation
Districts
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David Bullock, CPA
GOVERNMENT RESOURCE PARTNER

PROPOSED ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES
• Consult with Engagement Partners regarding complex technical issues
to ensure timelines and client expectations are satisfied
• Stay current on engagement process and available in the absence of
the Engagement Partners
• Available throughout the year to ensure proactive issue identification
and service delivery

SUMMARY
David is an Assurance and Government Advisory
Services Partner of MGO. He has 27 years of professional
experience providing auditing, accounting and consulting
services. During the past year, David has served as the
engagement partner for diverse clients such as the
Counties of Contra Costa, and Alameda, as well as the
Cities of Fremont, Palo Alto, San Jose, Sunnyvale, and
the California Public Employees' Retirement System
(CalPERS). Within the past several years, David has also
audited the State of California's single audit programs for
the U.S. Department of Aging, Economic Development,
and Transportation grants. David brings a developed
audit and operational perspective to the County's
engagement.
David was recently appointed to the AICPA State and
Local Government Expert Panel. He is also on the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Financial Reporting Model Reexamination Task Force.
David has made numerous presentations covering
topics related to generally accepted accounting
principles, promulgated by the GASB, and audit
standards, promulgated by the AICPA and the GAO.
David has frequently presented various topics to MGO
employees, to clients, and to professional organizations,
including the Association of Government Accountants,
California Society of Municipal Finance Officers,
CalCPA’s Governmental Accounting and Auditing (GAAC)
Conference and BDO’s Government Industry Group.
EDUCATION
California State University, San José
B.S., Business Administration, Accounting

ASSOCIATIONS
• American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
• Association of Government Accountants - Silicon Valley
Chapter, Immediate Past President of the Board
• California Society of Certified Public Accountants
REPRESENTATIVE CLIENT EXPERIENCE
City Governments
• Antioch
• Pleasant Hill
• Foster City
• Pleasanton
• Fremont
• Rohnert Park
• Modesto
• San Francisco
• Morgan Hill
• San Jose
• Mountain View
• Santa Rosa
• Oakland
• Sunnyvale
• Palo Alto
County Governments
• Alameda
• Contra Costa
• Los Angeles
• San Francisco

•
•
•

San Mateo
Santa Clara
Yolo

Other Governmental Entities
• California State Single Audit
• Contra Costa Regional Medical Center
• Contra Costa Transportation Authority
• San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District
• San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART)
• San Mateo Medical Center
• Santa Clara Valley Water District
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Caroline Walsh, CPA
PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS REVIEW PARTNER

PROPOSED ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES
• Consults with the Engagement Partners on technical accounting and
auditing issues, including audit risk assessments
• Responsible for staying current on the engagement process, participating
in client discussions about complex technical issues, reviewing selected
audit workpapers and reviewing reports for compliance with GASB and
auditing standards
• Available throughout the year to consult with the City on technical
accounting and reporting issues

SUMMARY
Caroline is an Assurance Partner and has over 39 years of
specialized experience in auditing and consulting for public
pension plans, local governmental entities, nonprofit, insurance,
healthcare, and corporate enterprises.
Caroline is MGO's Chief Quality Officer and serves as the chair
of the firm's Professional Practice Group. She is responsible for
firm-wide guidance on accounting and professional standards,
quality control standards, including annual internal quality
control inspections, triennial peer review, and professional
standards quality control reviews of the firm's financial and
compliance reports.
Because of Caroline's technical expertise, for the last decade she
has been appointed to the executive and expert committees of
the AICPA, CalCPA and GASB technical advisory committees.
EDUCATION
California State University, Northridge
B.A., Mathematics
ASSOCIATIONS
• American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
• CalCPA, Governmental Accounting and Auditing Committee
• California Society of Certified Public Accountants
• Former Apointee to the AICPA State & Local Government
Expert Panel
• Member Executive Committee AICPA Governmental Audit
Quality Center
• Member GASB Advisory Committees for Implementation
Guidance and GAAP Hierarchy Standard
•

REPRESENTATIVE CLIENT EXPERIENCE
City Governments
• Sacramento
• Oakland
• City and County
• Santa Rosa
of San Francisco
• San Diego
• Los Angeles
• San Jose
County Governments
• Contra Costa
• Fresno
• Los Angeles
• Maui
• Orange
• Riverside

•
•
•
•
•
•

Sacramento
San Bernardino
San Diego
San Mateo
Santa Clara
Ventura

Other Governmental Entities
• California Public Employees' Retirement System
• California State Single Audit
• Los Angeles World Airports
• Metropolitan Water District of Southern
California
• Port of San Diego
• San Diego County Water Authority

Page 96 of 130

46

SECTION D | Attachments

Attachment 8 - Resumes

Russell Robertson, CPA
MANAGER

PROPOSED ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES
• Responsible for the monitoring, reviewing and evaluating fieldwork for
the CAFR, Single Audit, and Measure U
• Consults with audit team on issues and progress of fieldwork
• Discusses accounting and control issues and assists in resolving those issues
• Manages the day-to-day execution of the audit activities and directs task
accomplishments, monitors progress, and ensures schedule compliance

SUMMARY
Russ is an Assurance and Government Advisory Services Manager
with over 18 years of experience in performing various auditing,
accounting, financial, and operational assignments. His areas
of expertise include financial audits and compliance audits as
well as assessing internal controls and management systems.
Russ' focus areas include planning the processes, design and
implementation of the audit work plan; supervision of staff;
compliance testing for the single audit concept; providing
management advice; and preparation of comprehensive annual
financial reports.

ASSOCIATIONS
• American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants
• California Society of Certified Public Accountants

His role as Manager includes planning procedures to ensure
risks are appropriately addressed during the engagement, timely
communication with management through weekly audit status
meetings and a commitment to reporting deadlines.

County Governments
• Placer
• Sacramento

Russ's experience includes working in the governmental
industry for over 10 years. Russ previously worked for the
State of California Department of Agriculture as an auditor.
More recently, Russ served as the Director of Finance for the
Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency and prior to
that, as the Accounting Manager for the City of Sacramento. In
those roles, Russ was responsible for overseeing the accounting
divisions and staffing, preparation of the CAFR and the annual
budget. Russ brings a well-rounded professional career and
experiences to the City engagement team.

Other Governmental Entities
• California Institute for Regenerative Medicine
• California Prison Industry Authority
• California State Single Audit
• California State University, Sacramento Auxiliary
Enterprises
• Capital Area Development Authority
• Sacramento City Employees’ Retirement System
• Sacramento Housing & Redevelopment Agency
• Tuolumne County General Hospital

REPRESENTATIVE CLIENT EXPERIENCE
City Governments
• Sacramento
• Stockton
• Galt
• Woodland
• Santa Rosa

•
•

Solano
Tuolumne

EDUCATION
California State University, Sacramento
B.S., Business Administration, Accounting
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Craig Harner, CPA, CFE
MANAGER

PROPOSED ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES
• Responsible for the monitoring, reviewing and evaluating fieldwork for
the SCERS audit
• Consults with audit team on issues and progress of fieldwork
• Discusses accounting and control issues and assists in resolving those issues
• Manages the day-to-day execution of the audit activities and directs task
accomplishments, monitors progress, and ensures schedule compliance

SUMMARY
Craig has over 11 years of auditing experience in performing
various auditing, accounting, financial, and operational
assignments for retirement systems, governmental, nonprofit
and special district clients. Specifically, Craig has 7 years
of experience with audits of defined benefit and defined
contribution pension plans. He is also a licensed Certified Fraud
Examiner.
Craig's audit experience specifically related to retirement plans
includes the following significant areas:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Equity securities
Debt securities
Private equity
Real assets, which include commingled funds and directly held real
estate, infrastructure, and forestland
Securities lending
Derivative instruments
Member and employer contributions (defined benefit, defined
contribution, and other postemployment benefit plans)
Benefit payments (defined benefit and other postemployment benefit
plans)
Distributions and withdrawals (defined contribution plans)
Member census data
Actuarial valuation for single-employer and cost-sharing multipleemployer defined benefit pension plans
Schedules of employer allocations and aggregate pension amounts for
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans

He is MGO’s public retirement system senior manager firmwide,
and has served each of the public retirement systems listed.
Services provided for each client include performing an audit on
the financial statements in accordance with standards generally
accepted in the United States of America as promulgated by
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Also,
a majority of the audits were performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

48

EDUCATION
California State University Sonoma
B.S., Business Administration with concentration in
Accounting
ASSOCIATIONS
• American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
• California Society of Certified Public Accountants
• Association of Certified Fraud Examiners
REPRESENTATIVE CLIENT EXPERIENCE
Public Pension Plans
• California Public Employees’ Retirement System
• California State Teachers’ Retirement System
• Merced County Employees' Retirement
Association
• Public Employees' Retirement System of Nevada
• Orange County Employees' Retirement System
• Oregon Public Employees Retirement System
• San Francisco Employees' Retirement System
• Sacramento County Employees' Retirement
System
• Stanislaus County Employees' Retirement
Association
Other Governmental Entities
• California Department of Technology
• California Exposition & State Fair
• California Institute for Regenerative Medicine
• California State Auditor - State Single Audit
• City and County of San Francisco
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Bunty Khetan, CPA
MANAGER

PROPOSED ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES
• Responsible for the monitoring, reviewing and evaluating fieldwork for
the SCVB and Child Development audits
• Consults with audit team on issues and progress of fieldwork
• Discusses accounting and control issues and assists in resolving those issues
• Manages the day-to-day execution of the audit activities and directs task
accomplishments, monitors progress, and ensures schedule compliance

SUMMARY
Bunty started at MGO in 2015 as a senior associate. Prior to
joining MGO Bunty worked for the international firm Crowe
Horwath for two years. He has experience in performing various
auditing, accounting, and financial assignments. He also has
experience with many local businesses, 401(k) plans, and not-forprofit clients.
Bunty served as the engagement Supervisor for the largest and
most complex public retirement system in the country - CalPERS.
Bunty's experience includes planning and leading audit
engagements, supervising staff, preparing financial statements,
and preparing and reviewing work papers. He has experience
with business acquisitions, cash flow projections, liquidity
analysis, revenue trends, and business acumen.

REPRESENTATIVE CLIENT EXPERIENCE
City Governments
• Lodi
County Governments
• Tuolumne
Other Governmental Entities
• California Public Employees’ Retirement System
• California State Single Audit
• Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency
Other Entities
• Digital Path
• Quick Quack Car Wash Holdings

EDUCATION
California State University, Sacramento
B.S., Business Administration, Accounting
ASSOCIATIONS
• American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
•

California Society of Certified Public Accountants
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Mark Cousineau, CPA/CITP, CGMA,
CFE, CGAP, CGFM
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DIRECTOR
PROPOSED ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES
• Conducts IT general and application controls assessments and focus
reviews on system security and governance
• Leads the information sustems review
• Works closely with assurance professionals to conduct the information systems
review.

SUMMARY
Mark has over 25 years of high-level organizational management
and leadership experience. Mark is an expert in the state
and local sector. His areas of expertise include internal
controls, internal audit activities including annual audit plan
risk assessments, proprietary accounting and reporting with
emphasis on self-insurance funds and municipal landfills, federal
cost principles (2 CFR 200), and fraud hotline oversight. Mark
is an experienced financial reporting professional who brings
information technology and local government expertise.
He has served as the Chief Deputy Auditor and Chief Deputy
Controller for the County of San Bernardino Auditor-Controller/
Treasurer/Tax Collector and as a Chief Accountant for the
Riverside County Auditor-Controller’s Office.
Mark is certified by the State of California Department of Justice
as a Computer Security Auditor.
EDUCATION/CERTIFICATIONS
• B.S., in Business Administration, California State
University, San Bernardino
• Chadron State College; MBA currently enrolled, expected
2017
• Certified Public Accountant, California
• Certified Internal Auditor
• Certified Fraud Examiner
• Certified Government Financial Manager
• Certified Government Audit Professional
• Chartered Global Management Accountant, AICPA
• Certified Information Technology Professional
• Certification in Risk Management Assurance

REPRESENTATIVE CLIENT EXPERIENCE
City Governments
• City and County
• Pasadena
of San Francisco
• San Bernardino
• Fremont
• Santa Ana
• Los Angeles
• Santa Monica
County Governments
• Los Angeles
• Monterey
• Orange

•
•

Sacramento
San Bernardino

Other Governmental Entities
• California Department of Toxic Substances
• California Electronic Recording Transaction
Network Authority
• California State Single Audit
• Metropolitan Water District of Southern
California
• Orange County Sanitation District
• Port of San Diego
• Riverside Public Utilities
• Santa Margarita Water District
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Jasmine Costa, CISA
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY MANAGER

PROPOSED ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES
• Works closely with assurance professionals to conduct the
information systems review
• Conducts IT general and application controls assessments
• As needed, conducts focused reviews on systems security and
governance

SUMMARY
Jasmine has over 10 years of experience in IT audit and
compliance, risk management, and information security, with a
major emphasis on SOX 404 and operational audits. Her areas
of expertise include developing and executing comprehensive IT
general controls and application controls test plans, development
of controls, documentation, testing, and remediation, and overall
project management. She has also managed first year audits and
IT compliance initiatives, including SSAE 16 SOC reviews, mapping
of service provider controls to organization-wide internal control
framework, and working with third-party vendors to ensure
compliance with policies and standards. Additionally, she has
had exposure to financial controls and has assisted in testing and
evaluating said controls under the SOX 404 program.
Jasmine has worked in a variety of industries from healthcare and
for-profit higher education to financial services and state and
local government. She has a proven track record in facilitating
partnerships between IT, internal and external auditors, and
business management
EDUCATION
University College London, U.K.,
Undergraduate Master of Science in Computer Science
ASSOCIATIONS
• Certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA), California

REPRESENTATIVE CLIENT EXPERIENCE
City Governments
• Freemont
• Lodi
• Los Angeles
• Pasadena
• San Francisco
County Governments
• Alameda
Other Governmental Entities
• California Prison Industry Authority
• California Public Employees’ Retirement System
• California State Single Audit
Other Entities
• ALT Systems, Inc.
• First Capitol Consulting, Inc.
• LJR Holdings, Inc.
• Terra Tech Corp
Other Relevant Career Experience
• Bridgepoint Education, 2011 – 2015
• CoreLogic, 2007 – 2011
• NuVasive, Inc., 2015 – 2016
• Sharp Healthcare, 2015
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Kathleen Foster, CPA
SENIOR ASSOCIATE

PROPOSED ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES
• Assists the manager in the planning and execution of the CAFR,
Single Audit, and Measure U
• Supervises fieldwork and the engagement staff
• Reviews and analyzes client processes and internal controls
• Researches issues as directed by Engagement Manager
• Reviews all workpapers before submission to Engagement Manager

SUMMARY
Kathleen started as an associate with MGO in 2015. She has
significant experience in performing various auditing functions
for State and Local government clients, including conducting
Single Audits. Her proven experience includes planning and
leading audit engagements, supervising staff, preparing and
reviewing workpapers and financial statements.
Since 2015 Kathleen has participated in the California federal
compliance audit focusing on testing major programs at the
Department of Education, Department of Rehabilitation,
California Office of Emergency Services, and Department of
Veterans Affairs.
EDUCATION
University of California, Riverside
B.A., Theatre Arts

REPRESENTATIVE CLIENT EXPERIENCE
City Governments
• Lodi
• Modesto
County Governments
• Tuolumne
• Yolo
Other Governmental Entities
• California Institute of Regenerative Medicine
• California Prison Industry Authority
• California Public Employees' Retirement System
• California State Single Audit
• Sacramento County Employees' Retirement
System

University of California, Davis
Master of Professional Accountancy
ASSOCIATIONS
• American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
• California Society of Certified Public Accountants
• UC Davis Graduate School of Management Alumni
Association
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Misgana Habetzion
SENIOR ASSOCIATE

PROPOSED ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES
• Assists the manager in the planning and execution of the SCVB and Child
Developement audits
• Supervises fieldwork and the engagement staff
• Reviews and analyzes client processes and internal controls
• Researches issues as directed by Engagement Manager
• Reviews all workpapers before submission to Engagement Manager

SUMMARY
Misgana is an Assurance Senior and has been with MGO since
2015. Misgana has experience performing both financial
statement and federal compliance audits for state and local
governmental units, including the California federal compliance
audit and its largest federal program, the Medicaid Cluster.
Misgana has previously worked on major programs administered
by the Department of Health Care Services, Department of
Housing and Community Development, and the Department of
Transportation.
Misgana’s experience includes planning and coordinating audit
engagements, evaluating internal controls and performing
substantive testing, preparing and reviewing workpapers, and
supervising staff.

REPRESENTATIVE CLIENT EXPERIENCE
Other Governmental Entities
• California Exposition & State Fair
• California Infrastructure and Economic
Development Bank
• California Public Employees’ Retirement System
• California State Single Audit
• California State Teachers’ Retirement System
• Sacramento County Employees' Retirement
System
• Sacramento Housing and Redevelopment Agency

EDUCATION
California State University Sacramento, BS Business
Administration, Concentration in Accounting
ASSOCIATIONS
• California Society of Certified Public Accountants
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Chai Saechao
SENIOR ASSOCIATE

PROPOSED ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES
• Assists the manager in the planning and execution of the SCERS audit
• Supervises fieldwork and the engagement staff
• Reviews and analyzes client processes and internal controls
• Researches issues as directed by Engagement Manager
• Reviews all workpapers before submission to Engagement Manager

SUMMARY
Chai has four years of experience in performing various
auditing, accounting, financial, and operational assignments for
governmental and nonprofit clients. Prior to joining MGO, Chai
worked as an Accounting Technician for a nonprofit organization
where he performed tasks such as preparing budgets for grant
funded programs, tracking expenditures within funds, and
reporting to grantors the fiscal and performance aspects of each
grant. While at MGO, Chai has worked on engagements related
to private corporations, federal agencies, component units of the
state, and various pension plans throughout California.

REPRESENTATIVE CLIENT EXPERIENCE
Public Pension Plans
• California Public Employees’ Retirement
System
• Merced County Employees' Retirement
Association
• Public Employees' Retirement System of
Nevada
• Sacramento County Employees' Retirement
System

His proven performance areas include, but are not limited to:
supervising staff and maintaining communication with client
to meet deadlines and deliverables, compiling data to prepare
financial statements; preparing and reviewing staff workpapers
and supporting schedules; performing and reviewing tests of
details and analytical reviews; auditing and reviewing long-term
debt, cash reconciliations, cash receipts/disbursements, fixed
assets, accounts payable; and preparing adjusting entries.

County Governments
• Merced
• Tuolumne
• Sacramento
• Yolo

EDUCATION
California State University, Sacramento
B.S., Accounting and Financial Planning
ASSOCIATIONS
• California Society of Certified Public Accountants

Other Governmental Entities
• California Department of Education
• California Department of Water Resources
• California Exposition and State Fair
• California State Single Audit
• California Technology Agency
Other Entities
• Clear Capital
• Dokken Engineering
• REY Engineering
• S&G Carpet
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Approach to Implementation of GASB
Standards

Given the every changing financial reporting and regulatory landscape surrounding governmental entities, the
City’s accounting and financial reporting will be impacted from the implementation of new GASB standards.
While auditors are often seen as historians, MGO collaborates with our clients and takes a proactive approach
on all new GASB implementations. The initial step in the implementation process is having upfront and timely
discussions concerning the potential impact of any upcoming GASB standards. After the identification process,
MGO assists our clients as a trusted advisor, evaluating the extent of the impact and the necessary information
required for a successful implementation. Depending upon the extent of the impact, an implementation plan and
timeline should be established to monitor progress and task accomplishment. MGO will also leverage our client
and industry relationships to identify whether other entities early adopted the GASB standards as a component of
the implementation toolkit. Throughout the implementation process, MGO encourages in-person meetings and
the opportunity to review preliminary information prepared by our clients (journal entries, footnote disclosures,
etc.) prior to incorporation into the financial statements. Oftentimes as is the case with implementing new
accounting and reporting standards, consultation with the standard setters is required for additional clarification.
If such circumstances are necessary, MGO will work side-by-side with the City creating technical inquiries and
communicating directly with the GASB.
Below is summary of the standards that the City will be required to implement, which over the next five (5) years
and a brief summary of the pronouncements and potential impact on the City:

Fiscal Year
Effective for

Effective for the

Periods Beginning

County of

Issued

After

Sacramento

November 2016

June 15, 2018

FY 2018/19

January 2017

December 15, 2018

FY 2019/20

June 2017

December 15, 2019

FY 2020/21

March 2018

June 15, 2018

FY 2018/19

August 2018

December 15, 2018

FY 2019/20

July 2018

July 1, 2019

FY 2019/20

GASB
No.

Title

83

Certain Asset Retirement Obligations

84

Fiduciary Activities

87

Leases
Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct

88

Borrowings and Direct Placements
Majority Equity Interests-an amendment of GASB

90
2018

Statements No. 14 and No. 61

Revision Government Auditing Standards
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GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations - effective for the City’s FY 2018/2019 and
establishes accounting and reporting for the retirement of tangible capital assets by a legally enforceable liability
including laws and regulations and court judgments. Examples of tangible capital assets that can be retired
pursuant to legally enforceable actions include decommissioning of nuclear reactors and dismantling and removal
of sewage treatment plants. We do not anticipate the City being materially impacted by this Statement.
GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities - effective for the City’s FY 2019/2020 and improves accounting and
reporting for fiduciary activities including fiduciary component units and establishment of four types of fiduciary
funds including a new type of fiduciary fund, custodial funds, which replaces Agency Funds. This Statement
will have an impact on the financial reporting of the City’s FY 2019/2020 CAFR. The impact resulting from the
implementation of this Statement will be the elimination of the City’s Agency Funds and such activity will be have
to be reported in custodial funds. This change will require the City to establish a statement of changes in fiduciary
net position for the custodial funds and report on the additions and deductions from the funds net position
(equity).
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases - effective for the City’s FY 2020/2021 and changes the way in which
governmental entities account for leases, either as lessees or lessors. This Statement eliminates any distinction
between operating and capital leases and treats all leases as financings. Under current standards, operating
leases are accounted for as an "off-balance sheet" item, but will require lessees to recognize an asset for the
right to use the leased item and a corresponding lease liability. Lease liabilities will be considered as long-term
obligations and lease payments will be capital financing outflows in the cash flow statement for proprietary funds.
In the activity statements, lessees will no longer report rent expense for current operating leases, but will instead
report interest expense of the long-term obligation and amortization expense related to the leased asset.
The City is also a lessor and beginning in FY2020/21 will be required to recognize a lease receivable and a
corresponding deferred inflow of resources while continuing to report the asset underlying the lease. Interest
income associated with the lease receivable will be recognized using the effective interest method. Also, lease
revenue will arise from amortizing the deferred inflow of resources in a systematic and rational manner over the
lease term.
The City has significant leasing activity and will need to dissect and evaluate the various implementation issues.
Below are some implementation issues for consideration:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Determination of implementation team members
How is the City managing its leases
Establishing a plan for lease data collection
Understanding of lease types that are not covered under GASB 87 and specific criteria used
purposes
5. Define a threshold for recording leases and identification of fair value for leased assets
6. Determination of a discount rate for future cash flows

for evaluation

GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct
Placements - will be effective for the City’s FY 2018/2019 and defines debt, direct placements and direct
borrowings in addition to adding new disclosures with respect to such borrowings. We do not anticipate the City
being materially impacted by this Statement.
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GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests – An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No.
61 - effective for the City’s FY 2019/2020 and defines a majority equity interest and specifies that a majority
equity interest in a legally separate organization should be reported as an investment if a government’s
holding of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets the
definition of an investment should be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose
government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term
endowments) or permanent fund. We do not anticipate the City being materially impacted by this Statement.

Government Auditing Standards, 2018 Revision (Yellow Book) - issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States in July 2018 and effective for the City’s FY 2019/2020 financial statement audit. The key areas of the
Yellow Book where substantial revisions were made that could have an effect on the City include:
• Independence – particularly with respect to auditors preparing the financial statements of the auditee
• Peer reviews – clarifying certain baseline requirements of when they are required
• Defining waste and abuse and providing guidance to auditors on their responsibilities if waste and abuse are
identified during the course of the audit including how to report on internal control
• Performance audits - clarifying guidance on internal controls when they are integral to the performance audit
As a result of the 2018 Revision to the Yellow Book, certain elements of our audit approach and procedures
performed will change accordingly to conform to the Government Auditing Standards, 2018 Revision.
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City of Sacramento - Request for Proposals for Auditing Services

Audit reports and standards for the various reporting entities are summarized as
follows:
Auditing and Reporting Standards
Accounting Yellow
Standards Book

Reporting Entity

B.

Single
Audit Other

City of Sacramento – Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

GASB

Y

--

--

City of Sacramento - Single Audit

GASB

Y

Y

--

Sacramento City Employees'
Retirement System –
Financial Statements

GASB

Y

--

--

Sacramento Convention and Visitors
Bureau - Financial Statements

FASB

--

--

--

Child Development Program Financial Statements with State
Required Supplemental
Information

GASB

Y

--

--

City of Sacramento –
Performance Audit of the City’s
Measure U Sales Tax Funds

GASB

Y

--

--

Reporting Entities Included in Scope of Work to be Performed
Audit services are solicited for the following reporting entities, which include City
and related agencies and programs:
•
•
•
•
•
•

C.

City of Sacramento CAFR
Single Audit
Sacramento City Employees’ Retirement System
Sacramento Convention and Visitors Bureau
Child Development Program
City of Sacramento Measure U Funds

Description of the Reporting Entities
The following information provides an overview of each reporting entity and its
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March 22, 2019
Requests for Proposals P19061311001 (Addendum # 2)
Auditing Services
To all Potential Respondents:
Attached hereto are addenda items, which shall be incorporated into your submittal for the
above noted project. These changes shall be considered as part of the original documents, as
if they were originally provided therein, and as such shall be used as contractual documents.
All other terms, conditions, and specifications of the request remain unchanged. Respondents
must acknowledge receipt of this addendum within the cover letter of your RFP submittal.
Failure to acknowledge receipt of this addendum in your cover letter prior to the hour and date
specified for receipt of proposals may result in rejection of your RFP submittal. If by virtue of
this addendum you decide to change the RFP submittal already submitted, such change may
be made by letter, provided such letter makes reference to the project name and this
addendum, and is received prior to the opening hour and date specified.
For any questions related to this Addendum, contact the Project Manager, Osvaldo Lopez, at
OLopez@cityofsacramento.org.
Sincerely,

Osvaldo Lopez
Project Manager
cc:

Distribution List

Addendum No. 2 to RFP No. P19061311001
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Requests for Proposals P19061311001 (Addendum # 2)
Auditing Services
1.

2.

Question:

How long have the current auditors been performing the audit for the City?

Answer:

Our current auditors have been performing the audit for five years.

Question:

What is the desired timeline for:
a.
b.
c.
d.

3.

4.

Interim
Year-end
Draft Reports
Final Reports

Answer:

Interim work should start in late June spanning about two to three weeks. We
would like field work to start in early October and finish in late November, with a
draft report produced by the City on December 6, 2019. Our goal is to finalize the
CAFR by December 13, 2019, including the opinion.

Question:

How many auditors and how many weeks were the prior auditors on site, for
interim and year-end field work?

Answer:

During interim field work 3-4 auditors were on site for approximately 3 weeks.
During year-end field work 3-5 auditors were on site approximately 6 weeks.

Question:

What were the prior year fees for all the services provided? Please provide detail
by report.

Answers:
Report
CAFR
Single Audit
SCERS
SCVB
Measure U
Child Dev
5.

6.

Question:

Are there any new audit services requested in this RFP that were not included in
the prior year fees?

Answer:

No

Question:

If required, who does the State Controller’s Financial Transaction Report
preparation and submission? If the auditors, how much was last year’s fees?

Answer:

The auditor will not be required to help with any of the City’s Financial
Transaction Reports. Those reports are prepared and submitted by City
Accounting Staff.

Addendum No. 2 to RFP No. P19061311001
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Fees
$135,399
$25,296
$26,494
$18,414
$15,000
$21,160
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7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Question:

How many major programs were tested last year for the Single Audit? Please
provide a copy of the most recent report.

Answer:

Three major programs were tested.

Question:

How many journal entries were proposed by the prior auditor and how many
findings did they issue?

Answer:

During the 6/30/18 CAFR audit, the auditors issued no findings and proposed
less than three journal entries.

Question:

Were there any material adjustments made by the auditors related to the prior
year audit?

Answer:

No

Question:

Has the City entered into any major contracts, studies, and/or started any
projects in the current fiscal year that would not be reflected in the prior year
financial statements?

Answer:

The City initiated a major renovation of its Convention Center Complex in fiscal
year 2018, including the Convention Center, the Memorial Auditorium and the
Community Center Theater. Much of the work will be completed in fiscal years
2019 and 2020.

Question:

Any new debt issuances in the current fiscal year?

Answer:

The City issued its $283 million 2018 Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) Senior
Series A and B, and Subordinate Series C bonds. We expect to issue additional
Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series 2019, before year-end.

Question:

Is the City involved in any litigation not included in the prior year financial
statements?

Answer:

Yes

Question:

Any other major changes in the current fiscal year that would affect the
operations of the City?

Answer:

No

Question:

How did you measure the quality of the audit performed?

Answer:

The City would use professional judgement to ascertain the quality of the audit.
We use the audit entrance conference, weekly audit status meetings, audit
efficiency, and the exit conference to evaluate audit quality.

Addendum No. 2 to RFP No. P19061311001
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Question:

What audit areas, in your opinion, were cumbersome?

Answer:

There are no audit areas that are cumbersome.

Question:

What efficiencies would you like to see in the audit of the City’s financials?

Answer:

Much preliminary information can be obtained during interim work. Additionally,
we would like audit questions asked (and answered) as soon as feasible during
field work to minimize audit questions just prior to draft statements.

Question:

Is the detail proposal limited to 20 numerical pages (i.e. 1-20), or sequential
pages?

Answer:

20 numerical pages

Question:

Can we include the full resumes of engagement team members within the
attachment section following the Technical Proposal?

Answer:

Yes

Question:

Can we provide a statement regarding CPE certification or do you want a detail
listing for each team member?

Answer:

A statement regarding CPE certification or detail listing for each team member
are both acceptable.

Question:

Could we obtain copies of the following reports for the year ended June 30,
2018?

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

21.

22.

Sacramento City Employees Retirement System
Sacramento Convention and Visitors Bureau
Child Development Program
Single Audit

Answer:

These 4 reports and the Measure U report are included in this addendum.

Question:

Please provide the “Report to Council” for the year ended June 30, 2018?

Answer:

This report is included in this addendum.

Question:

Does the City anticipate any additional audit services to be performed on the
new Measure U sales tax?

Answer:

No, however, we still require a performance audit of the Measure U Sales Tax
Funds. A copy of the prior year report is attached to this addendum.

Addendum No. 2 to RFP No. P19061311001
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23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

Question:

Is the City anticipating any new large (programs exceeding $750,000 in annual
expenditures) federal award programs for FY2018-19?

Answer:

No

Question:

Has there been any turnover in management during the past year?

Answer:

Yes, the Revenue Manager retired in December 2018 and the City is currently
recruiting for this position.

Question:

Has there been any turnover in accounting staff during the past year?

Answer:

Yes, we are currently recruiting to fill two positions.

Question:

Any management letters comments outstanding from the prior year?

Answer:

No.

Question:

Any known or suspected fraud?

Answer:

There have been instances where outside parties have tried to commit fraud
against the city. However, there are no known or suspected fraud committed by
City’s employees.

Question:

Are financial records available electronically?

Answer:

Yes.

Question:

Significant changes to operations or funding sources? Any new federal grants
during the year?

Answer:

There are no significant changes to operations. We are expecting an increase in
sales tax due to new Measure U. There are no new material federal grants during
the year.

Question:

Any audits or inspections by regulatory agencies?

Answer:

None at this moment.

Question:

Any changes to the governance structure of the organization?

Answer:

No.

Question:

Is the incumbent auditor invited to bid?

Answer:

Yes.

Addendum No. 2 to RFP No. P19061311001
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33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

Question:

Is the accounting department/system same for all entities under audit?

Answer:

All departments use the same accounting system; Accounting Division in the
Finance Department oversees the accounting for all departments.

Question:

Why is the City considering changing the auditors?

Answer:

The contract with the current audit firm ended, however this firm could also send
their proposal to the City of Sacramento.

Question:

How long has your prior auditor been performing the audit?

Answer:

The prior auditor performed the audit for the past 5 years.

Question:

Is the scope of the service requested the same as last year?

Answer:

Yes.

Question:

Have there been any changes in your accounting system or software since las
year?

Answer:

No.

Question:

Do you expect to have any retirement or replacement of key employees in
Finance?

Answer:

Yes, the Financial Services Manager in charge of payroll will retire in fiscal year
2020.

Question:

Is there anything specific that you are looking for with the successor auditors?

Answer:

The City of Sacramento is looking for qualified auditors with the proper
experience and knowledge to perform the audits that we need.

Question:

What are the things you liked and didn’t like about your current auditors?

Answer:

Likes: They kept relatively consistent staff during their 5-year tenure, kept up to
date with audit procedures and new GASB standards, as well as delivered
reports within the time agreed. They were available to answer our questions and
provide guidance to issues that came up throughout the year.
Dislikes: Last minute questions and sample requests after staff had left fieldwork
and right before the reports were due. We give our auditors access to our
financial system so most samples can be obtained by the auditors.

41.

Question:

Were there any material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in the prior year?

Answer:

Refer to attached audited reports.
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42.

43.

44.

45.

46.

Question:

How many major programs are usually tested each year for the single audit?

Answer:

The number of programs usually range from 2 – 4 programs.

Question:

Are attachments 1, 2, 3 and 6 in the RFP to submitted as part of the detailed
proposal or separate attachments/documents?

Answer:

The attachments could be either included as part of the detail proposal or as
separate attachments included in the proposal. However, as mentioned before,
detail proposal is limited to 20 numerical pages.

Question:

For the LBE Participation Requirements, do you want the Business Licenses
submitted as part of the proposal, or are we only required to submit the
Participation Verification Form with the proposal?

Answer:

The Business License is required.

Question:

Section B.7 “Similar Engagement with Other Government Entities” requests
contact info for up to 5 similar entities, but Attachment 2 appears to only have
room for one Client Refence. Do you only want one reference provided or do
you want Attachment 2 filled out for each of the 5 references included in the
proposal?

Answer:

Attachment 2 should be used for each of the 5 references that you want to list.

Question:
Answer:

Regarding item 7 on page 14 of the City’s proposal, should the template
(Attachment 2) found on page 21 be used to complete this requirement?
Attachment 2 is required for references; however, it was not intended to satisfy
the requirement stated on item 7 on page 14. Therefore, you are required to use
attachment 2 for references but you are also required to provide the information
in item 7 as part of your proposal.

47.

All other terms, conditions and specifications of the proposal remain unchanged. If a proposal
package is not being submitted, it is not necessary to return this addendum or acknowledge
receipt of such.

48.

Proposers submitting a proposal package must acknowledge receipt of this addendum prior to
the hour and date specified in the Request for Proposal by one of the following methods:
a.

By signing and returning one (1) copy of this addendum with the proposal package if not
previously submitted; or

b.

If the proposal package has been previously submitted, the addendum may be
submitted by separate letter, which must include on the outside of the mailing envelope
the proposal and addendum number and the proposal due date. This information must
be clearly marked in CAPITAL LETTERS on the outside of the envelope. Failure of your
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acknowledgement to be received at the Department of Finance, 915 I Street, 4th Floor,
Sacramento, CA, 95814, prior to the hour and date specified, may result in rejection of
your proposal.
c.

If, by virtue of this addendum you decide to change a proposal that has already been
submitted, such change may be made by letter, as specified in (b) above.

Proposer's Name: Macias
__________________________
Gini & O'Connell LLP (MGO)
Signature: ___________________________
Name & Title: ___________________________
Kevin Starkey, Partner
Date: __________________
March 29, 2019
END ADDENDUM #2
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Partner
Main: 916.642.7048
kstarkey@mgocpa.com

mgocpa.com
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